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The City will elect to treat the Certifcates as Recovely Zone Economic Development Bonds under Sections S4AA and 14OOU-2 of the 
Code and will receive a direct payment f iom the federal government equal to a portion of the interest coming due on the Certifcates. 
In the opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P. C,, Special Counsel, under existing law, the stated Interest Portion of Basic Rent Payments paid 
by the City and distributed to the registered owners of the Certificates is exernptfi-om income taxation by the State of Missouri. The 
Interest Portion of Basic Rent Payments paid by the City and distributed to the registered owners of the Cert$cates will be included 
in gross income for Federal income taxpurposes. See “TAXMAZ’ERS’ herein. 

$2,859,000 
CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 

TAXABLE CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION 
(RECOVERY ZONE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BONDS) 

SERIES 2010 

Evidencing Proportionate Interests of the Owners 
thereof in Basic Rent Payments to be made by the 

CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI, 
as Lessee pursuant to a Lease Purchase Agreement with UMB Bank, N.A., as Lessor 

Dated: Date of Delivery Due: July 1, as shown on the inside cover 
The Certificates will be delivered in fully registered form without coupons in the denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple 
thereof (provided.that one Certificate may be in the amount of $1,000 or any multiple thereof). Principal of and semiannual interest 
on the Certificates will be paid from moneys available therefore under the Declaration of Trust (herein defined) by UMB Bank, 
N.A., Kansas City, Missouri, as Trustee (the “Trustee”) and Paying Agent. Principal will be payable as shown on the inside cover 
page. Interest will be payable semiannually on January 1 and July 1, beginning January 1,201 1. 

The Certificates evidence the ownership of proportionate interests in, and rights to receive payments under, the Lease (herein 
defined), entered into between the Trustee, as lessor, and the City of Monett, Missouri (the “City”), as lessee. The City’s obligation 
to make Basic Rent Payments and the other obligations of the City under the Lease are subject to and dependent upon annual 
appropriations being made by the City for such purpose. See ”SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR TIFE 
CERTIFICATES - Nonappropriation” herein. 

The Certificates are subject to optional, mandatory and extraordinary optional prepayment prior to maturity as described herein See 
“THE CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION - Prepayment” herein. 

THE CERTIFICATES, THE BASIC RENT PAYMENTS AND OTHER AMOUNTS DUE UNDER THE LEASE DO NOT 
CONSTITUTE AN OBLIGATION OF THE CITY IN ANY FISCAL YEAR SUBSEQUENT TO A FISCAL YEAR AS TO 
WHICH THE CITY HAS APPROPRIATED FUNDS TO PAY BASIC RENT’PAYMENTS AND OTHER AMOUNTS 
REASONABLY ANTICIPATED TO COME DUE UNDER THE LEASE. IN THE EVENT ‘THE CITY FAILS TO BUDGET, 
APPROPRIATE OR OTHERWISE PROVIDE FOR SUFFICIENT FUNDS TO PAY BASIC RENT PAYMENTS AND 
REASONABLY ANTICIPATED OTHER AMOUNTS TO COME DUE DURING THE IMMEDIATELY FOLLOWING FISCAL 
YEAR, THE LEASE WILL TERMINATE AT THE END OF THE THEN CURRENT FISCAL YEAR. UPON TERMINATION 
OF THE LEASE, THE CERTIFICATES WILL BE PAYABLE SOLELY FROM MONEYS, IF ANY, HELD BY THE TRUSTEE 
UNDER THE DECLARATION OF TRUST, AND ANY AMOUNTS RESULTING FROM A SALE OR LEASE OF THE 
LEASED PROPERTY. THE OBLIGATION OF THE CITY TO MAKE BASIC RENT PAYMENTS DOES NOT CONSTITUTE 
A GENERAL, OBLIGATION OR INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CITY WITHIN THE MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR 
STATUTORY LIMITATION OR PROVISION, AND THE CITY DOES NOT PLEDGE ITS FULL FAITH AND CREDIT AND 
IS NOT OBLIGATED TO LEVY TAXES OR RESORT TO ANY OTHER MONEYS OF THE CITY TO PAY THE BASIC 
RENT PAYMENTS. 

The Certijicates are offered when, as and i f  aecuted and delivered by the Trustee, subject to the approval of their validity by 
Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Kansas City, Missouri, Special Counsel, as described herein. It is apected that the Certificates in definitive 
form will be available for delivery through the facilities of n e  Depository Trust Company in New York, New York, on or about June 
30, 201 0. 
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The date of this Official Statement is June 21,2010. 
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MATURITY SCHEDULE 

$1329.000 Series Certificates 

Principal Interest 
Yield Amount - Rate - Price - 
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609308 AA9 
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609308 AG6 
609308 AH4 
609308 AJO 
609308 AK7 
609308 AL5 
609308 AM3 
609308 AN1 
609308 AF'6 
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Term Certificates 

$600,000 6.50% Term Certificates due July 1,2030, Price loo%, CUSIP 609308 AR2 
$930,000 7.00% Term Certificates due July 1,2035, Price loo%, C U S P  609308 AS0 

(plus accrued interest, if any) 
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REGARDING USE OF THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

No dealer, broker, salesman or other person has been authorized by the City or the Underwriter to  give 
any information or to make any representations with respect to the Certificates other than those contained in 
this Official Statement, and, if given or made, such other information or representations must not be relied 
upon as having been authorized by any of the foregoing. This Official Statement does not constitute an offer 
to s e l l  or the solicitation of an offer to buy nor shall there be any sale of the Certificates by any person in any 
jurisdiction in which it is unlawful for such person to make such offer, solicitation or sale. The information set 
forth herein has been furnished by the City and other sources which are believed to be reliable, but such 
information is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness, and is not to be construed as a representation, by 
the Underwriter. The information and expressions of opinion herein are subject to change without notice and 
neither the delivery of this Official Statement nor any sale made hereunder shall, under any circumstances, 
create any implication that there has been no change in the affairs of the City since the date hereof. 

The Underwriter has reviewed the information in this Official Statement in accordance with, and as part 
of, its responsibilities to investors under the federal securities laws as applied to the facts and circumstances of 
this transaction, but the Underwriter does not guarantee the accuracy or completeness of that information. 

IN CONNECTION WITH THE OFFERING OF THE CERTIFICATES, THE 
UNDERWRITER MAY OVER ALLOT OR EFFECT TRANSACTIONS THAT STABILIZE OR 
MAINTAIN THE MARKET PRICE OF THE CERTIFICATES A T  A LEVEL ABOVE THAT WHICH 
M I G H T  OTHERWISE PREVAIL IN THE OPEN MARKET. SUCH STABILIZING, IF 
COMMENCED, MAY BE DISCONTINUED AT ANY TIME. 

THE CERTIFICATES HAVE NOT BEEN REGISTERED WITH THE UNITED STATES 
SECURITIES AND EXCHANGE COMMISSION UNDER THE SECURITIES ACT OF 1933, AS 
AMENDED, NOR HAS THE INDENTURE BEEN QUALIFIED UNDER THE TRUST INDENTURE 
A C T  OF 1939, AS AMENDED, IN RELIANCE UPON EXEMPTIONS CONTAINED IN SUCH ACTS. 
IN MAKING AN INVESTMENT DECISION INVESTORS MUST RELY ON THEIR OWN 
EXAMINATION OF THE CITY AND THE TERMS OF T H E  OFFERING, INCLUDING THE 
M E R I T S  AND RISKS INVOLVED. THESE CERTIFICATES HAVE NOT BEEN RECOMMENDED 
BY ANY FEDERAL OR STATE SECURITIES COMMISSION O R  REGULATORY BOARD. 
FURTHERMORE, THE FOREGOING AUTHORITIES HAVE NOT CONFIRMED THE 
ACCURACY OR DETERMINED THE ADEQUACY OF THIS DOCUMENT. ANY 
REPRESENTATION TO THE CONTRARY IS A CRIMINAL OFFENSE. 

CAUTIONARY STATEMENTS REGARDING FORWARD- 
LOOKING STATEMENTS IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

This Official Statement contains “forward-looking statements.” These forward-looking statements 
include statements about the City’s projections and future plans and strategies, and other statements that are 
not historical in nature. These forward-looking statements are based on the current expectations of the City. 
W h e n  used in this Official Statement, the words “estimate,” “intend,” “expect” and similar expressions are 
intended to identify forward-looking statements. Forward-looking statements involve future risks and 
uncertainties that could cause actual results and experience to differ materially from the anticipated results or 
other  expectations expressed in forward-looking statements. These future risks and uncertainties include those 
discussed in the “RISK FACTORS” section of this Official Statement. The City undertakes no obligation to 
update  any forward-looking statements contained in this Official Statement to reflect future events or 
developments. 
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OFFICIAL STATEMENT 

$2,859,000 
CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 

TAXABLE CERTIFICATES OF PARTICIPATION 
(RECOVERY ZONE ECONOMIC DEVELOPMENT BONDS) 

. Series 2010 

INTRODUCTION 

This introduction is only a brief description and summary of certain information contained in this 
Oflcial Statement and is qualified in its entirety by reference to more complete and detaiIed information 
contained in the entire Oficial Statement, including the cover page and appendices hereto, and the documents 
summarized or described herein. A full review should be made of the entire Oficial Statement. 

General 

This Official Statement, including the cover page and the appendices hereto (the “Official 
Statement”), is provided to h i s h  information with respect to the sale and delivery of .certificates of 
participation in the aggregate principal amount of $2,859,000 (the “Certificates”), representing the 
proportionate interests of the owners thereof (the “Certificate Owners”) in basic rent payments (the “Basic 
Rent Payments”) to be made by the City of Monett Missouri (the ”City”), as the rental payments and 
purchase price of the interest of UMB Bank, N.A., as lessor (the “Trustee”), in the hereinafter defmed Leased 
Property, pursuant to a Lease Purchase Agreement dated as of June 1, 2010 (the “Lease”), entered into 
between the Trustee and the City, as lessee. The Certificates are being .executed and delivered pursuant to a 
Declaration of Trust dated as of June 1,2010 (the “Declaration of Trust”), made by the Trustee. 

Plan of Financing 

The proceeds received from the sale of the Certificates will be used to (a) pay or reimburse the 
payment of a portion of the costs of improvements to the water portion of the City’s combined waterworks and 
sewerage system (the “System”), including primarily the installation of water lines (the “Project,” as more 
fully described under the caption “THE PROJECT AND THE LEASED PROPERTY” herein), and (b) pay 
certain costs related to the execution and delivery of the Certificates. 

The Certificates are payable solely fiom the Basic Rent Payments to be paid by the City under the 
Lease and to the extent received by the Trustee, net proceeds of certain insurance policies, condemnation 
awards and proceeds from the liquidation of interests in the Project. The obligation of the City to make 
payments under the Lease is limited to certain moneys of the City which its Commission appropriates annually 
from legally available funds. 

The leased property is comprised solely of water lines, fire hydrants, a well house with security 
fencing and other equipment and furnishings related to improvements t o  waterworks portion of the City’s 
System (the “Leased Property”). The water lines consist of approximately 20,100 linear feet o f  16 inch water 
line, 5,050 feet of 12 inch waterline and 700 linear feet of 36 inch waterline. The acquisition cost of the 
Leased Property (not including labor and professional services related to installation) is estimated by the City 
to be $2,371,080. The City currently intends to perform installation of the Leased Property with its own 
employees. The Trustee will retain a security interest in such personal property as security for the Certificate 
Owners, but will not have a lien on the real estate on which the equipment will be installed. 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, as defined in the Lease, the Trustee may enter the real 
estate and, if applicable, buildings in which the Leased Property is located and retake possession of the Leased 
Property or require the City, at the City’s expense, to promptly return any or all of such equipment to the 



possession of the Trustee at a place specified by the Trustee. The Trustee may sell or lease the Leased 
Property or, for the account of the City, sublease the Leased Property continuing to hold the City liable for the 
difference between (a) the Basic Rent Payments payable by the City under the Lease for the then current term, 
and (b) the net proceeds of any such sale, leasing or subleasing (after deducting all expenses of the Trustee in 
exercising its remedies under the Lease). Exercise of the remedies available to the Trustee may interfere with 
the City’s ability to operate certain portions of the waterworks portion of its System. Because the Trustee will 
not have a lien on the underlying real estate, however, the Trustee will not be able to foreclose on any real 
estate interest or exercise any of the remedies normally available to a mortgage trustee under a deed of trust. 
See “RISK FACTORS - Results of a Nonappropriation.” 

Neither‘the Certificates nor the Basic Rent Payments are obligations of the Trustee, and the Trustee 
has no liability or obligation under or with respect to the Certificates or the Basic Rent Payments. 

Under the Declaration of Trust, the Trustee will hold all of its estate, right, title and interest in the 
Lease for the benefit of the Certificate Owners. 

Annual Appropriation Lease 

THE CERTIFICATES, THE BASIC RENT PAYMENTS AND OTHER AMOUNTS DUE UNDER 
THE LEASE DO NOT CONSTITUTE AN OBLIGATION OF THE CITY IN ANY FISCAL YEAR 
SUBSEQUENT TO A FISCAL YEAR AS TO WHICH THE CITY HAS APPROPRIATED FUNDS TO PAY 
BASIC RENT PAYMENTS AND OTHER AMOUNTS REASONABLY ANTICIPATED TO COME DUE 
UNDER THE LEASE. IN THE EVENT THE CITY FAILS TO BUDGET, APPROPRIATE OR 
OTHERWISE PROVIDE FOR SUFFICIENT FUNDS TO PAY BASIC RENT PAYMENTS AND 
REASONABLY ANTICIPATED OTHER AMOUNTS TO COME DUE DURING THE IMMEDIATELY 
FOLLOWING FISCAL YEAR, THE LEASE WILL TERMINATE AT THE END OF THE THEN 
CURRENT FISCAL YEAR. UPON TERMINATION OF THE LEASE, THE CERTIFICATES WILL BE 
PAYABLE SOLELY FROM MONEYS, IF ANY, HELD BY THE TRUSTEE UNDER THE 
DECLARATION OF TRUST, AND ANY AMOUNTS RESULTING FROM A SALE OR LEASE OF THE 
LEASED PROPERTY. THE OBLIGATION OF THE CITY TO MAKE BASIC RENT PAYMENTS DOES 
NOT CONSTITUTE A GENERAL OBLIGATION OR INDEBTEDNESS OF THE CITY WITHIN THE 
MEANING OF ANY CONSTITUTIONAL OR STATUTORY LIMITATION OR PROVISION, AND THE 
CITY DOES NOT PLEDGE ITS FULL FAITH AND CREDIT AND IS NOT OBLIGATED TO LEVY 
TAXES OR RESORT TO ANY OTHER MONEYS OF THE CITY TO PAY THE BASIC RENT 
PAYMENTS. 

Sections 54AA, 14OOU-2 and 6431 of the Code, as amended by the American Recovery and 
Reinvestment Act of 2009 (the “Recovery Act”), authorize the issuance of  taxable bonds known as 
“Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds” to finance capital expenditures for certain “qualified” 
economic development purposes for which the City could otherwise issue tax-exempt bonds, and allow 
the City to elect to receive subsidy payments from the U.S. Treasury equal to 45% of the amount of 
interest payable on those bonds (the “Recovery Zone Subsidy Payments”). The City has designated its 
boundaries as a “Recovery Zone” under the Code, has received allocations from both Lawrence County, 
Missouri and Barry County, Missouri for the issuance of Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds 
and will designate the Certificates as Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds under the Code. The 
Recovery Zone Subsidy Payments for the Certificates will be.paid to the City; no holders of the 
Certificates will be entitled to any subsidy payment or tax credit. The receipt of the Recovery Zone 
Subsidy Payments by the City is subject to certain requirements, including the filing of a form with the 
Internal Revenue Service prior to each Interest Payment Date and compliance with federal tax law 
regarding the investment and use of the Certificate proceeds and use of the facilities financed with those 
proceeds. In addition, the Recovery Zone Subsidy Payments are not full faith and credit obligations of 
the United States and are subject to offset due to any amounts owed by the City to the U.S. Treasury. The 
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obligation of the City to make Basic Rent Payments is not contingent on whether it receives Recovery 
Zone Subsidy Payments. 

Financial Statements 

The financial statements of the City for fiscal year ended March 3 1, 2009, is included as Appendix €3 
hereto. These financial statements were audited by The CPA Group, P.C., Monett, Missouri, independent 
certified public accountants, to the extent and for the period indicated in their report which is also included in 
Appendix B.  

Continuing Disclosure Information 

Pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the City has agreed to provide to the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board, via the EMMA system, the audited financial statements and certain operating 
data of the City. The City has agreed to have updated financial information and operating data for the City 
available within 180 days after the end of each fiscal year of the City. The financial statements of the City are 
audited by the City’s independent certified public accountants. The City has also agreed to provide prompt 
notice of the occurrence of certain material events with respect to the Certificates. See Appendix D: 
“Summary of the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.” 

Definitions and Descriptions; Inspection of Documents 

Certain capitalized terms used in this Official Statement and not otherwise defined herein shall have 
the meanings given to such terms in Appendix D: “DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARIES OF CERTAIN 
PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS.” Summaries of the Lease and the Declaration of Trust are also included in  
Appendix D.  Such descriptions do not purport to be comprehensive or  definitive. All references herein to the 
Lease  and the Declaration of Trust are qualified in their entirety by reference to such documents, copies of 
which may be viewed at the principal corporate office of the Underwriter, 1010 Grand Blvd., 2nd Floor, Kansas 
City, Missouri 64106, (800) 821-2171, or will be provided by the Underwriter to any prospective purchaser 
requesting the same, upon payment by such prospective purchaser of  the cost of complying with such request. 
All references to the Certificates are qualified in their entirety by  the definitive terms thereof and the 
information with respect thereto included in the Lease and the Declaration of Trust. Information concerning 
the City has been supplied by the City, and has not been verified by  the Trustee, and the Trustee makes n o  
representation or warranty, express or implied, as to the accuracy or completeness of such infonhation. 

THE CERTIFICATES 

General Provisions 

The Certificates are dated as of their initial date of delivery, and will mature on July 1 in the amounts 
and in the years stated on the inside cover page hereof unless prepaid prior thereto (assuming no Event of 
Nonappropriation occurs). 

Payment of Basic Rent Payments and Prepayment Price 

The Certificates are payable in lawful money of the United States of America which at the time of 
payment is legal tender for the payment of public and private debt. The Certificates will be delivered in the 
denomination of $5,000 or any integral multiple thereof (provided that one Certificate may be in the amount of 
$1,000 or any multiple thereof). Each Certificate represents a proportionate interest in the Principal Portions 
and  Interest Portions of the Basic Rent Payments to be paid by the City to the Trustee for the benefit of the 
Certificate Owners. Principal Portions of Basic Rent Payments will be payable on July 1 in the years set forth 
on the  inside cover hereof. Interest Portions of Basic Rent Payments shall be payable semiannually on January 
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1 and July 1 of each year, beginning on J a n w  1, 201 1, to and including the date of maturity or prepayment, 
whichever is earlier. 

Under the Declaration of Trust, the Trustee is designated as the initial paying agent for the 
Certificates. Principal Portions of Basic Rent Payments represented by the Certificates shall be payable on the 
dates shown on the inside cover page hereof, upon presentation and surrender thereof at the principal office of 
the Trustee in Kansas City, Missouri (or such other office as may be designated by the Trustee). Interest 
Portions of Basic Rent Payments represented by the Certificates shall be payable by check or draft of the 
Trustee mailed to the Certificate Owners at the address of each Certificate Owner shown on the registration 
books maintained by the Trustee as of the close of business on the fifteenth day of the month next preceding 
each interest Payment Date, or at the written request of any Owner of Certificates in the aggregate Principal 
Portion of at least $500,000, by electronic transfer to the bank for credit to the ABA routing number and 
account number filed with the Trustee no later than 15 days prior to the record date. 

Prepayment 

Optional Prepayment. The Certificates maturing on July 1, 202 1, and thereafter, including portions 
thereof, shall be subject to prepayment by the Trustee, at the direction of the City, from amounts paid by the 
City upon the exercise of its option to purchase the Leased Property or  prepay the Basic Rent Payments 
pursuant to the terms of the Lease, on and after July 1,2020, in whole or in part at any time, in such order of 
maturity as shall be directed by the City, Certificates of less than a full maturity to be selected by the Trustee in 
such equitable manner as the Trustee may determine, at a Prepayment Price equal to 100% of the Principal 
Portion of the Basic Rent Payments represented by the Certificates being prepaid plus the Interest Portion of 
the Basic Rent Payments accrued thereon to the date of prepayment. 

Extraordinary Optional Prepayment. The Certificates shall be subject to extraordinary optional 
prepayment prior to their respective stated maturities, on any Payment Date, in whole but not in part, at the 
Principal Portion of Basic Rent Payments represented thereby plus the Interest Portion of Basic Rent Payments 
accrued to the prepayment date, without premium, in the event of substantial damage to or destruction or 
condemnation (other than condemnation by the City or any entity controlled by or otherwise affiliated with the 
City) of, or loss of title to, substantially all of the Leased Property, or if, as a result of changes in.the 
Constitution of Missouri or legislative or administrative action by the State of Missouri or the United States, 
the Lease becomes unenforceable, and the City purchases the Trustee’s interest in the Leased Property 
pursuant to the Lease, and is not repaired or replaced and the City purchases the Trustee’s interest in the. 
Leased Property pursuant to the Lease. 

Excess Proceeds Prepayment. -At the option of the City, amounts remaining in the Acquisition Fund 
established under the Declaration of Trust upon completion of the Project may be used to prepay Certificates, 
provided that the City has delivered to the Trustee an Acceptance Certificate as provided in the Lease and the 
Declaration of Trust. 

Mandatory Sinking Fund Prepayments. The Certificates maturing in the years 2030 and 2035 (the 
“Term Certificates”), are subject to mandatory prepayment prior to maturity pursuant to the Declaration of 
Trust at a prepayment price of 100% of the Principal Portion of Basic Rent Payments represented thereby plus 
the Interest Portion of Basic Rent Payments accrued thereon to the prepayment date. Basic Rent Payments 
which are to be paid to the Trustee and deposited into the Lease Revenue Fund are required to be sufficient to 
prepay, and the City must prepay, on July 1 in each of the following years, the following Principal Portion of 
Basic Rent Payments represented by such Term Certificates: 



Term Certificates 
Maturing 7/1/2030 

- Year Principal 
2026 $1 10,000 
2027 115,000 
2028 ' 120,000 
2029 -1 25,000 
2030* 130,000 

Term Certificates 
Maturing 7/1/2035 

Year Principal 
203 1 $130,000 
2032 135,000 
2033 140,000 
2034 150,000 
2035* 375,000 

* FinalMaturity 

At its option, to be exercised on or before the 45th day next preceding any mandatory prepayment 
date, the City may: (1) deliver to the Trustee for cancellation Term Certificates in any aggregate principal 
amount desired; or (2) furnish the Trustee funds, together with appropriate instructions, for the purpose of 
purchasing any of said Certificates from any Owner thereof, whereupon the Trustee shall expend such funds 
for such purpose to such extent as may be practical; or (3) receive a credit with respect to the mandatory 
prepayment obligation of the Trustee pursuant to the Declaration of Trust for any Term Certificates which 
prior to such date have been prepaid (other than through the operation of the requirements of the Declaration of 
Trust) and cancelled by the Trustee and not theretofore applied as a credit against any prepayment obligation 
pursuant to the Declaration of Trust. Each Term Certificate so delivered or previously purchased or prepaid 
shall be credited at 100% of the principal amount thereof on the obligation of the Trustee to prepay Term 
Certificates of the same series and payment date on such prepayment date, and any excess of such amount shall 
be credited on future mandatory prepayment obligations for Term Certificates of the same series and payment 
date in chronological order, and the principal amount of Terrg Certificates of the same series and payment date 
to be prepaid by operation of the requirements of the Declaration of Trust shall be accordingly reduced. If the 
City intends to exercise any option granted by the provisions of clauses (l), (2) or (3) above, the City will, on 
or  before the 45th day next preceding each mandatory prepayment date, furnish the Trustee a certificate signed 
by the Authorized City Representative indicating to what extent the provisions of said clauses (l), (2), and (3) 
are to be complied with in respect to such mandatory prepayment. 

Notice of Prepayment. Unless otherwise provided in the Declaration of Trust, notice of prepayment 
shall be given by the Trustee, not less than 30 days nor more than 60 days prior to the prepayment date, to the 
City and the Owner of each Certificate affected at the address shown on the registration books of the Registrar 
on the date such notice is mailed. Each notice of prepayment shall state the prepayment date, the place of 
prepayment, the prepayment price of the Certificates to be prepaid. Such notice shall also state that the Interest 
Portion of the Basic Rent Payments represented by the Certificates designated for prepayment shall cease to 
accrue from and after such prepayment date and that on said date the prepayment price will become due and 
payable on each of said Certificates. 

The Trustee is also directed to comply with any mandatory standards then in effect for processing 
prepayments of municipal securities established by the Securities and Exchange Commission. Failure to 
comply with such standards shall not affect or invalidate the prepayment of any Certificate to be prepaid. 

Eflect of Prepayment. Notice of prepayment having been duly given as aforesaid, and funds sufficient 
for payment of the prepayment price of such Certificates being held by the Trustee, on the prepayment date 
designated in such notice, the Certificates so called for prepayment shall become due and payable at the 
prepayment price specified in such notice and the Interest Portion of Basic Rent Payments represented by the 
Certificates so called for prepayment shall cease to accrue, said Certificates shall cease to be entitled to any 
benefit or security under the Declaration of Trust and the Owners of  such Certificates shall have no rights in 
respect thereof except to receive payment of the prepayment price. 
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SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE CERTIFICATES 

Limited Obligations 

The Certificates, the Basic Rent Payments and other amounts due under the Lease do not constitute an 
obligation of the City in any Fiscal Year subsequent to a Fiscal Year as to which the City has appropriated 
funds to pay Basic Rent Payments and other amounts reasonably anticipated to come due under the Lease. In 
the event the City fails to budget, appropriate or otherwise provide for sufficient funds to pay Basic Rent 
Payments and reasonably anticipated other amounts to come due during the immediately following Fisfal 
Year, the Lease will terminate at the end of the then current Fiscal Year. 

Upon termination of the Lease, the Certificates will be payable solely from moneys, if any, held by the 
Trustee under the Declaration of Trust, and any amounts resulting from a sale or subleasing of the Trustee’s 
leasehold interest in the Leased Property pursuant to the Lease and the Declaration of Trust. The obligation of 
the City to pay Basic Rent Payments and, thus, the Certificates, is limited to payment from Available Revenues 
(see “Available Revenues - Unconditional Obligations” below), shall constitute a current expense of the 
City and shall not be a debt of the City in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory limitation 
or requirement concerning the creation of indebtedness by the City, and shall not constitute a pledge of the 
general tax revenues, funds, properties or moneys of the City beyond any then current Fiscal Year during 
which the Lease is in effect. The City is not obligated to levy any taxes in order to raise revenues to make 
Basic Rent Payments. The City agrees to deliver notice to the Trustee of such termination at least 90 days 
prior to the end of the then current Fiscal Year, but failure to give such notice shall not extend the term beyond 
such Fiscal Year. The Lease also provides that Basic Rent Payments will be made directly to the Trustee. 

To secure the payment of all of the City’s obligations under the Lease, the Trustee has retained a 
security interest in the Leased Property, which consists solely of personal property (equipment) being installed 
to improve the waterworks portion of the City’s System. See the caption “THE PROJECT AND THE 
LEASED PROPERTY” herein. 

Neither the Certificates nor the Basic Rent Payments are obligations of the Trustee, and the Trustee 
has no obligation to make any payment with respect to the Certificates or the Lease. 

Available Revenues - Unconditional Obligations 

The City is obligated only to pay periodic payments under the Lease as may be lawfully made from all 
Available Revenues. “Available Revenues” means amounts budgeted and appropriated by the City from 
funds of City that are legally available to pay Rent during such Fiscal Year, plus all moneys and investments, 
including earnings thereon, held by the Trustee pursuant to the Declaration of Trust. 

The Lease provides that the City’s obligation to make the Basic Rent Payments is absolute and 
unconditional, subject to and dependent upon annual appropriations being made by the City for such purpose, 
and that after such appropriation each Basic Rent Payment is payable without any right of set-off or 
counterclaim. The City has covenanted that it will do all things lawfully within its power to obtain and 
maintain funds from which Basic Rent Payments may be paid, including making provision for such payments 
to the extent necessary in each proposed budget or appropriation request submitted for adoption in accordance 
with applicable provisions of law and to exhaust all available reviews and appeals in the event such portion of 
the budget or appropriation request is not approved. Notwithstanding the foregoing, the decision to budget and 
appropriate funds will be made in accordance with the City’s normal procedures for such decisions by the then 
current governing body of the City. See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF PAYMENT FOR THE 
CERTIFICATES - Nonappropriation. ” 
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Anticipated Sources of Repayment 

In November, 2008 Allgeier, Martin and Associates, Inc., an engineering iirm in Joplin, Missouri, 
delivered a Water System Comprehensive Plan report to the City. The study identified $13,300,000 of needed 
improvements to the waterworks portion of the City’s System and a water rate increase necessary to fund the 
improvements. The total rate increase recommended by the study of $1.23/1,000 gallons has been approved by 
the City Commissioners, including a $.40 increase that became effective June 1,2009, another $.40 increase that 
became effective April 1,2010 and a further $.43 increase that is scheduled to become effective April 1,201 1. 
The improvements to be funded by proceeds of the Certificates are a portion of  the $13,300,000 of improvements 
identified by the study. - 

Based on projected debt service and increased operation and maintenance expenses necessitated by the 
identified improvements, the rate increases were designed to generate approximately $1,255,000 in additional 
revenue for the City based on 2007 usage. 2010 usage is estimated by the City to be 1,080,000,000 gallons, a 
5.9% increase. Based on these numbers, for FY 2011 (the first year that the rate increase will be fully 
implemented) the rate increase would result in an additional $1,328,400 of revenue from water user fees. Debt 
service in the study was projected based on potential participation by the City in the Missouri State Revolving 
Fund program, which would likely result in lower effective interest rates than other fmancing sources because of 
subsidies provided by the program. The revenues of the City’s System are subject to a prior pledge for 
repayment of revenue bonds: For additional information about the City’s water system and existing revenue bond 
debt, see “APPENDIX A - DEBT STRUCTURE OF THE CITY” and “- THE WATERWORKS 
PORTION OF THE CITY’S SYSTEM.” 

For these reasons, there can be no assurance that the rate increases will be sufficient to fund necessary 
improvements’to the City’s system, operation expenses, existing debt service, the Basic Rent Payments and other 
obligations of the City. Such funds are not pledged to the payment of Basic Rental Pavments and are subiect to 
annual appropriation by the Citv as described herein. 

Nonappropriation 
I 

The Lease Term shall continue into the next Fiscal Year, at the option of the City, only if there is an 
appropriation made by the City from which to pay Basic Rent Payments and all other amounts payable by the 
City under the Lease. 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Nonappropriation, the City’s obligation to make Basic Rent 
Payments and other payments under the Lease shall terminate as of the end of the last Fiscal Year for which 
the City has appropriated Basic Rent Payments. If an Event of Nonappropriation occurs, or upon the 
occurrence of an Event of Default under the Declaration of Trust, the Trustee may take possession of the 
Leased Property, in which event the City shall take all actions necessary to authorize, execute and deliver to 
the Trustee all documents necessary to vest in the Trustee for the remainder of the Trustee’s leasehold term, all 
of the City’s interest in and to the Leased Property. The Trustee may then terminate the Lease and lease the 
Leased Property or sell its interest therein. Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default or upon the occurrence 
of an Event of Nonappropriation, the Trustee may accelerate the maturity of all Certificates then Outstanding. 
See “DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARIES OF CERTAIN PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS - Summary of the 
Lease - Events of Default,” and “- Remedies on Default” in Appendix D and “RISK FACTORS” herein. 

THE TRUSTEE 

The Trustee is not liable for the payment of Basic Rent Payments, and the Owners have no right to 
look to the Trustee for any payments of the Certificates or for any other payments other than from funds held 
under the Declaration of Trust. 
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RISK FACTORS 

AN INVESTMENT IN THE CERTIFICATES INVOLVES A DEGREE OF RISK, INCLUDING 

CERTIFICATES IS ENCOURAGED TO READ THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT IN ITS ENTIRETY, AND 
TO GIVE PARTICULAR ATTENTION TO THE FACTORS DESCRIBED BELOW WHICH, AMONG 
OTHERS, COULD AFFECT THE PAYMENT OF PRINCLPAL OF OR INTEREST ON THE 
CERTIFICATES, AND WHICH COULD ALSO AFFECT THE MARKET PRICE OF THE CERTIFICATES 
TO A N  EXTENT THAT CANNOT BE DETERMINED. THIS DISCUSSION OF RISK FACTORS IS NOT, 
A N D  IS NOT INTENDED TO BE, EXHAUSTIVE. 

THE RISK FACTORS DESCRIBED BELOW. EACH PROSPECTIVE INVESTOR IN THE 

Nonappropriation 

The Certificates, the Basic Rent Payments and other amounts due under the Lease do not constitute an 
obligation of the City in any Fiscal Year subsequent to a Fiscal Year as to which the City has appropriated 
funds to pay Basic Rent Payments and other amounts reasonably anticipated to come due under the Lease. In  
the event the City fails to budget, appropriate or otherwise provide for sufficient funds to pay Basic Rent 
Payments and reasonably anticipated other amounts to come due during the immediately following Fiscal 
Year, the Lease will terminate at the end of the then current Fiscal Year. Upon termination of the Lease, the 
Certificates will be payable solely from moneys, if any, held by the Trustee under the Declaration of Trust, and 
any amounts resulting from a sale or sublease of the Leased Property pursuant to the Lease and the Declaration 
of Trust .  The obligation of the City to pay Basic Rent Payments and, thus, the Certificates, is limited to 
payment from Available Revenues (as defined herein), shall constitute a current expense of the City and shall 
not b e  a debt of the City in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory limitation or requirement 
concerning the creation of indebtedness by the City, and shall not constitute a pledge of the general tax 
revenues, funds, properties or moneys of the City beyond any then current Fiscal Year during which the Lease 
is in effect. The City is not obligated to levy any taxes in order to raise revenues to  make Basic Rent 

g Payments. 

The City’s obligations under the Lease to make Basic Rent Payments may be terminated on an annual 
basis by the City without any penalty, and there is no assurance that the City will budget funds for such 
purpose. Accordingly, the likelihood that there will be sufficient funds to pay the principal of, premium, if any, 
and interest on the Certificates is dependent upon certain factors which are beyond the control of the 
Certificate Owners, including (a) the continuing need of the City for the Project, (b) the ability of the City to 
generate sufficient funds from the waterworks portion of its System (See “SECURITY AND SOURCES OF 
REPAYMENT’FOR TEE CERTIFICATES - Expected Sources of Repayment.”), and other sources to 
pay obligations associated with the Lease and other obligations of the City, and (c) the ability of the Trustee to 
lease the Leased Property or sell its interest therein, in the event of a termination of the Lease by reason of an 
Event  of Nonappropriation or an Event of Default. 

Results of a Nonappropriation 

An “Event of Nonappropriation” occurs if the City fails to budget, appropriate or otherwise provide 
for sufficient funds to pay Basic Rent Payments and reasonably anticipated Supplemental Rent to come due 
during the immediately following Fiscal Year. I f  an Event of Nonappropriation occurs, the Lease shall be 
deemed terminated at the end of then current Original Term or Renewal Term. See “DEFINITIONS AND 
SUIMMARIES OF CERTAIN PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS - Summary of the Lease - Events of 
Default,” and “-Remedies on Default” in Appendix D for a discussion of the results of an Event of 
Nonappropriation. 

Upon termination of the Lease, the Trustee may take possession of or sell its interest in the Leased 
Property. The net proceeds received from such sale, together with other moneys then held by the Trustee under 
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the Declaration of Trust (with certain-exceptions as provided in the Lease and the Declaration of Trust), are 
required to be used to pay the Certificates, to the extent of such moneys. 

The Leased Property consists of certain personal property installed to improve the waterworks portion 
of the City’s System. The Leased Property is owned by the Trustee and leased to the.City. See “THE 
PROJECT A N D  THE LEASED PROPERTYn herein. 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default under the Lease which includes an Event of 
Nonappropriation, the-Trbtee may terminate the Lease or, with or without terminating the Lease, enter the 
property where the Leased Property is located and retake possession of the Leased Property or require the City 
at the City’s expense to promptly return any or all of such equipment to the possession of the Trustee at a place 
specified by the Trustee. The Trustee may sell or lease the Leased Property or, for the account of the City, 
sublease the Leased Property continuing to hold the City liable for the difference between (a) the Basic Rent 
Payments payable by the City under the Lease for then current term, and (b) the net proceeds of any such sale, 
leasing or subleasing (after deducting all expenses of the Trustee in exercising its remedies under the Lease). 
Exercise of the remedies available to the Trustee may interfere with the City’s ability to operate certain 
portions of’the waterworks portion of its System. Because the Trustee will not have a lien on the underlying 
real es,tate, however, the Trustee will not be able to foreclose on any real estate interest or exercise any of the 
remedies normally available to a mortgage trustee under a deed of trust. 

It will likely not be possible to lease the Leased Property to a third party for rentals which (i) would 
produce an amount equal to the aggregate principal amount of Certificates then outstanding plus accrued 
interest thereon and (ii) would prevent a default within a short time period in the timely payment of debt 
service on the Certificates. There can be no assurance the proceeds of any such lease or sale would be applied 
to the payment of the Certificates, as the same may be subject to the completing claims of other creditors of the 
City in the event of bankruptcy or liquidations. See “DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARIES OF CERTAIN 
PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS - Summary of the Lease - Remedies on Default” in Appendix D hereto. 

DUE TO THE NATURE OF THE LEASED PROPERTY, A POTENTIAL PURCHASER OF THE 
CERTIFICATES SHOULD ASSUME THAT IT WILL NOT BE POSSIBLE FOR THE TRUSTEE TO SELL 
ITS INTEREST IN THE LEASED PROPERTY, AFTER A TERMINATION OF THE LEASE AT ALL OR, 
IF SOLD, FOR AN AMOUNT EQUAL TO THE AGGREGATE PRINCIPAL AMOUNT REPRESENTED 
BY THE CERTIFICATES THEN OUTSTANDING PLUS ACCRUED INTEREST REPRESENTED ’ 

THEREBY. 

Recovery of Leased Property 

Due to the nature of the Leased Property, the Trustee may incur substantial expense in recovering the 
Leased Property and making it suitable for lease or sale; much of the Leased Property (particularly the water 
lines) may not be suitable for lease or sale even if it is recovered. Moreover, no  assurance can be given that 
the Trustee could lease or sell the Leased Property for the amount necessary (after taking into account money 
legally available fiom other sources) to pay in full the Principal Portions and Interest Portions of Basic Rent 
then due with respect to the Certificates. Furthermore, no assurance can be given that the amount, if any, 
realized upon any lease or sale of the Equipment will be available to provide for the payment of the 
Certificates on a timely basis. 

Possible Insufficiency of Casualty Insurance Proceeds 

The Leased Property is to be insured by policies of casualty and property damage or self-insurance as 
described in “TEE LEASE AGREEMENT - Insurance” herein. In the event of damage to or destruction of 
the Leased Property, the Net Proceeds fiom such insurance policies or certain other sources may not be 
sufficient to repair or replace the Leased Property. 
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Inability to Liquidate 

The enforceability of the Certificates and the Lease is subject to applicable bankruptcy laws, equitable 
principles affecting the enforcement of creditors rights generally and liens securing such rights, and the police 
powers of the State and its political subdivisions. Because of the limited use of the Leased Property and the 
delays inherent in obtaining the remedies involving such property, a potential purchaser of the Certificates 
should not anticipate that remedies could be accomplished rapidly, if at all. Any delays in the ability o f  the 
Trustee to exercise its remedies under the Lease or  the Declaration of Trust may result in the payment of the 
Certificates or nonpayment of the Certificates. 

Debt Service Reserve Fund 

At the time of delivery of the Certificates, the Debt Service Reserve Fund will be funded in an amount 
equal to $220,000 (the “Debt Service Reserve Requirement”). There can be no assurance that the amounts on 
deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund will be available if needed for payment of the Certificates in the full 
amount of the Debt Service Reserve Requirement because (1) of fluctuations in the market value of the 
securities deposited therein andor (2) if funds are transferred to the Lease Revenue Fund, sufficient revenues 
may not be available or appropriated to replenish the Debt Service Reserve Fund to the Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement. 

Secondary Market Not Established 

There is no established secondary market for the Certificates, and there is no assurance that a 
secondary market will develop for the purchase and sale of the Certificates. 

Federal Subsidy Payment 

The City intends to elect to designate the Certificates as Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds 
for -the purposes of the Internal Revenue Code and to receive a cash subsidy payment from the United States 
Treasury equal to 45% of the interest payable on the Certificates (the “Interest Subsidy Payments”). The Interest 
Subsidy Payments from the U.S. Treasury will be made directly to the City and are not security for the payment 
of principal of or interest on the Certificates. 

The priority of the U.S. Treasury making the Interest Subsidy Payments is the same as the U.S. 
Treasury refunding overpayments of tax, and the U.S. Internal Revenue Service may offset all or a portion of 
one or more Interest Subsidy Payments against any outstanding tax liability of the City, including unpaid 
federal payroll taxes, debts owed to other federal agencies, and other federal taxes due. Failure to receive 
Interest Subsidy Payments shall not result in any abatement, diminution, deduction, setoff or defense to the 
City’s obligation to pay Basic Rent Payments and to perform and observe the other covenants and agreements 
in the Lease. Receipt of the Interest Subsidy Payments is subject to the City filing an IRS Form 8038-CP. The 
failure by the City to file Form 8038-CP could reduce or eliminate the amount of Interest Subsidy Payments 
paid to the City. Furthermore the Interest Subsidy Payments are payable under current law and there is no 
assurance that hture change in the law would not reduce or eliminate the Interest Subsidy Payments. 

. 

Risk of Audit 

The Internal Revenue Service has established an ongoing program to audit obligations designated as 
Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds to determine the legitimacy of the tax status of such 
obligations. No assurance can be given that the Internal Revenue Service will not commence an audit of the 
Certificates. Owners of the Certificates are advised that, if an audit of the Certificates were commenced, in 
accordance with its current published procedures, the Internal Revenue Service is likely to  treat the City as the ~ 

taxpayer, and the Owners of the Certificates may not have a right to participate in such audit. Public 
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awareness of any audit could adversely affect the market value and liquidity of the Certificates during the 
pendency of the audit, regardless of the ultimate outcome of the audit. 

Prior Pledge of Water Revenues 
. .  

The City currently intends to pay Basic Rent Payments from available moneys from the waterworks 
portion of its Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System. Such revenues are subject to a prior pledge of 
revenues to pay operating expenses of the System and debt service on System revenue bonds previously issued 
by the City. The City also anticipates financing additional improvements in the future. While the City has 
implemented and increase in its rates and charges for the water system, there can be no assurance that the 
revenues derived fiom the waterworks portion of the System will be sufficient to fund existing debt service 
obligations, the Basic Rent Payments, operation of the System, future projects and other City obligations. 

’ 

THE PROJECT AND THE LEASED PROPERTY 

The Project 

- The proceeds of the Certificates will be used to pay or reimburse (a) a portion of the costs of the 
acquisition’ of the Leased Property and .related professional fees and installation costs (the “Project”), and 
(b) certain costs related to the execution and delivery of the Lease and the Certificates. 

. The City anticipates that the Project will be completed by December 3 1,20 1 1. 

The Leased Property 

The Leased Property is comprised solely of water lines, fire hydrants, a well house with security 
fencing and other equipment and furnishings related to improvements to waterworks portion of the City’s 
System. The water lines consist of approximately 20,100 linear feet of 16 inch water line, 5,050 feet of 12 
inch waterline and 700 linear feet of 36 inch waterline. The acquisition cost of the Leased Property (not 
including labor and professional services related to installation) is estimated by the City to be $2,371,080. The 
City currently intends to perform installation of the Leased Property with its own employees. 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, as defined in the Lease, the Trustee may enter the 
property where the Leased Property is located and retake possession of the Leased Property or require the City, 
at the City’s expense, to promptly return any or all of such equipment to the possession of the Trustee at a 
place specified by the Trustee. The Trustee may sell or lease the Leased Property or, for the account of the 
City, sublease the Leased Property continuing to hold the City liable for the difference between (a)-the Basic 
Rent Payments payable by the City under the Lease for the then current term, and (b) the net proceeds of any 
such sale, leasing or subleasing (after deducting all expenses of the Trustee in  exercising its remedies under the 
Lease). See “RISK FACTORS” herein. 

[remainder of this page intentionally left blank] 
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ESTIMATED SOURCES AND USES OF FUNDS 

The sources and application of funds in connection with the execution of the Certificates are, based 
upon certain assumptions regarding the investment of such funds, as follows: 

Source of Funds: 
Principal Amount of the Certificates .............................................................. $2,859,000.00 

24,064.84 
$2.883.064.84 

Contribution from the City ............................................................................. 
Total Sources of Funds .......................................................................................... 

Uses of Funds: 
Acquisition Fund ............................................................................................ $2,581,820.00 
Reserve Fund .................................................................................................. 220,000.00 
Costs of Issuance, including Underwriter’s Discount .................................... 81.244.84 

Total Uses.ofFunds .............................................................................................. $2.88 3.064.84 

TAX MATTERS 

The following is a summary of the material Federal and State of Missouri income tax consequences of 
holding and disposing of the Certificates. This summary is based upon laws, regulations, rulings and  judicial 
decisions now in effect, all of which are subject to change (possibly on a retroactive basis). This summary 
does not discuss all aspects of Federal income taxation that may be relevant to investors in light of their 
personal investment circumstances or describe the tax consequences to certain types of owners subject to 
special treatment under the Federal income tax laws f o r  example, dealers in securities or other persons who 
do n o t  hold the CertiJcates as a capital asset, tax-exempt organizations, individual retirement accounts and 
other tax deferred accounts, and foreign taxpayers), and, except for the income tax laws of t he  State of 
Missouri, does not discuss the consequences to an owner under any state, local or foreign tax laws. The 
summaly does not deal with the tax treatment of persons who purchase the Certificates in the secondary 
market at a premium or a discount. Prospective investors are advised to consult their own tax advisors 
regarding Federal, state, local and other tax considerations of holding and disposing of the Certificates. 

Opinion of Special Counsel Regarding the Certificates 

Missouri Tax Exemption. In the opinion of Special Counsel, under existing law, the stated Interest 
Portion of Basic Rent Payments paid by the City and distributed to the registered owners of the  Certificates is 
exempt fiom income taxation by the State of Missouri. 

Federal Tax Status of Certificates as Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds; Interest Taxable 

Election. The City will elect to treat the Certificates as qualified “Recovery Zone Economic 
Development Bonds” under Sections 54AA and 14OOU-2 of the Code and will receive a direct payment from 
the U.S. Treasury equal to a portion of the interest payable on the Certificates. 

Interest Portion of Basic Rent Payments Taxable. The Interest Portion of Basic Rent Payments paid 
by the City and distributed to the registered owners of the Certificates will be included in gross income for 
Federal income tax purposes. 

No Opinion. Special Counsel is not rendering any opinion to owners of the Certificates regarding the 
qualification of.the Certificates as Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds or the treatment of the 
Interest Portion of Basic Rent Payments paid by the City and distributed to the registered owners of the 
Certificates for Federal income taxation. Purchasers of Certificates should consult their tax advisors as to the 
applicability of these tax consequences and other Federal income tax consequences of the purchase, ownership 
and disposition of the Certificates, including the possible application of state, local, foreign and other tax laws. 
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Federal Income Tax Consequences to Owners of the Certificates 

TO ENSURE COMPLIANCE WITH TREASURY DEPARTMENT CIRCULAR 230, OWNERS OF 
THE CERTIFICATES ARE HEREBY NOTIFIED THAT: (A) ANY DISCUSSION OF FEDERAL TAX 
ISSUES IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT RELATING TO THE CERTIFICATES IS NOT INTENDED 
OR WRITTEN TO BE RELIED UPON, AND CANNOT BE RELIED UPON, BY OWNERS OF THE 
CERTLFICATES FOR THE PURPOSE OF AVOIDING PENALTIES THAT MAY BE IMPOSED ON 
THOSE OWNERS UNDER THE INTERNAL REVENUE CODE; (B) THE DISCUSSION OF FEDERAL 
TAX ISSUES IN THIS OFFICIAL STATEMENT RELATING TO THE CERTIFICATES WAS WRITTEN 
IN CONNECTION WITH THE PROMOTION OR MARKETING OF THOSE CERTIFICATES; AND 
(C)OWNERS OF THE CERTIFICATES SHOULD SEEK ADVICE FROM AN INDEPENDENT TAX 
ADVISOR BASED ON THEIR PARTICULAR CIRCUMSTANCES. 

Other Federal Income Tax Consequences Applicable to Owners of Certificates 

Sale or Exchange. Upon the sale, exchange or retirement (including redemption) of a Certificate, an 
owner of the Certificate generally will recognize gain or loss in an amount equal to the difference between the 
amount of cash and the fair market value of any property received on the sale, exchange or retirement of the 
Certificate (other than in respect of accrued and unpaid interest) and the owner’s adjusted tax basis in the 
Certificate. To the extent the Certificates are held as a capital asset, the gain or loss will be capital gain or loss 
and will be long-term capital gain or loss if the Certificate has been held for more than 12 months at the time 
of sale, exchange or retirement. 

Information Reporting and Backup Withholding. In general, information reporting requirements 
will apply to certain payments of principal, interest and premium paid on the Certificates, and to the proceeds 
paid on the sale of Certificates, other than certain exempt recipients (such as corporations and foreign entities). 
A backup withholding tax will apply to these payments if the owner fails to provide a taxpayer identification 
number or certification of foreign or other exempt status or fails to report in full dividend and interest income. 
The amount of any backup withholding fiom a payment to an owner will be allowed as a credit against the 
owner’s Federal income tax liability. 

LEGAL MATTERS 

Legal Proceedings 

As of the date hereof, there is no controversy, suit or other proceeding of any kind pending or 
threatened wherein or whereby any question is raised or may be raised, questioning, disputing or affecting in 
any way the legal organization of the City or its boundaries, or the right or title of any of its officers to their 
respective offices, or the legality of any official act in connection with the authorization, issuance and sale of 
the Lease or the Certificates, or the constitutionality or validity of the Lease or any of the proceedings had in 
relation to the authorization, issuance or sale thereof. 

Approval of Legality 

Legal matters incident to the authorization, issuance and sale of the Lease and the Certificates are 
subject to the approving legal opinion of Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Kansas City, Missouri, Special Counsel. The 
form of opinion of Special Counsel is attached hereto as Appendix E.  Certain matters relating to this Official 
Statement will also be passed upon by Special Counsel. 
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RATING 

Standard & Poor’s, a division of The McGraw-Hill Companies, Inc. (“S&P’) has given the 
Certificates the rating shown on the cover page of this Official Statement. Such rating reflects only the view of 
S&P, and any further explanation of the significance of such rating may be obtained only from the rating agency. 
The rating does not constitute a recommendation by the rating agency to buy, sell or hold any bonds or other 
obligations, including the Certificates. There is no assurance that any rating when assigned to the Certificates 
will continue for any period of time or that it will not be revised or withdrawn. A revision or withdrawal of the 
rating when assigned to the Certificates may have an adverse affect on the market price of the Certificates. 

MISCELLANEOUS 

Underwriting 

UMB Bank, N.A. (the “Underwriter”) has agreed, subject to certain conditions, to purchase the 
Certificates from the City at a price of $2,833,955.16 (equal to the principal amount of the Certificates, minus 
an underwriting discount of $25,044.84), plus accrued interest thereon from the date of the Certificates to the 
date of payment and delivery. The Underwriter is purchasing the Certificates from the City for resale in the 
normal course of the Underwriter’s business activities. The Underwriter will sell certain of  the Certificates at a 
pr ice  greater than such purchase price, as shown on the cover hereof. The Underwriter reserves the right to 
offer  any of the Certificates to one or more purchasers on such terms and conditions and at such price or prices 
as the Underwriter, in its discretion, shall determine. 

The Underwriter has read and participated in the preparation of certain portions of this Official 
Statement and has supervised the compilation and editing thereof. The Underwriter has not, however, 
independently verified the factual and financial information contained in this Official Statement and, 
accordingly, expresses no view as to the sufficiency or accuracy thereof. 

Certain Relationships 

Gilmore & Bell, P.C., Special Counsel to the City, has represented the Underwriter in transactions 
unrelated to the delivery of the Lease and the Certificates, but is not representing the Underwriter in 
connection with the delivery of the Lease and the Certificates. 

Continuing Disclosure 

Pursuant to a Continuing Disclosure Undertaking, the City has agreed to provide to the Municipal 
Securities Rulemaking Board, via the EMMA system, the audited financial statements and certain operating 
data of the City. The City has agreed to have updated financial information and operating data for the City 
available within 180 days after the end of each fiscal year of the City. The financial statements of the City are 
audited by the City’s independent certified public accountants. The City has also agreed to provide prompt 
notice of the occurrence of certain material events with respect to the Certificates. See Appendix D: 
“Summary of the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking.” The City has not failed to file on a timely basis 
any annual report required by any previous continuing disclosure undertaking made by the City. 

Certification and Other Matters Regarding Official Statement 

Information set forth in this Official Statement has been h i s h e d  or reviewed by certain officials of 
the City, certified public accountants as stated in their report included in AppendkB, and other sources, as 
referred to herein, which are believed to be reliable. Any statements made in this Official Statement involving 
matters of opinion, estimates or projections, whether or not so expressly stated, are set forth as such and not as 
representations of fact, and no representation is made that any of the estimates or projections will be realized. 
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Simultaneously with the delivery of the Certificates, the Mayor of the City, acting on behalf of the 
City, will furnish to the Underwriter a certificate which shall state, among other things, that to the best 
knowledge and belief of such officer, this Official Statement (and any amendment or supplement hereto) as of 
the date of sale and as of the date of delivery of the Certificates does not contain any untrue statement of a 
material fact or omit to state a material fact required to be stated therein or necessary to make the statements 
herein, in light of the circumstances under which they were made, not misleading in any material respect. 

The -form of this Official Statement, and its distribution and use by the Underwriter, has been 
approved by the City. Neither the City nor any of its officers, directors or employees, in either their official or 
personal capacities; has made any warranties, representations or guarantees regarding the financial condition of 
the City or the City’s ability to make payments required of it; and further, neither the City nor its officers, 
directors or employees assumes any duties, responsibilities or obligations in relation to the issuance of the 
Certificates other than those either expressly or by fair implication imposed on the City by the Lease. 

Additional Information 

Additional information regarding the City or the Certificates may be obtained from the City, Dennis 
Pyle, City Administrator, P.O. Box 110, Monett, Missouri 65708 (417-235-3763) or from the Underwriter, 
UklB Bank, N.A., Attention: Philip Richter, 1010 Grand Blvd., 2nd Floor, Kansas City, Missouri 64106, (816) 
860- 1526. 
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THE CITY 

General 

The City is a third-class city and political subdivision, duly created and existing under the laws of the 
S ta t e  of Missouri. Additional information regarding the City and the Project may be obtained fiom Dennis Pyle, 
City Administrator, City of Monett, City Hall, 217 5th Street, Monett, Missouri 65708, (417) 235-3355. The City 
is approximately nine square miles in area and is located on the county line of Lawrence and Barry counties, 42 
mi l e s  southwest of Springfield, Missouri, and 39 miles southeast of Joplin and less than one hour’s drive to lakes 
and m j o r  recreational areas. The current estimated population of the City as of July 2008 was 8,939. 

The City operates under a Mayor-Board of Commission form of government. Policy-making and 
legislative authority are vested in a governing council consisting of the mayor and two commissioners. The 
governing council is responsible for, among other things, passing ordinances, adopting the budget, appointing 
comxnittees and appointing the heads of various departments. The various departments are responsible for 
carrying out the policies and ordinances of the goveming council and for overseeing the day-to-day operations of 
the government. Council members serve four-year terms that expire in April of 2012. . 

The Mayor presides over meetings of the goveming council. The governing council establishes utility 
and tax rates and authorizes all municipal indebtedness. Tax rates are established by the goveming council to 
support the budget adopted. As required by state law, the aggregate City budget may not include any 
expenditures in excess of anticipated revenues. The City’s fiscal year ends on March 3 1. 

Municipal Services and Utilities 

The City provides a full range of services normally associated with a municipality, including police and 
fire protection, emergency communication center, public works services, municipal airport, parks and other 
recreational facilities, and general administrative services. The City also operates water, electric, sewer, 
sanitation and fiber optic services. Missouri Gas Energy provides gas service throughout the City. Missouri Gas 
Energy  is regulated by the Missouri Public Service Commission. 

Transportation and Communication Facilities 

U.S. Highway 60 and State Highway 37 serve the City, with access to Interstate 44 (a major east-west 
artery across the State of Missouri) by traveling approximately 20 miles north on State Highway 37. Joplin 
Regional m o r t  and the Springfield/Branson National Airport (SGF) are both located approximately 43 miles 
f i o m  the City. The Frisco branch of the Burlington-NorthedSanta Fe Railroad provide services to the City. The 
Monet t  Municipal Airport serves the City and Barry County and is owned by the City. The paved runway 
extends 5,000 feet. The airport includes a parallel taxiway which runs along the runway. The facility is at an 
elevation of 1.3 15 feet at a distance of 5 miles from the City. There are over 25 hanger rental units located on 
site- The City is served by television, radio stations and telecable systems. Local newspaper coverage is 
provided by the Monett Times published daily with a circulation of approximately 3,976 copies. 

Educational Institutions and Facilities 

The Monett R-I School District (the “District”) currently holds an “accredited‘’ rating from the State 
Department of Elementary and Secondary Education, which is the highest rating attainable. The District 
encompasses three elementary schools, a middle school, a high school and a career center with a total enrollment 
of approximately 2,228 students. With the City being located approximately 35 miles of Joplin, Missouri, and 
approximately 40 miles of Springfield, Missouri, and Bentonville, Arkansas, and approximately 60 miles from 
Bolivar, Missouri, and Pittsburg, Kansas, there are several universities, state colleges and community colleges 
available for continued educational opportunities. Drury University of Springfield, Missouri Southern State 
University of Joplin and Crowder College of Neosho each have satellite campuses in the City. 
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Recreational and Religious Facilities 

Recreational opportunities have always abounded in the City. The renowned Monett City Park 
System began with a 1921 bond election to issue $25,000 in bonds. In 1923, 40 acres were purchased from 
E.E. Meador for $10,000 and a swimming pool constructed at a cost of $5,500. The park lake and casino 
building were constructed around 1926. Today, many enjoy the municipal pool, tennis courts, ball field, 
skateboard park and newly expanded 18-hole golf course. Movies have been a part of the City since the early 
1900’s with Dreamland Theatre, the famous Gillioz Theatre at 6th Street and Broadway, to the current Plaza 5 
Theatre. Recently a new YMCA organized with many worthwhile programs and a new facility is planned in 
the near future. 

The City has over 23 churches representing 21 denominations of the Protestant and Catholic faiths. 
Many denominations sponsor student centers and provide services such as preschools and elementary schools. 

Economy 

The City has a diverse manufacturing and industrial base that adds stability to the local economy. 
Major industries with headquarters or divisions located within the government’s boundaries or in close 
proximity include computer software providers, several window manufacturers, playground equipment 
manufacturer, food manufacturers, cheese processors, dairy processors, poultry processors, and several 
financial and insurance institutions. The City has a broad mix of retail and service establishments that serve 
the City and the surrounding areas. The population growth of the last ten years has led to further expansion of 
the retail base and provided increased sales tax revenues to the local government. 

, 

’ 

Employment levels in the City remained relatively stable with no large layoffs announced by any local 
companies although there was evidence of modified workweeks and restrained capital spending in the private 
sector. The outlook for the second half of 2009 is more positive as local companies indicated increased 
demand for their products and services. However, it was indicated that this increase in production would not 
translate into an immediate increase in employment levels. 

ECONOMIC INFORMATION CONCERNING THE CITY 

Commerce and Industry 

Some major employers in the City, include:* 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5 .  
6. 
7. 
8. 
9. 

10. 

Emolover ProductJSenice 

EFCO Corp., a Pella Company 
Jack Henry & Associates, Inc. 
Tyson Foods, Inc. 
Miracle Recreation Equipment Co. 
Cox-Monett Hospital, Inc. 
Monett R-1 School District 
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 
Schreiber Foods, Inc. 
Hydro Aluminum North America 
City of Monett, Missouri 

Manufacturing 
Technology 
Industry 
Manufacturing 
Hospital 
Education 
Retail 
Industry 
Manufacturing 
Local Government 

Number of Emdovees 

1,380 
1,145 

632 
500 
321 
320 
269 
171 
164 
145 

Source: Monett Chamber of Commerce 
*As of March 31.2009 
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General and Demographic Information 

The following tables set forth certain population information. 

2000 - 1980 - 1990 - 
City 6,148 6,529 7,396 
Barry County 24,408 27,547 34,010 
Lawrence County 28,973 ' 30,236 . 35,204 
State of Missouri 4,916,766 5,117,073 5,595,211 

Source: U. S .  Department of Commerce, Economics and Statist~cs Administration, Bureau of the Census 
*2008 Population Estimates 
**2009 Population Estimates 

Under 5 
5-14 years 
15-19 years 
20-44 years 
45-54 years 
55-64 years 
65 years and older 

Median Age 
Total 

Population Distribution bv Aee 

Barry 
-* COuILty"" 

60 1 2,672 
1,037 4,99 1 

530 2,413 
2,529 11,161 

803 5,021 
595 4,143 

1.301 5.900 
7.396 36.301 

35.4 38.1 

Lawrence 
County"" 

2,568 
5,301 
2,501 

12,055 
5,172 
4,044 
6,116 

37.757 
37.6 

- 2008" 

8,939 
36,301 
37,757 

5,987,580** 

State of 
Missouri"" 

3 99,45 0 
770,586 
412,660 

1,968,862 
88 1,577 
673,235 
805,235 

5.91 1.605 
37.5 

Source: U. S. Department of Commerce, Economics and Statistics Administration, Bureau of the Census 
*Based on 2000 Census 
**Based on 2008 Population Estimates 

Employment 

The following table sets forth unemployment figures for the listed years for Bany County, Lawrence 
County and the State of Missouri. 

B a r v  County 
Total Labor Force 
Unemployed 
Unemployment Rate 

Lawrence County 
Total Labor Force 
Unemployed 
Unemployment Rate 

State of Missouri 
Total Labor Force 
Unemployed 
Unemployment Rate 

2005 

17,322 
852 

4.9% 

- 

18,765 
860 

4.6% 

2,996,836 
160,482 

5.4% 

Source: Missouri Economic Research and Information Center 

2006 

17,695 
713 

4.0% 

- 

19,192 
73 8 

3.8% 

3,016,2 1 1 
144,878 

4.8% 
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2007 

17,626 
860 

4.9% 

- 

19,176 
77 1 

4.0% 

3,03 1,187 
152,788 

5.0% 

- 2008 

17,584 
954 

5.4% 

19,174 
917 

4.8% 

3,012,126 
182,837 

6.1% 

2009 

17,487 
1,391 
7.9% 

- 

19,158 
1,470 
7.7% 

3,005,479 
27 1,146 

9.0% 



Income Statistics 

The following table sets forth income figures from Census 2000: 

Per Capita Median Family 

City 
Barry County 
Lawrence County 
State of Missouri 

$17,048 . $36,858 

15,399 36,846 
19,936 46,044 

14,980 34,043 

Source: U. S. Department of Commerce, Economics and Statistics Adminisbation, Bureau of the Census 

Housing Structures 

The following table sets forth statistics regarding housing structures by type in the City from Census 
2000. 

Number of Units Percentaee of Units 

Single Family 
Multi-Family 
Mobile Home 

2,406 
697 
40 

77% 
22 

1 

The median value of owner occupied housing units in the area of the City and related areas according to 
Census 2000 were as follows: 

Median Value 

City 
Barry County 
Lawrence County 
State of Missouri 

$67,700 
70,600 
65,500 
89,900 

Source: U. S. Department of Commerce, Economics and Statistics Adminisbation, Bureau of the Census 

Building Construction 

permits issued within the City over a five-year period. 
construction. 

The following table indicates the number of building permits and total estimated valuation of these 
These numbers reflect permits issued for new 

2006 - 2005 - 
Residential 

Number of Permits 50 35 
Estimated Valuation $7,582,800 $6,956,400 

Commercial 
Number of Permits 12 13 
Estimated Valuation 13,291,619 10,203,700 

TOTALS: 
Number of Permits 62 48 

- Estimated Valuation 20,874,419 17,160,100 

24 . 23 28 
$4,704,000 $3,174,500 $3,969,500 

13 . 3  6 
6,810,152 1,307,666 5,438,395 

37 26 34 
11,s 14,152 4,482,166 9,407,895 

Source: City. 
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DEBT STRUCTURE OF THE CITY 

Current Indebtedness of the City 

Name of Issue 
Principal Amount 

Issue Date Amount Outstanding 

Neighborhood Improvement District 
(BrandennWCountry Club’Gravity Sewer Project) September 1,2004 $394,230 $75,000 

Neighborhood Improvement District 
(Valley View Estates Project) 

Debt Summary 

September 6,2005 148,000 95,900 

(as of 3/3 1/09) Assessed Valuation (2009): 
Estimated Actual Valuation: 
Population Estimated: 

Total Outstanding General Obligation Debt: (‘I 
o\;erlapping Debt: (*) 
Direct and Overlapping General Obligation Debt: 

$134,100,335 
$5 13,046,747 

81939 

$1 70,900 
$7,700,000 
$7,870,900 

Ratio of General Obligation Debt to Assessed Valuation: 0.13% 
Ratio of General Obligation Debt to Estimated Actual Valuation: 
Per Capita General Obligation Debt: 

0.03% 
$19.12 

Ratio of Direct and Overlapping Debt to Assessed Valuation: 5.74% 
1 SO% 

$880.5 1 
Ratio of Direct and Overlapping Debt to Estimated Actual Valuation: 
Per Capita Direct and Overlapping Debt: 

( I ’  Includes amounts authorized but unissukd pursuant to a NID Petition and the NID A c t  
(’’ Includes amounts authorized but unissued with respect to certain political subdivisions. See “Overlapping Indebtedness” below. 

Overlapping Indebtedness 

The following table sets forth the approximate overlapping indebtedness (including general obligation 
bonds) of political subdivisions with boundaries overlapping the City, including the percent attributable (on the 
basis of current assessed valuation) to the City. The table was compiled from information furnished by the State 
Auditor’s ofice, and the City has not independently verified the accuracy or completeness of such information. 
Furthermore, political subdivisions may have ongoing programs requiring the issuance of substantial additional 
bonds or capital leases, the amounts of which cannot be determined at this time. 

Outstanding Percent Amount 
General Obligation Applicable Applicable 

Taxine Jurisdiction Indebtedness to Citv to Citv 

Monett R-I School District $7,700,000 100% $7,700,000 
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Other  obligations 

The City also issues bonds where the City pledges income derived fiom the acquired or constructed 
assetis to pay debt service and enters into capital leases to finance the acquisition or improvement of City 
property. Obligations outstanding at March 3 1,2009 are as follows: 

Pumose 
Principal 

Interest Rates Outstanding 

Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bonds, 
Series 2004 (Hwy 60 Redevelopment Project 
TIF #1) 

Tax Increment Allocation Bonds, Subordinate 
Series 2007 (Hwy 60 Amended Redevelopment 
Project TIF #1) 

Subordinate Tax Increment Allocation Bonds 
Junior, Series 2008 (Hwy 60 Amended 
Redevelopment Project TIF #1) 

Tax Increment Allocation Bonds, Series 2005A 
(East Hwy 60 Infrastructure Project TIF #2) 

Tax Increment Allocation Bonds, Series 2005B 
(RPA #1 Inhstructure Improvements Project 
TIF #2) 

Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System 
Revenue Bonds (State Revolving Funds 
Program) Series 2003 

Sewerage Revenue Refunding Bonds 
(State Revolving Funds Program) Series 1992A 

Certificates of Participation, Series 2002 
(airport improvements) 

Certificates of Participation, Series 2002 
(golf course improvements) 

Certificates of Participation, Series 2004 
(construction of water tower) 

Wells Fargo Brokerage Services, LLC 
Governmental Lease-Purchase Agreement, 
Series 2009 (interior security system and 
communication tower and equipment at 

. newly constructed Monett Justice Center) 

Yamaha Commercial Customer Finance 
Lease Agreement, Series 2008 (lease of 
24 golf carts) 

1.25% to 3.80% $1,480,000 

3.625% to 3.85% 

4.00% to 4.5% 

5.00% 

5.25% 

2.00% to 4.70% 

5.20% to 6.55% 

3.30% 

3.30% 

3.52% 

3.85% 

5.25% 

5 3  10,000 

3,000,000 

1,130,000 

2,535,000 

7,8 15,000 

3 10,000 

120,000 

360,000 

449,039 

692,53 1 

61,335 
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CitiCapital Finance Lease Agreement 
Series 2008 (lease of two golf utility carts) 5.25% 

United Missouri Bank Lease with Option 
to Purchase, Series 2007 (purchase street sweeper) 4.50% 

Wells Fargo Brokerage Services, LLC 
Lease with Option to Purchase, Series 2008 
(expand police station and municipal court 
facilities by building the new Monett Justice 
Center) 4.10% 

De Lage Landen Public Financing LLC 
Lease with Option to Purchase, Series 2008 
(lease purchase three police cars) 3.47% 

io,476 

15,695 

2,540,000 

56,708 

Legal Debt Capacity 

- Article VI, Sections 26(b) and (c) of the Constitution of the State of Missouri limit the net outstanding 
amount of authorized general obligation indebtedness for a city to 10 percent of the assessed valuation of the city 
by a two-thirds (four-sevenths at certain elections) vote of the qualified voters. Article VI, Section 26(d) provides 
that a city may, by a two-thirds (four-sevenths at certain elections) vote of the qualified voters, incur indebtedness 
in an amount not to exceed an additional 10 percent for the purpose of acquiring rights-of-way, construction, 
extending and improving streets and avenues, and sanitary or storm sewer systems, provided the total general 
obligation indebtedness of a city does not exceed 20 percent of the assessed valuation. Article VI, Section 26(e) 
provides that a city may, by a two-thirds (four-sevenths at certain elections) vote of the qualified voters, incur 
indebtedness in an amount not exceeding an additional 10 percent for the purpose of purchasing or constructing 
waterworks, electric or other light plants to be owned exclusively by the city, provided that the total general 
obligation indebtedness of a city does not exceed 20 percent of the assessed valuation. The legal debt margin of 
the City as of March 3 1,2009 is $25,766,779. 

THE WATERWORKS PORTION OF THE CITY’S SYSTEM 

The following sets forth certain information regarding the waterworks portion of the City’s Combined 
Waterworks and Sewerage System. . 

Customers 

The total number of customers for each of the last five yeqs is as follows: 

2005 2006 2007 2008 2009 

3,864 4,073 4,053 4,008 4,046 
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The following is a list of the top ten customers for the water system during the most recent fiscal 
year: 

Name Gallons Revenues % of Total 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. . 

6. 
7. 
8. 
9. 
10. 

Tyson Foods, Inc. 
International Dehydrated Foods 
Dairy Farmers of America 
EFCO Corp., a Pella Company 
Schreiber Foods, Inc. 
Hydro Aluminum North America 
Monett R-1 School District 
Miracle Recreation Equipment Co. 
Architectural Systems Inc. 
Monett Steel Castings 

429,438,590 
99,627,500 
86,700,700 
39,757,030 
26,066,000 
17,598,000 
2,849,020 
2,035,000 
1,939,000 
1,838,600 

$670,245.38 
159,439.37 
138,392.47 
68,8 14.97 
44,998.85 
32,028.40 
6,225.00 
4,188.46 
3,721.01 
3,417.70 

53.14% 
12.64 
10.97 
5.46 
3.57 
2.54 
0.49 
0.33 
0.17 
0.08 

Gallons Sold 

The total amount of gallons of water sold for each of the last five years is as follows: 

2005 - 2006 2007 2008 2009 

994,906,741 1,134,832,573 1,129,320,338 1,093,156,295 1,079,199,828 

FINANCIAL INFORMATION CONCERNING THE CITY 

Accounting, Budgeting and Auditing Procedures 

The City currently produces financial statements that are in conformity with generally accepted 
accounting principles. The accounts of the City are organized on the basis o f  funds and account groups, each of 
which is considered a separate accounting entity. The operations of each fbnd are accounted for with a separate 
set of self-balancing accounts that comprise its assets, liabilities, fund equity, revenues and expenditures or 
expenses as appropriate. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City’s financial planning and control. All 
departments of the City are required to submit requests for appropriation to the City Administrator in January 
of each year. The City Administrator uses these requests as the starting point for developing a proposed 
budget. The City Administrator then presents a proposed budget to the governing council for review prior to 
March 10th. The governing council is required to hold public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a 
final budget by no later than March 31st, the close of the City’s fiscal year. The appropriated budget is 
prepared by fund (e.g., general fund), and department (e.g., police). Department heads may make transfers of 
appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between departments, however, require the 
special approval of the governing council. 

The financial records of the City are audited annually by a f m  of independent certified public 
accountants in accordance with generally accepted govemmental auditing standards. The annual audit for the 
fiscal year ending March 31, 2009 was performed by The CPA Group, P.C., Monett, Missouri. Copies of the 
audit reports for the past 5 years are on file in the City Administrator’s Office and are available for review. 
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Sources of Revenue 

The City finances its general operations through the following taxes and other miscellaneous sources as 
indicated below for the last fiscal year for which audited financial statements are available: 

Source Amount Percent 

Business License and Permits 
Federal and State Grants 
Fines and Forfeitures 
Franchise Fees 
Sales Tax 
Investment Income 
Intergovernmental 
Other Revenue 
Other Taxes and Assessments 
Rental Revenue 

$ 22,834 
1,303,457 

194,660 
423,246 

2,608,667 
31,717 

741,303 
321,465 
15 1,319 

-- 

$5.798.668 

.39% 
22.48 
3.36 
7.30 

44.99 
.55 

12.78 
5.54 
2.61 
rn% 

-- 

Property Valuations 

Assessment Procedure: 

All taxable real and personal property within the City is assessed annually by the County Assessor. 
Missouri law requires that real property be assessed at the following percentages of true value: 

Residential real property.. ................................ 19% 
Agricultural and horticultural 

Utility, industrial, commercial, 
real property ................................................ 12% 

railroad and all other real property ............. 32% 

A general reassessment of real property occurred statewide in 1985. In order to maintain equalized 
assessed valuations following this reassessment, the Missouri General- Assembly adopted a maintenance law in 
1986. Beginning January 1, 1987, and every odd-numbered year thereafter, each County Assessor must adjust 
the assessed valuation of all real property located within his or her county in accordance with a two-year 
assessment and equalization maintenance plan approved by the State Tax Commission. 

The assessment ratio for personal property is generally 33-1/3% of true value. However, subclasses of 
tangible personal property are assessed at the following assessment percentages: grain and other agricultural 
crops in an unmanufactured condition, 1/2%; livestock, 12%; farm machinery, 12%; historic motor vehicles, 5%; 
and poultry, 12%. 

The County Assessor is responsible for preparing the tax roll each year and for submitting the tax roll to 
the Board of Equalization. The County Board of Equalization has the authority to adjust and equalize the values 
of individual properties appearing on the tax rolls. 

A-9 



Current Assessed Valuation: 

The following table shows the total assessed valuation, b y  category, of all taxable tangible property 
situated in the City according to the assessment of Tax Year 2009: 

Real Estate: 
Residential 
Commercial 
Agricultural 

Sub-Total 
Personal Property 

Total 

Assessed Assessment 
Valuation Rate - 
$45,617,857 19% 
43,285,628 32 

392,740 12 
89,296,225 
44,804.1 10 33 1/3%* 

$1 34.1 00.335 

Estimated Actual 
Valuation 

$240,093,984 
135,267,587 

3,272.833 
378,634,404 
134.412.343 

$513.046.7 47 

* Assumes all personal property is assessed at 33 113%; because ce‘rtain subclasses of tangible personal properly are assessed at less than 33 1/3%, 
the estimated actual valuation for perso~l  property would likely be greater than that  shown above. See “Assessment hocedure” discussed 
above. 

History of Property Valuation: 

The total assessed valuation of all taxable tangible property situated in the City, including state assessed 
railroad and utility property, according to the assessments of January 1 in each of the following years, has been as 
follows: 

Barry County 

- Year 

2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 

Lawrence County 

Assessed 
Valuation 

$108,754,261 
105,626,671 
104,274,919 
91,506,546 
88,291,450 

Assessed 
- Year Valuation 

2009 
2008 
2007 
2006 
2005 

Property Tax Levies and Collections 

Tax Collection Procedure: 

$25,346,074 
25,577,362 
25,311,177 
22,50634 1 
21,741,654 

Percent 
Chance 

2.90% 
1.29 

13.95 
3.64 

10.52 

Percent 
Change 

-1.00% 
1.05 

12.46 
3.52 

16.20 

Property taxes are levied and collected by the City. The City is required by law to prepare an annual 
budget, which includes an estimate of the amount of revenues to be received from all sources for the budget year, 
including an estimate of the amourit of money required to be raised fiom property taxes and the tax levy rates 
required to produce such amounts. The budget must also include proposed expenditures and must state the 
amount required for the payment of interest, amortization and redemption charges on the City’s debt for the 
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ensuing budget year. Such estimates are based on the assessed valuation figures provided by the County Clerk. 
The City must fur its ad valorem property tax rates and certify them to the County Clerk not later than September 
first for entry in the tax books. 

The County Clerk receives the county tax books from the County Assessor, which set forth the 
assessments of real and personal property. The County Clerk enters the tax rates certified to him by the !local 
taxing bodies in the tax books and assesses such rates against all taxable property in the City as shown in such 
books. The County Clerk forwards the tax books by October 31 to the County Collector, who is charged with 
levying and collecting taxes as shown therein. The County Collector extends the taxes on the tax rolls and issues 
the .tax statements in early December. Taxes are due by December 3 1 and become delinquent if not paid to the 
County Collector by that’time. All tracts of land and city lots on which delinquent taxes are due are charged with 
a penalty of eighteen percent of each year’s delinquency. All lands and lots on which taxes are delinquent and 
unpaid are subject to sale at public auction in August of each year. 

The County Collector is required to make disbursements of collected taxes to the City each month. 
Because of the tax collection procedure described above, the City receives the bulk of its moneys fiom local 
property taxes in the months of December, January and February. 

Tax Rates 

The City does not have a property tax’levy for either Debt Service or Operatkg. 

Major Property Taxpayers: 

The following table sets forth the ten largest real property taxpayers in the City based upon assessed 
valuation as of 2007. 

1. 
2. 
3. 
4. 
5. 
6. 
7. 
8. 
9. 

10. 

Name of Taxpaver 

Jack Henry & Associates, Inc. 
EFCO Corp., a Pella Company 
International Dehydrated Foods 
Lowe’s Home Centers, Inc. 
Tyson Foods, Inc. 
Miracle Recreation Equipment Co. , 
Wal-Mart Stores, Inc. 
Wells Aluminum, Inc. 
Friend Tire Co. 
Schreiber Foods, Inc. 

Local Assessed Valuation 

$1 1,157,115 
2,821,780 
2,2 5 2,460 
1,736,128 
1,635,600 

. 1,583,200 
1,389,152 
1,118,368 
1,035,6 16 

894,592 

Percentage of Total 
Local Assessed Valuation 

8.32% 
2.10 
1.68 
1.30 
1.22 
1.18 
1.04 
.83 
.77 
.66 

[Remainder of page intentionally blank.] 
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Sales Tax Collections 

The following table.shows the City’s collections of sales taxes for each of the last five fiscal years: 

Barry County and Lawrence County 

1 Yo 
Fiscal Year General 

Ended March 31 Sales Tax 

2009 $1,807,576 
2008 1,792,967 
2007 1,824,148 
2006 1,711,138 
2005 1,649,166 

112 Yo 
Capital 

Improvement 

$903,789 
896,498 
9 12,074 
855,569 
824,583 

114% 
Capital Improvement 

Police Station 

$434,875 
367,807 

0 
0 
0 
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. . . - .  September 1,2009 . (. ' 

Members of the Governing Council 
Citizens of the City of Monett, Missouri 

. . .  . .  . .  

The Administrative Department is pleased to present the Annual Financial Report for the City of 
Monett, Missouri (the City), for fiscal year ended March 31, 2009. This report is submitted to 
you in compliance with state law requiring that all political subdivisions in the state shalI cause 
to be prepared an annual report of the financial transactions in such summary  form as the state 
auditor shall prescribe (105.145, RSMO) and the state auditor shall receive a copy of the 
financial repoh (15 CRS 40-3.030). 

Responsibility to report financial data that is.complete and accurate rests with the City. It is our 
beIief that the information reported in .this document fairly presents the financial position of the 
City in all material aspects, on a Government-wide and a -Fund basis. To enhance the reader's 
understanding of these financial statements, note disclosures have been included as an integral 
part of this document. 

To ensure reliability of the accounting data upon which the City's financial statements are based, 
internal controls are utilized to provide reasonable assurance that transactions are accounted for 
properly and City assets are safeguarded. Additionally, the Administrative Department staff has 
prepared this report in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the United 
States of America (GAAP) which are standard guidelines for financial reporting, krther 
ensuring that the financial position of the City is presented fairly. 

The City of Monett, Missouri's financial statements have been audited by The CPA Group, P.C., 
a fm of licensed certified public accountants. The goal of the independent audit was to provide 
reasonable assurance that the financial statements of the City of Monett, Missouri for the fiscal 
year ended March 31, 2009, are fkee of material misstatement. The independent audit involved 
examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial 
statements; assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made by 
management; and evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. The independent 
auditors' report is presented as the first component of the financial section of this report. 

The independent audit of the financial statements of the City of Monett, Missouri was part of a 
broader, federally mandated "Single Audit" designed to meet the special needs of federal grantor 
agencies. The standards governing Single Audit engagements require the independent auditor to 
report not only on the fair presentation of the financial statements, but also on the audited 
government's internal controls and compliance with legal requirements, with special emphasis on 
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internal controls and legal requirements involving the administration of federal awards 

The Annual Report is presented in t h e e  sections: introductory, financial, and statistical. The 
introduction section is designed to introduce the reader to the report and includes the transmittal 
letter, the City’s organization chart, and a list of principal officials. 

I 

The financial section begins with the independent .auditors? report. The auditors’ report 
discloses the opinion of the independent auditors with regard ta the presentation of the fmancial 
statements and internal controls. This section also includes the. .Management’s Discussion and 
Analysis, .the Financial Statements and Notes that provide an overview of the City’s financial 
position and operating results, the Combining Statement of non-major funds and other schedules 
that provide detailed information relative to the Basic Financial Statements. 

. The statistical section includes selected financial information, generally presented on a multiyear 
basis. This section is designed to provide the user with a broader and more complete 
understanding-of the City and it’s financial affairs than is possible from only the financial 
statements and supporting schedules presented in the financial section. 

GAAP requires that management provide a narrative introduction, overview, and analysis to 
accompany the basic financial statements in the form of Management’s Discussion and Analysis 
(MD&A). This letter of transmittal is designed to complement Mn&A and should be read in 

’ . conjunction with it. The City of Monett, Missouri’s MD&A can be found immediately following 
the report ofthe independent auditors’. 

. .  Profile of the Government 

The City of Monett, Missouri, incorporated in 1888, is a third class city located in the 
southwestem part of the state. The City currently occupies a land area of 9 square miles and has 
a population of 7,396. The City is empowered by state statute to extend its corporate limits by 
annexation, which occurs periodically when deemed appropriate by the governing council. 

The City operates under a commission form of government. Policy-making and legislative 
authority are vested in a governing counciI consisting of the mayor and two commissioners. The 
governing council is responsible, among other things, for passing ordinances, adopting the 
budget, appointing committees, and appointing the heads of the various departments. The vmiou.s 
departments are responsible for carrying out the policies and ordinances of the governing 
council, and for overseeing the day-to-day operations of the government. Council members serve 
four-year terms that expire in April of 2012. 

The City of Monett provides a full range of services normally associated with a municipality, 
including police and fire protection, emergency communication center, public works services, 
municipal airport. parks and other recreation faciIities, and general administrative services. The 
City also .operates water, electric, sewer, sanitation and fiber optic services, all of which are 
accounted for k the financial statements as business-type funds. 

- This report presents data for the financial reporting entity, which includes all departments, funds, 
boards, and commissions of the primary government (the City, as legally defined), as well as all 
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of its component units. Component units are legally separate entities for which the City is 
financially accountable. The one component unit of the City is the,East Highway 60 Community 
Improvement District, which is a blended component unit. The financial reporting entity is 
discussed further in Note 1 of the financial statements. 

The annual budget serves as the foundation for the City of Monett, Missouri’s financial planning 
and control. All departments of the City of Monett, Missouri are required to submit requests for 
appropriation to the City Administrator in Jkuary  each year. The City Administrator uses these 
requests as the starting point for developing a proposed budget. The City Administrator then 
presents a proposed budget to the council for review prior to March 10th. The council is required 
to hold public hearings on. the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget by no later than 
March 31, the close of the City of Monett, Missouri’s fiscal year. The appropriated budget is 
prepared by fund (e.g., general fund), and department (e.g., police). Department heads may make 
transfers of appropriations within a department. Transfers of appropriations between 
departments, however, require the special approval of the governing council. 

Factors Afiecting Financial Condition 

The information presented in the financial statements is perhaps best understood when it is 
considered from the broader perspective of the specific environment within which the City of 
Monett, Missouri operates. 

Local economy - The City of Monett has a diverse manufacturing and industrial base that adds 
stability to the local economy. Major industries with headquarters or divisions located within the 
government’s boundaries or in close proximity include, computer software providers, several 
window manufacturers, playground equipment manufactiuer; food manufacturers, cheese 
processors, dairy processors, poultry processors, and several financial and insurance institutions. 
The City has a broad mix of retail and service establishments that serve Monett and the 
surrounding areas. The population growth of the last ten years has led to further expansion of the 
retail base and provided increased sales tax revenues to the local government. 

In the last half of 2008 and first quarter of 2009, the national economy experienced a severe 
recession with negative economic growth and high rates of unemployment. The City’s sales tax 
revenues for the last half of the fiscal year reflected this downturn in the economy and were 
lower than the prior fiscal year during that same period. This trend of lower sales tax revenues 
was expected to continue into Fiscal Year 2009-2010 with an anticipated recovery in the second 
half of 2009 or first half of 2010. 

Employment levels in Monett remained relatively stable with no large layoffs announced by any 
local companies although there was evidence of modified workweeks and restrained capital 
spending in the private sector. The outlook for the second half of 2009 is more positive as local 
companies indicated increased demand for their products and services. However, it was indicated 
that t h i s  increase in production would not translate into an immediate increase in employment 
levels. 
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. ,  
.. . . , .-  Long-term finartcial planning - Significant improvements to he Monett ,water S Y S ~ G ~ I  are 

. .. 
r .  .-:. 

. .  

. .  .. . _  
. .  . .  
.. .. . . .  . . . 

needed to ifisure that ckrent and future water supply needs are met. These improvements include 
.the constrvCtion of a water treatment facility to operate in conjunction with Wells No. 9 and 12; 
installing. a waterline west along Highway 60 to connect with an existing well at the Monelt 
iMunicipal Airport; installing a larger pump at the airport well; constructing waterhes to resolve 
],ow pressure problems in the areas near TNelIs No. 15 and 16; installing a booster pump station in 
rhe area of the North Park tank and other system improvements. 

The .totai cost of these improvements is estimated at $1 3,330,000. These capital costs, in addition 
to the ,annual operating costs of the new treatment facility, will require an increase in water rates 
of approximately $1.23 per thousand gallons of water sold. The City Council's intent is to 
increase rates equally over the next three years to cover these capital and operational costs. It is 
anticipated' that the City will seek financing of these improvemeats horn Missouri's State 
Revolving Fund (SRF) which will require voter approval of a revenue bond issue in either 201 0 
or 201 1. 

Cash managemmi policies and practices - Cash temporarily idle during the year was invested 
in money market accounts, certificates of deposit, and US. agency securities. The rnalxrities of 

:the investments range from 12 months to 4 years, with an averagc maturity of 36 mxnhs. For the 
last fiscal year the average yield on investments w3s 5.84 per2ent. 

,; .Risk .managemenl - During 1998, the governalmi initiated a, safety p g x m  for workers', 
.. compensation.: This p r o p m  strives to enphasize the imporknce of pactking sound loss 

prevention .techniques, the refinement of work safety policies aid procedum a d  the creation 
. . - and maintenmcl: of a safe working envkmment. -In addition, various control tcchniques, 

- including employee accident prevention training, have .been implemented to minimize accident- 

. .  
. .  - . .  

.. . .  

related losses. 
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S .REPORT 

To the Honorable Mayor James Orr, 
Councilman Jerry Dierker and Councilman Michael Brownsberger 
City of Monett, Missouri 

W e  have audited the accompanying fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type 
activities, and each major fund of the City of Monett, Missouri as of and for the year ended March 31, 2009, 
which collectively comprise the City’s basic financial statements as listed in the table of content& These 
financial statements are the responsibility of City of Monett, Missouri’s management. Our responsibility is to 
express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. 

W e  conducted our audit in accordance with auditing stan&ds.generally accepted in the United States of 
America and the standards applicabte to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standarcis, issued 
by the Comptroller General of the Uni&d States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to 
obtain reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit 
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial statements. 
An audit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and the significant estimates made by 
management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our audit 
provides a reasonable basis for our opinions. 

1 

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects, the respective 
financial position of the governmental activities, the business-type activities and each major fund of the City of 
Monett, Missouri, as of March 3 1 , 2009, and the respective changes in financial position, and cash flows, where 
applicable, thereof, for the .year then ended in conformity with accounting principles generally accepted in the 
United States of America. 

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated September 21,2009, 
on our consideration of the City’s internal controI over financial reporting and on our tests of its compliance 
with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements and other matters. The purpose of 
that. report is to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and 
the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on 
compliance. That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing 
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our  audit. 

The management’s discussion and analysis and budgetary comparison information on pages 9 through 17 and 
49 through 54, are not a required part of the basic financial statements but are supplementary information 
required by accounting principles generalty accepted in the United States of America. We have applied certain 
limited procedures, which consisted principally of inquiries of management regarding the methods of 
measurement and presentation of the required supplementary information. However, we did not audit the 
information and express no opinion on it. 



. .  , 
, . _ I  . "  I _ .  2 

' , .  

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of 'forming opinions on the financial statements that collectively 
comprise the City of Monett, Missouri's basic financial statements. The introductory section, and'the dombining 
departmental financial stdements are presented for purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of 
the basic firiancial statements. The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards :is presented for 
purposes of additional analysis as required by U.S. Office of Management and Budget Circulk A-1 33, Audits of 
States, Local Governments, and Nun-Profit Organizatio'm,' and is also not a required p b  of the basic financial 
statements of City of Monett. The combining and individual departmental financial statements and the schedule 
of expenditures of federai awards have been subjected to .the auditing procedures applied in the audit of the 
basic financial statements and, in our opinion, are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the basic 
financial statements taken as a whole. The introductory and the combining departmental sections have not been 
subjected to the auditing procedures applied 'in the audit of the basic fmancial statements and, accordingly, we 
express no opinion on them. 

Monett, Missouri 
September 2 1,2009 



. .  

MANAGEIC~ENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 



City of Monett, Missouri 
THIRD CUSS CITY - COMMISSION FORM OF GOVERNMENT 
James On; Mayor Michael Brownsberger. Commissioner Jerry Dierker. 
Commissioner 
217 Fifth Street 0 P.O. Box 110 Monett. Missouri 65708 

City Clerk - (417) 235-3763 
Council - (41 7) 235-3355 
Fax - (417) 235-4608 

Management’s Discussion and Analysis 

As management of the City of Monett, Missouri, we offer readers this narrative overview and 
analysis of the financial activities of the City of Monett, Missok  (the City) for the fiscal year 
ended March 31, 2009. We encourage readers to consider the information presented here in 
conjunction with the transmittal letter at the front of this report and the City’s financial 
statements and footnotes, which follow this section. 

.I ,- . 
Financial Highlights 

0 The assets of the City exceeded its liabilities at the close ofthe most recent fiscal year by 
$3 1,400,546 (net assets). Of this amount, $3,505,326 (unrestricted net assets) may be used to 
meet the government’s ongoing obIigations to citizens and creditors. 

The City’s total net assets increased $1,519,562. Of this mount, $1,648,423 was from the 
City’s “govemmental activities” with a decrease in net assets of $128,861 &om the 
“business-type activities”. Additionally, a prior period adjustment was recorded in the 
amount of $702,933 for the “business-type activities” to reflect a change in the accounting 
for supplies held as inventories to maintain operational effectiveness. 

0 The City total debt decreased by $1,404,253 during the current fiscal year. The City’s fiscal 
year started with existing debt of $28,539,170, principal payments of $2,046,416 were made 
during the year, also, new debt issuance of $642,163, which created ending fiscal year debt 
balance of $27,134,917. The debt increase was due to $86,024 relating to police cars and 
$556,139 for tax increment financing developer agreements. 

Overview of the Financial Statements 

This discussion and .analysis is intended to provide an introduction to the basic financial 
statements. The basic financial statements comprise three components: government-wide 
financial stateme&, fund financial statements, and notes to the financial statements. This reprt  
also contains other supplementary information in addition to the basic financial statements. 

Government-wide financial statements. The government-wide financial statements are a broad 
overview of the City’s finances, in a manner similar to a private business. 

The stutement of net assets presents all of the City’s assets and liabilities with the difference 
between the two reported as net assets. Net assets are an important measure ofthe City’s overall 
financial health. The increases or decreases in net assets can be monitored to determine whether 
the City’s financial position is improving or deteriorating- 



CITY OF MONETT, hlISSOUlU 
-MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS , .  

MARCH 31,2009 

I .  . The statement of activities .presents information showing how the government's net asscts 
changed during the most recent fiscal year. All changes in net assets are reported as soon as the 
underlying.event giving rise tci the'change occurs, regardless of the timing of related cashfZo1v.s. 
Thus,'reveiiues and expenses are reported in thib statement for some items that will oniy result in 

. . sash flows in future fiscal periods (eg., uncollected taxes and earned but unused vacation leave). 

- 
' 

. .  I 

. .. 

Both of'.the government-wide financial statements report functions of the City that are 
: - principally supported by taxes and intergovernmental revenues (governmentul activities) and 

from other functions that are intended to recover all or a significant. portion of their costs through 
user fees and charges (business-type activities). The governmental activities of the City inciude 

-. policy development and administmion, public safcty, public works, parks and recreatioI?, ad 
-municipal airport. The business-type activities of the City of Monett, Missouri include watcr, 
electric, sewer, sanitation and fiber optic operations. 

:Fund financial statements. Afrcnd is a gmuping of related accounts that is used to maintain 
control .oyer resources that have, been segregated for specific activities or objectives. The City 

. uses fund accounting to ensure compliance- with finance-related legal requirements. These funds 
arc divided into trvo categories: governmental fmids and  proprietary funds. 

%mwnmcirtul funds. ~ o w r n m e n t d f &  are used to account for essentially the same fimctions 
: reported as pvernmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. However, - 

- u d i k ~  the government-wide financial statements, gcverrurentzl fund financial statements focus - . 

resources available at the end of the fiscal year. Such i n f o m a t h  may be useful in eva1uathg.a 

- . .  

. 

. .  
. .  

. .  

. : 

iicm-mm inflows and ozc@ows of spen&ble resources, as well as on balances of spendable - .  

government's near-tern Financing requirements. . I .  

Because the focus of governmental funds is narrower than that of the government-wide fmancial 
statements? it isuseful to compare the inr'crrrnation presented for governmental furds with similar 
'infbrmation presented for governmental activities in the government-wide financial statements. 
By doing so, readers may better understand the long-term impact of the government's near-tern 
financing decisions. Both the governmental fund balance sheet and the governmental fund 
statement of revenues, expenditures, and changes in fund balances provide a reconciliation to 
facilitate this comparison between governmental fun& and governmental activities. 

. Proprietary funds. The City uses bvo different types of proprietary funds. Enterprise funds are 
used to report the same h c t i o n s  presented as business-tyye activities in the government-wide 
financial statements. The City uses enterprise funds to account for its water, electric, sewer, 
sanitatiofl and fiber optic operations. Internal service finds are an accounting device used to 
accumulate and allocate costs internally among the City's various functions. The City uses 
internal service funds to account for its hazardous material, safety, and mechanic operations. 
Because these services predominantly benefit governmental rather than business-type functions, 
: they have been included within govewimentai activities in the government-wide financial 

statements. 

. 

. 
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CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 

MARCH 31,2009 
- MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 

.. . , 

Nofes to thefinancial  statement^. The notes provide additional information that is essential to a 
full understanding of the data provided in the govemment-wide and, hnd financial statements, 

' Ofher information. 'In addition to .the basic financial statements- and accompanyini notes, this- 
report also presents certain required supplementary iPlfdrmation concerning the City's progress in 
funding its obligation- to provide pension benefits to its. employees. The combining statements 
referred to'earlier in connection with nonmajor governmental funds and internal service funds 
are presented immediately foIlowing the required supplementary information on pensions. 

Government-wide- Financial Analysis 

Net Bssets'may sese as a useful indicator of the City's financial position. As of March 31, 2009, 
assets exceeded liabilities by $31,400,546. The City uses these capital assets to provide services 
to citizens; consequently, these assets are not available for 

. 

. .  . .  . . .  

. , . .  

spending. 

NETASSETS . . .  

' The foliowing table reflects the condensed schedule of net assets as of March 31,2009 and 2008: 

Governmentai Business-type ." 

- Activities activities Total _. 
.' 

2009 2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 
Current and other assets $ 4,340309 $13,692,432 $ 8,053,929 f 6,874,195 S 12,394,238 $ 20,566,627 
Capital assets 27,722,031 17,375,570 21,122,590 22,245,035 48,844,621 39,620,605 

Total assets 32,062,340 3 1,068,002 29,1763 19 29,i 19,230 61,238,859 60,187,232 

Long-term obligations 16,985,476 1 8,171, I07 8,491,965 8,924,756 25,477,441 27,095,863 
Other 'liabilities 2,237,233 1,705,687 2,123,639 5207,63 1 4,360,872 3,913,318 

Total liabilities 19,222,709 . 19,876,794 10,615,604 11,132,387 29,838313 31,0O!?,181 

Net assets: 

Invested in capital assets, 

net of related debt 9,511,873 7,761,846 12,197,854 . 13,198,691 21,709,727 20,966,537 
Restricted 2,951,292 2,229,396 3,228,201 1,215,992 6,185,493 3,445,388 
Unrestricted 370,466 1,193,966 3,134,860 3,572,160 3,505,326 4,766,126 

Total net assets $ 12,839,631 $ 11,191,208 $ 18,560,915 - $ 17,986,843 $ 31,400,546 $ 29,178,051 

At the end of the current fiscal year, the City is able to report positive balances in all three 
categories of net assets, both for the government as a whole, as well as for its separate governmental 
and business-type activities. The City's combined net assets increased to $31,400,546 from 
$29,178,05 1 as a re'sult of the increase in net assets reflected in the next table. 

The largest portion of the City's net assets, $21,709,727 (69%), reflects its investment in capital 
assets (e.g. land, construction in progress, buiIdings, improvements, machinery and equipmenf and 
infkstructure); less any related debt used to acquire those assets that ate still outstanding. An 

-11 -  



CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION ANID ANALYSIS 
i W C H  31,2009 

additional portion of the City's net assets, $6,1-85,493 (20%), represents remurces that sre subject to 
external restrictions on how they may be used. The remaining 'balance of the City's net assets, 
$3,505,326 ( I  1?4), represents unrestricted net assets that.may.be' used to meet the' City's ongoing 
obligations to c.itizens and creditors. 

. 
. 

Change in Net Ass& 

The folIowing table reflects the revenues and expenses fiom the City's activities: 

s ~ 1 , 3 8 2  s 13@,1?8 s 2 1 , n i m  s yi2rg;s s 22,782,704 s u,489,113 
1,303,457 1.492.5 73 . -  I ,30.:,457 1,4%579 

2,892,812 ;ns.ass - . 2392.El2 3725,868 
1,202,033 13i)4.598 1.2@2,033 IJWM 

423246 295,305 
121.02; 125,130 

423,246 295,3@5 
121,023 126,130 
234.011 252.273 . 422,917 404,876 . . 656,928 ' 661,149 - .. 

7,167,964 7,56833 I. 12216.239 ~513 .8 l l  zV,182,203 30.102,142 . .  

625,865 
1,581.32 I 
3,501,412 
1,035,047 

921,817 
~ , n 9  

8,111.239 

(1 2,243) 
1%,3?4 
184.131 

424eLi3 . 737,943 . -  731,943 
3.101;434 1.58 1,521 3,16;1.434 . . 
1,553,164 3,501,412 1,563,160 
i.on,sss 1,035,047 i,on,859 
603,927 - .  92 1.81 7 603927 
439.608 ' MLn9 439,608 

- 1,784,867 1 ,w,m 1,784367 1,568,458 
14.739.071 . . 15,116,987 14.l39.071 15.1 16,987 
2,813,032 2,680,219 2.213.032 2,680919 

503,BGB 526,OM 503,868 526.084 . .  
94.695 99,104 94.695 99,704 

7 ,523931  19,935.533 19,991.45: 2e,04€,172 2i.5 15,383 

(12.243) 
1%,3?4 
183,131 

(759,144) 44,399 !.!78.7@5 2.542.359 i,519,562 2,536,359 

2,107,567 2,110.984 [2,1[17:567> {2,llu,w; 
300,000 150.000 c;ww (Is0.000) 

2,407,567 &260,984 (2,407,567) (2,2260,954) 
1,648,423 2,305,383 (126,8f I )  281,375 1,51P,Sh2 2,586.759 
11,191JOa 8,885,825 17,986,843 17.734.245 LY,I?S.'JSI 26.62iLl70 

702,933 (28,673 702,953 (28,877) 
6 12,839,631 S 1!.191.208 S 1R,56O,915 S 17,986,343 f 31,400>46 S 29.178.051 
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crTy OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS 
MARCH 31,2009 

Governmental Activities 

Governmental activities increased the City's net assets by $1,648- Sales tax revenues, the largest 
governmental category, were $2,892,812. For the fiscal year ended March 31, 2009, revenues 
totaied $29,382,203 (govemmentaI and business-type). Revenues from governmental activities total 
$7,167,964, or 24%, of the totaI City revenues. City revenues decreased $400,367 within the 
governmental activities. 

Certain revenues are generated that are specific to governmental program activity. These 
totaled $1,360,178. The following table shows expenses and program revenues of the 
governmental activities for the year ended March 3 1 , 2009 and 2008: 

Net Cost of City of Monett Governmental Activities 

Total cost of service Net cost of service 
2009 2008 2009 2008 

Policy development and administration $ 628,863 $ 737,943 $ 420,539 $ 15,555 
Public safety 3,501,4 12 3,101,434 3,460,172 3,009,765 
Public works 1,581,321 1,563,160 455,779 157,159 

Municipal airport 442,779 439,608 (1 09,175) 171,848- 
Interest on long-term debt 

I Park and recreation 1,03 5,047 1,077,859 667,268 712,920 

921,817 ' 603,927 921,8 17 603,927 
.$ 8,111,239 $7,523,931 $5,816,400 $4,671,174 

As previously noted, expenses from governmental activities total $8,111,239 million. 
However, net costs of these services were $5,8 16,400. The difference represents direct 
revenues received from charges for services of $991,382 and capital grants and 
contributions of $1,303,457. T 'aes  and other revenues of $7,464,823 were collected to 
cover these net costs. 

Business-type Activities 

Business-type activities decreased the City's net assets by $128,861. Key elements of this 
decrease are as follows: 

. The water recorded net loss of $44,646 for the year. Revenues relating to charges for 
services increased $1 8 1,462. Operating expenses increased $2 18,655 compared to prior 
year expenses due to increases in repairs and maintenance expense. 

The electric recorded net income of $590,762 for the year. Revenues relating to 
charges for services increased $47,158. Operating expenses decreased $377,917 due to 
storm related expenditures incurred in the prior year. 
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C I T Y  OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
MANAGEhlENT DISCUSSION AND AEiaLY SIS 
NLARCH 31,2009 

. . The sewer recorded a net loss ofb$807,818 for the year. Revenues relating to charges 
-for services decreased $603. Increases in cost included $74,765 in repair and maintenance 
over prior year expenses. 

Financial Analysis of the City's Funds 

As of the end of the fiscal year, the City's governmental funds report a combined fbnd 
ba lance  of $12,839,631 (an increase of approximately 15%). This increase is Iargely due 
to t h e  repayment of principal on debt service obligations. 

The f ind balance of the General Fund decreased to $1,478,584 at the end.of the fiscal year 
d u e  to capital expenditures. 

The net assets in the E-911 Fund increased t o  $137,225 (increase of $2,315 or 2%) in 
the fiscal year due to retention of restricted revenues far 911 purposes. 

The.Electric Fund's net assets increased $590,762 (19%) in the current year as a result of the 2007 

-. 

storm related expenditures from the prior year. . .  

The Sewer Fund's net assets decreased $SC!7,8 18 (0.8%) in the current year as a result of operating 
expenses and debt service payments in excess of operating revenues. 

General Fund Budgetag Highlights 

D B i i n c e s  betmeen the original and the final amended budget can be summarized as follows: 

Actual revenues were $787,692 less than originally budgeted. 

The original revenue budget of$6.58 million was decreased to $6.46 million. 

The  total original expenditure budget of $9.98 million was increased to $10.55 million. 

Capital Assets and Debt Administration Capital Assels 

. The City's investment in capital assets for its governmental and business-type activities as of 
. March 31.; 2009, amounts to $48.8 milIion (net of accumulated depreciation). This investment in 

. capita! assets includes land, buildings, improvements, machinew and equipment, and 
iixfkastructure. 

Capital events during the current fiscal year included the following: 

Airport taxiway $355,277. 

Electric infrastructure $25,995 and digger truck $1 87,676. 

Fiber optic infrastructure $4,599. 
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a 

. .  

1 -  

8 

. ,  . .  
. _  

. .  Golf chlorine contact . . .  basin $26;984 and tractor $22,03 I .  

North Park mower $14,692. 

Police station building $602,292, (8) computers for vehicles .$22,840, surveilIance equipment 
$127,650,200' communication tower. $267,91'8, security system $44,145, mobile filing ' ' 

$124,523, E-91 1 workstations $51,074, (4) computer servedcomputer rack $28,650, ice , 

maker $1,348, refiigerator' $1,614, phone system $20,049, fum-iture $97,525, and (3) 2009 . . 
Dodge Charger police cars $86,024. 

. .  . .  

. .  , .  

. .  . .  
. .  , .  

. .  Recreation roof at 205 Euclid $53,420. 

Sew& chlorine basin $26,984, poitable generator $66,363, camera system $56,126, and flow 
meter package $38,250. 

South Park festival of lights $5,058 and resurface (4) tennis c a d  $20,430. 
. . . . .  . . . . . . .  

- .  * .  . .  
. '. Streets department wheel loader $.I 12,341; overhead ca'lcium-equipment $8,110, roller screed . . . . .  

$6,20O,~infiastructure - Clear Creek $325,990, Eisenhower Bridge $1,239916, Greenway . _  . _  . . , - .  . .  

. . . .  . . .  . . .  , . _ . . (  . _  . .  . .  . .  
Project $49,630, Cleveland overlay $1 52,991, TIF 1 infias,tructure $7,913,911. 

. . _ .  . .  . .  
. ,  

._. 
. . .  . .  . .  . .  

, i .  L- . . . .  . .  . .  . .  - 
. -  

Water Scada system' $8,186. 1 
. .  i , _ (  

. . .  , . . :  . .  . .  . .  (net of iero&ated *preciationk. . .  
. . . . . . . . . .  . .  ... . .  . .  

,.:Governmental , Business-type ' . .  
activities activities Total 

2008 2009 2008 2009 2008 
$ 939,344 $ 210,160 $ 210,160 $ 1,149,506 $ 1,149,504 

2009 
Land $ 939,346 
Construction in progress 110,384 

Machinery and equipment 2,188,605 
Building and improvements 4,947.5 19 

Infiastructure 19,536J 77 
Total . $ 27,722,031 

For additional information on 
statements. 

Debt Administration 

. . .  . . . . . .  - .  . -  . .  
110,384 

4,584,323. . 668;171 ' ' _  694,325 5,615,690 5,278,yK 

. - 10,054,713. . 19,302,457 I. 20,603,687 38,838,634. . - - 30,658,400 
$ 17,375,568 $ 21,1U,S87, .$ ,22245,033 S 48,844,618 $ 39,620,601 

1,797,188 , . ' 941,799 ~ . 736,861 3,130,404 ' 2,534,049 , 

. .  

capital assets, see note 2(c) -in the notes to financial' 
: I I' 

. .  

The City, at the' end of fiscal 2009, had a total of $27,134,917 of outstanding long-term ' . , - 

debt. This was"a -decrease of $1,404,253 from the previous year, During the fiscal year 
2008/2009, the City repaid principal in the amount of $2,039,432 and incurred $549,1'55. _ ,_  - ,  

. .  
, .  

develope; agreements. payable relating to TIF. 1 infrastructure and incurred $86,024 capital: . . . . .  ' 

lease obligations for the purchase of police cars. . . * :  
.. - . .  - 

. . .  
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CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
MAMAGEI'VNT DISCUSSION AND AF1ALYSIS . . .  

M-ARCEH 31,2009 

. . City of Monett-Ootstandieg Debt - . -  

Governmental 
activities 

2009 2008' 
General obligation bonds $ 108,954 $ 122,271 
Revenue bonds . 13:655,000 14,SI 0,000 

Capital leases and 
participation obli~Aons 3,847,051 4,M0.557, 

Obligations payable 599,155 100,000 

Total - $ 18,210,160 $ 19,132,828 

' .. . . 
. , Busineyitype 

. activities Total 
. 2009 2008 . 2009 2008 

.$ 335,000 $ 350,000 $ 443,954 $ 472,271 
8,125,000 8,470,000 213780,000 22,980,000 

594,155 100,000 . .  , -  

. .. 

464,757 . 586,342 4,311,808 4,986,89? 
$ 8,924,757 $ -9,406.342 $ 27,134,917 $ 28,539,170 

.. 
For Additional information on debt administration, see note i ( d )  in the notes to financial 
statements. 

Requests for Information 

?his financial report is designed to provide the reader a general overview of the City's 
finances. Questions or requests for more information concerning any of the information 
provided in this report should be directed to Janie Knight, City Clerk of the City of Monett, 
PO Box 1 IO, 21 7 5' Street, Monett, MO 65708. 

. .  .. . . . .  
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CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
MARCH 31,2009 

. .  

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents . 

Investments 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid health insurance . . 

Prepaid workman's compensation 

Premium on bond issuance 
Restricted assets: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments . 

, Inventory 

Assessments receivable 
Capital assets: 

Non depreciable 
Depreciable, net 

' TotalAssets . 

LLABILmES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 
Accrued interest payable 

Accrued compensated absences liabilities: 

. .  Due to depositors . .  

Due within' one year' 
Due in more than one year 

Long-term debt liabilities: 
Due within one year 
Due in more than one year 

Developers' agreements 
Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Reserved: . 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
Restricted for: 

Capital projects 
Other purposes 

Unrestricted 
Total Net Assets 

. -  I - .  

_ I  . .  

Governmental Business-type 
. Activities Activities Total 

$ 367,648 ,.'$. 1,234,526 $ 1,602,168 
404,452 404,452 

439,749 .I. 1,542,950 1,982,699 
57,752 3 - 1  57,752 

119,345 ' " :-i . 70,732 190,077 
878,666 878,666 

400,465 . 439,792 840,257 

. .  ... 
. :. 

2,955,350 . ' . -. -. 1,035,215 

254,6 16 

1,049,730 ' . .  210,160 

- :y: 2,192,986 
. .- 

26,672,301 , 20,912,430 
- . ''32,062,340 : 29,176,s 19 

, .  

. _  
I .  _ ,  

1,087,952 . 239,510 . ' '.' 
. 92,370 .' :..! 47,240 

285,495 
14,187. ' '342,022 ' 

.- . - .  
. 192,289 

38,099 21,365 

1,362,78 1 ._ 454,136 
16,298,222 8,470,600 

19,222,709 10,615,604 

342,890 , . 

. - . ! ,  . .  

549,155 

. . .  , 

. 931  1,873 

2,820,067 
137,225 
370,466 

$ 12,839,631 

3,990,565 

254,616 
2,192;986 

1,259,890 
47,584,731 
61,238,859. 

1,327,462 
139,610' 
285,495 

' 356,209 . 

535,179 
59,464 

. . .  
1,s 16,917 

24,768,822 , 

549,155 
29,838,313 

12,197,854 21,709,727 

2,820,067 
3,228,2O 1 3,365,426 
3.134.860 3.505.326 - I  ~ , > I  

$ 18,560,915 $ 31,400,546 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
STATEMENT OF ACTIVITIES 
YEARENDED MARCH 31,2009 

Fuactionsmrograins 

Governmental activities: 
Policy development and adininistration 
Public sdety 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 
Municipal airport 
Interest on long-term debt 

Total goveriimeiitol iictivities 

Business-type activities: 
Waterworks 
Electric 
Wastewater-sewer 
Sanitation 
Fiber optics 

Total business-type ilctivilius 

Total city 

Expenses 

$ 628,863 
3,501,4 12 
1,581,321 
1,035,047 
442,779 
921,817 

8,111,239 
- 

1~84,867 
14,739,071 
2,813,032 
503,868 

94,GY5 
19,935,533 

1-1. --- 
$ 28,046,772 

Progrim Revenues 

Cknrges for Gwits  and 
Cnpitnl 

Service Contrihritions 

. .. . 
' J  ' 208,324 $ 

34,051 7,189 
191,688 933,854 
350,112 '17,667 
207,207 344,747 

991,382 1,303,457 

1,934,03 1 
17,296,765 
1,8 10,725 
565.831 

See accompanyirig nctcs ti:, rho financial statements. 

,18-, . 

Net Heveilire (Expense) anti 
Changes in Net Assets - ".I_. 

Governmental Business-type 
A c t i v i t t L  Activities Total 

$ (420,539) $ !I (420,539) 
(3,460,172) (3,450,172) 

(667,268) (667,265) 
109,175 109,175 

(455,779) (455,779) 

(92 1 ,S 1 7) ' (921,817) 
($81 6,400) (5,816,400) 

149,164 
2,557,694 
(1,002,307) 

6 1,963 

1,855,789 
8 9 , ~ s  

- _  

(531 6.400) 1,855,789 

149,164 
2.,557,694 
(1,002,307) 

61,963. 
89,275 

1,855,789 

(3,960,611) 

.. . _ -  . . ,. .- . ._ ._ . . .. I 



. , ... . 

. .  

General revenues 
Sales arid'use taxes 
Sales and use taxes - police station 
Motor fuel sal& tax 
M & M surcharge tax 
Emergency telephone tax 
Sales tax - TIF 
Real estate tax - TIF 
Franchise fees , .  

Payments in lieu oftaxes 
Investment revenue 
Gain (loss) sale of assets 
Settlement 
Miscellaneous 

Transfers . 
Total general revenues aild t r a d e r s  

Change in net assets . 
Net assets - beginning . 
Prior period adjustment ' 

Net assets - ending 

. .  

, Net Revenue (Expense) and 
Changes in Net Assets 

Governmental Business-type 
I . .. * . (  '",,, i, . I I . .. I , ,  < . . . , ,  . ,  

Activities Activitles Tntal 

2,179,966 
428,701 
284,145 
37,320 
83,703 
845,871 
356,162 
423,246 

2,107,567 
104,478 
( 12,243) 
196,374 
129,533 
300,000 

7,464,823 
1,648,423 
11,191,208 

$ 12,839,631 
Y 

. . _ _ . .  _.. 

. . .... - 

(2;107,567) 
422,917 

(300,000) . 

(128,861) 
' ' (1,9.84,650) 

17,986,843 
702;933 

$ 18,560,915 

' .' "2,179,966 

284;1'45 
37.320' 

. 83,703. 
845,871':' 
356,162 
423,246 

42a,70 I 

'- . 
527;395 
(1 2,243) 
196,374 .. 
129,533 

5,480, I73 
1,5 19,562 

29,178;05,1 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
GOVERNMENTAL FUM)S BALANCE SHEET 
MARCH 31,2009 

. . .  , 

ASSETS 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid health insurance 
Prepaid worfcrnan's compensation 
Restricted assets: . 

Cash and cash equivalents 
Investments 

Total assets 

LIABILITIES 
Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 
Due to depositors 

Total linbilities 
s .  

FUND EALANCX 
Reserved: 

Reserved for E-9 1 1 
Reserved for Tax lncrernent Financing 
Reserved for prepaid iiems 

Total fund balances 
Undesignated 

'rota1 linbilities and fund balnnces 

Mnjor Piinds 

Tax Increment Tax Increment, 
Finance Finance 

. E-911 District 1 District 2 General 

.$ $ $ 367,648 $ 

57,752 
31,315 1 1,276 397,158 -_ 

1 19,345 

40,649 137,225 1,999,780 777,696 

$ 982,552 $ 137,225 .' . $ 788,972 
i 

$ $ $ 129,125 $ 
92.370 

. 14,187 
235,682 

137,225 

177,097 
2,03 1,095 788,972 

569.773 - 
746,870 137,225 2,03 1,095 ' 788,972 

$ 982,552 $ 137,225 d 2,031,095 $ 788,972 

Totd 
Governmen tal 

Funds 

$ 367,648 
43 9,749 
57,752 

I 19,345 

2,055,350 
, . I  

$ '3,939,844 

$. 129,125 
92,390 
14,187 

235,682 

137,225 
2,820,067 
. 177,097 
569,773 

3,704,162 

3,939,844 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
RECONCILIATION OF THE GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS BALANCE SHEET 

MARCH 31,2009 
TO THE STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 

Amounts reported for governmental activities in the statement of net assets are different because: 

Total fund balance - total governmental funds 

Capital assets used in governmental activities are not current financial 
resources, and therefore, are not reported in the governmental funds.. 

Governmental capital assets 
Less accumulated depreciation 

Long-term liabilities; including certificates of participation, capital lease 
obligations, and accrued compensated absences, are not due and 
payable in the current period, and therefore, are not reported as 
liabilities in the governmental funds. 

. Revenuebonds 
General obligation bonds 

Notes payable 
Capital lease obligations . 

Developers' agreements 
Accounts payable - capital work in progress 
Accrued compensated absences 
Unamortized issuance cost of bonds 
Acci-ued interest liability 

Net assets of governmental activities 

$ 3,704,162 

$ 40,976,468 
(13,254,437) 

27,722,03 1 

(1 08,954) 
(1 3,655,000) 

(50,000) 
(3,847,049) 

(549,155) 
(1 10,384) 
(380,989) 

. , _ .  - . 400,465 
' (285,496) 

(1 8,586,562) 

$ 12,839,631 - 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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MajorFunds 

REVENUES 
Business license and permits 
Federal and state grants 
Fines and fodeituxs 
Franchise fees 

Investment iricome 
Intergovernmental 
other revenuc 
O h  taxes'ald assessments 

- .  Rental revenue 

' ' Salestax . -  

. .  

TotalRwenues . 

I EXPENDITURES. 
Current 

Policy development znd administration 
Public safety 
Public works 
Parks and recreation 
Municipal Rirprt 

Capital outlay 
Deht Service: 

Principal 
Interest m d  other c h q p  

Tota! Expenditurn 
Exas (Dcficiency)of Rmnucs 

oyer Expdhres 

OTRER hWANCING SOURCES (USES) 
Due &on (to) othei funds 
Gajn (loss) on sale orassets 
Settlement 

Roceeds &om financing 
Transfers - payments in lim of taxes (PIU)TS) 
Transfiers m 

Total Other Financing Sources (Uses) 

.. . NetCnangeinFundBalances 

Fund balance - beginning 
Fund balance ending 

Tax Incremeor Tax Increment . 
Finance Finance 

General Xr9iI . District I District 2 

s 22,834 
1,303,457 
194,660 
42336 

2,603,667 
31,717 

74 1.303 
321,465 

2 
r $ - .  S 

567,263 
a3jcm 

10,800 
83,703 259,476 

278,605 
9,46 1 

46,686 
151,319 

5,798,668 94,503 890,039 384,755 

Total 
Governmental 

Funds 

S 22,834 
1303,457 
194,660 . 
423246 

104,478 

752, i 03 
761,330 

3,454,535 

151319 
7,167,965 

_ _  
587,965 567,965 . 

3,057255 92,188 3,149,413 
1,168,702 12,967 6,46 1 1,188,130 

29 I ,2d6 29 1,246 
764,706 784,706 

3,545,647 7,913,911 11,459,558 

702,848 - 361,985 500,000 - 1,564,833 
171,896 299,l E7 214,587 685,670 

10J31@,295 .. 92,188 8,585,@50 721,048 19,713,%'.. . 

(4,511,627) 2,315 . c7,698,011) (336,293) (12,543,616) . .. 
. .  . .  

51,695 
196,3354 
86,024 

2,107,567 
591,393 

3,033,043 

2,315 

549,155 

(291,393) 
257,762 

(7,440,249) 

2,225,454 134,910 9,471,344 
.% 746.870 $ 137,225 $ 2,031,095 

(336,293) 

1,125,265 
s 755,972 

51,685 ' 

196,374 
63 5,179 

2,107,567 
300,000 

3,290,805 

(9,252,811) 

12,956,973 
$ 3,704.162 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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, CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
RECONClLIATlON OF TEE CHANGES LN ]FUND BALANCES OF. 

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 I 

GOVERNMENTAL FUNDS TO THE STATEMEN" OF ACTIVITIES 

Amounts reported for goveGental activities in the statement of activities are difference because: 
.. . 

I .  
. .  - .  

. .  
. .  Net change in fund balance 1 total governmental funds 

Governmental funds report q i t a l ,  outlay as expenditures. However, in the 
statement of activities the *st of ihose assets is allocated over their 
estimated useful lives. ..: . .  

In the Statement-of Activities cost of capital outIay assets is allocated over their 
estimated usefid lives and reported as depreciation expense. 

In the Statement of Activities cost'of accrued compensated absences are expensed . i , . 
as salary costs. 

Governmental funds report unamoritzed bond preimum as expenditures. However, in the . 

statement of activities the cost ofthose premiums are allocated,over their 
debt repayment lives. _ .  

In the Staiernent of Activities 'wst of accrued interest expenses of tax increment finanding di&Gt 

-.. . . - .  . _  
are expensed as interest costs. 

.Governmental funds report prcjceeds from financing ai revenue. However, in the . : .':: . : 
. ..  . .  - 

statement of activities the proceeds of those loans are balance sheet items . . ., I .  

. . and not reported on the Swementbf Activities. .: , 

The repayment of the principal of long-term debt consumes the current financial .' 

, .  

resources of governmental funds. 

. .  
. C  , 

. .  
3 -.. , 
7 .  

i . Change in ne t  assets of governmental activities . .  

. .  

. .  _ .  . .  
9 -  

. _. . 

11,395,630 

(1,159,5 54) 

(28,348) I 

(196,995) :.' 

. .  

(642,163), : 

1,564,833 

$ 1,648,424 

, .. . 
~ .. 

. .  - .  
see accompaiying notes to the financial stitements. 
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CITY OF MONETT; MISSOURI 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS STATEMENT OF NET ASSETS 
MARCH 31,2009 

ASSETS 
Current assets: 

' Cash and cash equivalerits 
Investments 
Accounts receivable 
Prepaid workinen's coinpeiuntion 
Tnveiito1.y 
Due fkom other funds 
Unamortized bond issue costshvestments 

Total current assets 

Noncurrent assets: 
Restricted assets: 

Cash.and cash equivalcnts 
Investments . . 

Total restricted assets 

Assessments receivable 

Capital assets: 
Land, 
Building and improvements 
Machinery and equipment 
Infrastructure. . . 

Construction in progress 
Less: accumulated depreciation 

Total.capitnl assets (net of accumulated 
depreciation) 

Tota I noncurrent assets 

Total Assets 

, .  

. .  . .  
. .  .. . . . . .  . . . .  . . .  . ,  

Mtjor Enterprise Fonds Tots1 
'En teipris c 

Funds 
, .  , 

.I- 
Electric Sewer Sanitation Fiber -.-- --- Watenvorks 

4,710 $ 1,234,520 

i32,i44 1,217,020 ' 130,622 35,753 17,411 1,542.950 
15,583 . 30,295 ' 8,425 16,429 70,732 
191,891 630,400 26,420 39,955 878,666 

S 996,374 .% f 233,436 $ 
404,452 - 404,452 

$ 

, .  

360,000 360,000 - 439,792 439,792 - 
339,615 3,638,541 - 6 15,259 - 285,618 52,070 433 1,112 

. . . .  , .  , 

' 49,384 326;805 6551,026 1,035,215 
3 19,926 - 1,573,060 2,192,986 
369,3 10 . 326,805 2,532,086 .- - 3,228,201 

. .  . .  
. .  . .  , .  

56,932 58:400 94,828 210,160 
908,946 75 1,127 ' 33,705 84,876 1,778,656 

2,700,898 
6,685,017 5,244,864 24,8701595 61,189 63 5,923 37,497,588 

(3,523,070) (5,057,462 (1 1,596,480) 

402,402 791,5 18 494,599 1.012,379 

(743,l OS) (144.5871 1 2  1,064,7 12) 

21,122,590 
4,899,537 2,1 J 5,247- 1,6,683?949 415,335 491,3 36 24,605,407 

29 5313 519 5,239,155 5 , 7 5 3 E  17,299,208 700,956 543,412 

4,530,227 1,788,442 13,897,247 - 415,338 - 491,336 

-.-..-- 

Scc accompmiying notes to the financial slatemcnts. 
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. 

LIABILITIES 
Current liabilities: 
. Accounts payable 
Accrued payroll and payroll taxes 
Due to other funds 
Current maturities of long-term debt 

Total current liabilities 

Long-term liabilities, less current maturities: 
Due to depositors 
Accrued compensated absences 
Notes and capitalized lease obligations payable 
Neighborhood improvement bonds 
Revdnue bonds payable, net 

Total noncurrent liabilities 

Total Liabilities 

NET ASSETS 
Reserved: 
Invested in capital assets, net of related debt 
.Restricted for: 

Unrestricted 
Other purposes 

. .  

Total Net Assets 

Ma,Jr Enterpi .,e Funds Total 

W aterworlcs Electric Sewer Snnitation Fiber Funds 
Enterprise 

2,917 1,074,534 10,501 1,087,952 
12,001 19,130 - 12,265 3,844 47,240 

360,000 360,000 - 
68,440 370,000 15,696 454,13 6 
83,358 1,093,664 382,265 30,041 360,000 1,949,328 

28,414 313,608 
38,353 122,212 41,662 1 1,427 
380,600 - .  

335,000 - 

342,022 
2 13,654 
380,600 
335,000 

- 
7,755,000 7,755,000 

447,367 435,820 8,13 1,662 11,427 .9,026,276 

, 360,000 10,975,604 530,725 1,529,484 8,s 1 3,927 41,468 

. . .  . .  . . .  . ,  

491,336 ' 12,197,854 4,149,627 . .' 1,788,442 ' ' 5,807,247 ' 415,338 

369,310 326,805 2,532,086 3,228,20 1 
5,908,925 558,803 2,435,062 2,978,034 244,150 (307,924) 

$ 4,708,430 $ 4,224,304 $ 8,785,281 ' $ 183,412 i $ 18,560,915 

See accompanying notes to the finmcial statements. 
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. .  

CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGES 

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 
IN FUND NET ASSETS 

OPEMTING REVENUES 
Charges for services 

OPERATING EXPENSES 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Depreciation 
Coniputer 
Education 
Electric purchases 
Health and life insurance 
Insiiraoce 
Landfill and recycling 
Miscellaiieoiis 
Professional and consulting service 
Repairs and maintenaiice 
Retirement 
Supplies 
Telephone 

. Utilities 
Workman's compensation 
Totnl Operating Expenses 

Operating Income (Loss) 

NONOPERATING REVENUES (EXPENSES) 
Investment income 
Federal and state grants 
Miscellaneous hicome 
Interest expense and fees 

Total Nonoperating Revenues (Expenses) 

Income (Loss) Before Contributions and Transfers 

Payments in lieu of taxes (PILOTS) 
Transfers out 
' Change in Net Assets 

Net assets - beginning 
Prior period adjustment 
Net assets - ending 

Major Enterprise Funds 

Waterworks Electric Sewer Smitrtioii Fiber ' 

S 1,724,125 $ 17,220,777 $ 1,809,703 $ 562,293 $ 165,322 

439,429 
32,436 

257,246 
7,082 
3,736 

52,205 
17,686 

740 
252,869 
504,97 1 
41,355 

14 1,602 
' 3,949 

11,884 
1,767,190 

(43,065) 

349 
IO 1,34 1 
108,565 
(17.677) 

. 192,578 

761.147 
55,081 

166,914 
10,413 
10,869 

13.1 14,942 
74,009 
71,943 

1,789 
23,253 

139,814 
82,593 

199,813 
' 7,653 

- I  

18,838 
14,739,07 1 

2,481,706 

1,280 
1,147 

74,841 

77,268 

446,689 
. 32,650 

1,019,051 
7,398 
1,105 

44,632 
21,666 

618 
139,520 
507,712 
47,575 
58.654 

. ' 3,756 

7,244 
2,338,270 

(528,567) 

j .  ,. . 

421,288 

1,022 
(474,762). 
(52,4521 

123,122 
2,569 

82,925 

20,132 
4,785 

152,957 
5,253 

108 
70,890 
11,941 

. 7.831 
314 

15,932 
498,759 

63.534 

. 3,538 
(5,109) . 
(1,5712 

31,566 

14 

18,648 
16,924 
4,670 

2 1,943 
93 0 

94,695 

70,627 

18,648 

18,648 

. .  

149,5 13 2,558,914 (581,019) 61,963 89,215 

(194,159) (1,668,212) . . (226,799) (18,397) 
(300,000) 

(44,646) 590.762 (807,818) 6 1,963 70.878 

4,599,563 3,129,222 9,57 l',963 597,525 . ' 88.570 ' 

' 153,513 ' '504,320 : ' 21,136 ' 23,964 , 

$ 4,708,430 $ 4,224,304' . $ 8,785,281 $ . 659,488 $ 183,412 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Totnl 

Funds ' 

Enterprise 

S 2!,482,220 

1,770,387 
122,736 

24,893 
15,724 

13.1 14,942 
190,978 
116,080 
152,957 
27,048 

432,674 
1.228,05 7 

183,464 
429,843 
.16,602 

1.557,ioz 

53,898 
19,437,985 

2,044,235 

422,917 :.. , 

102,488 . 
206.614 . 

(497,548) 
234,'471 

2,278,706 

- .  . , ._ .. 
' (300,000) 

' (128,861) 

. 17,986,843 
,. . . 702,933 
$ 18,560,915 

. .  

. .  
.. . . .  . .  

' . I  _ .  . .  . .  



CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
PROPRIETARY FUNDS STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS 
YEAR ENDED,MAHCH 31,2009 

. . - .  ... . . .  .:c. 

CnsIi flows from operating nctivities: 
Cash received from customers 
Cnsh received from other sources 
Cash pnyments to suppliers 
Cash payments to eniployees 
Cash payments tu employee benefits w d  payroll taxes 
Cash payments for other expenses 

Net cash provided by (used iu) operating activities 

Cnsh flows from non-crpitnl hnancing activities: 
Transfers from (to) other funds 
Timsfers -Payments in lieu of taxes (PLLOTS) 
Due (fiom) to other fiinds 

' 

Net cash provided by (used in) non-capital financing activities 

Cash flows from capital and related financing activities: 
Inteitst expense & fees 
Principal payment on capital lease 
Purchase of capital acquisitions 
Federal and state grants 
Financing proceeds 
Redemption of bonds payhle 

Net cash provided by (used in) capital and related 
financing nctivities 

Cash flows from iiivesting nctivities: 
Investment income 
Sale of investments - held to maturity 

Net c8sh provided by (used in) investing activities 

Net increase jdecrzase) in cash niid cash equivnlents 

Cnsh and cash cquivnlents -beginning 

Cnsh ?nd cash eqiilvnlents - ending 

Wntenvorlcs 

$ 1,724,990 
108,565 

. (444,677) 
(125,996) 
(83 1,305) 
25 1.598 

(179,979) 

Mnjor Eiiterprisc Funds 

Electric Sever Sanitntion 
, . . . .  

$ ' 17,518,930 $ 2,095,404 $ 567,328 
- 74,841 1,022 3,538 

(13,440,835) (63,938) [5,83 1) 
(751,812) (446,730) (120,496) 
(21 1,683) (124,857) (34,642) 
(296,597) (936,078) (273,785) 

2,892,844 524,823 134,112 

~ 

Fiber 

S 162,496 
18,648 

(27,934) 
- .  

(4 1,186) 
112,024 

Totnl 
Enterprise 

Funds 

$ 22,069,148 
206,614 

(13,720,5 17) 
(1,763,715) 

(497,178) 
(2,378,95 1) 
3,915,401 

(300,000) (300,000) 
(194,159) (1,668,212) (226.799) . . (18,3975 (2,107.568) 

c ' 84,390 (84,390) 
(1 94,159) (1,683,822) (226.799) (102,787) , , . , (2,407,568) 

(17,677) ~ 
(474,762) , . . (5,109) 

(66,094) (360,000) (55,5 14) 

101,341 1,147 
(5.n94) , (215,965) (208,801) 

. .  

(497,548) 
(481,608) 

(4,598) (435,258) 
- .  102,488 
- '  

11.G76 (21 4.81 8) (1,043,563) (60,623). .. . I ,.'(4,59R) (1,311.926) 
. .  . :. 

349 1,280 42 1.288 422,917 

349 1,280 421,288 422,917 

69.464 795,484 (324,251) 73,489 4,639 618,824 

4,248,348 299,816 932.147 2,856,337 1 Fp49 71 

4,710 $ 4,867,172 16 369,310 S 1,727,631 $ 2,532,086 S 233,436 $ .- 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Major Enterprise Funds ' 
. .  

' Fiber - .. , . .  Waterworks ,' Electric , . Sewer . Sanitation . 

Displayed as: 
Cash and cash equivalents 
Restricted - cash and cash equivalents 

Total cash, cash equivalents, and investments 
. . . .  _ -  

. ,  . . .  
RECONCILIATION OF OPERATING INCOME (LOSS) TO NET CASH PROVIDED (USED) BY OPERATING ACTIVITIES 

. .  

$ - . .$ . 1,400,826 $ 
. , .  369,310 , . , 326,805 2,532,086 

$ 369,310 I ;$1,'727,631 S 2,532,086 -. , ,.. 

Operating income (loss) 
Adjustments to reconcile operating income (loss) to 

net cash provided by (used in) operating activities: 
Depreciation 
Amortization 
Misceflaneous revenue 

. (Increase) decrease in accounts receivable. 
(Increase) decrease in prepaid d e s  tax . .  
(Increase) decrease in inventory 
Increase (decrease) in workmen's coiiipensation 
Increase (decrease) in accounts payable 
Increase (decrease) in accrued payroll 
Increase, (decrease) in customer deposits 
hicrease (decrease) in accrued compensated absences 

Net cash provided by (used in) operating activities 

' 

NONCASH CAPITAL FINANCING ACTIVITES 

Supplemental information 
Interest paid 

$ .' '(43,065) '5 . .  
, .  

257,246 

108,565 
955 . . 

(38,377) ' 

(6,241) 
(22,147) 

(90) 
3,609' . 

2,?81,706 

, \ .  

.I 66,9 14 

,74,84 1 
227,886 
63,437 

(li!6,080) 
(1 3,999) 
' 1,974' 
5,916. 

' 6,830.' 

' $ (528,566) 

. 1,019,051 
' (231,371) 

1,022 
285,701 

(5,284) 
13,723) 

* (11,966) 
4,454 

' .S 63,534 .. $ 70,627 
. ,  

82,925 

3,538 
5,035 

, _ _  

(7,097) 
(1 6,449) 
1,405 

(8,857) 3,419 I (4,495) I ,22 1 
$ 251,598 $ 2,892,844 $ 524,823 $ 134,112 

. .  'T!. , .. .~ - __ I_. . . . . . .  
. I  

... 

. -  

... 
$ . 112,024 ' 

c 

Total 
Enterprise 

Funds ' 

$. 1,638,971 
. 3,228,201 

$ ' 967,172 

t 2,044,236 

. . . .  . . . . . .  - ,  ,:i ..I ' .': : .:' . - .. . . .  

$ 17,677.00 $ $ 474,762 00 $ 5,109.00 $ $ 497,548.00 

I ' . .  

1,557,702 
(23 1,371) 
206,614 
516,751 
63,437 

(175,732) 
(31,060) 
(48,588) 

6,740 
.. - 15,384 

' (8,712) 
$ ' ,3,915,401 

. I .  , . .  , 

. . .  . . . .  - 3 ,  
, .  

. .  - - . -  , . %  

. . . .  . . .  , .  .. , .. . . . . . . .  
. See accompmying notes to the financial statements. 
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CITY O F  MONETT, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31,2009 

~~ 

0: - 

. .  . -  
1) SuMMAR . Y OF.SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING.PO~~CIES 

. -  (A) Reporting Entity . . .  - 

. .  

The City of Monett, Missouri, was incorporated as. a town &I 1888 and, as a city on March 3, 1914, 
under the provisions of the State of Missouri: The City operates under a Mayor-Board of Commission 
'form of government as a Third Class City. The Mayor and the twGCommissioners serve four-year terms 
that expired in April 2012, and to which they were re-elected-for hother four-years. The City provides a 

' . variety of general 'govenimental services to' residents including general administrative services, public 
safety, public works, parks and recreation, and airport operations." Other services include water, electric, ,' 

sewer, fiber optic, and sanitation operations.. 

The financial reporting entity consists of the primary government and its component units, which are 
entities that the government is considered financially accountable for. The determination of financial 
accountabiIity includes consideration of a number of cr.iteria; including: (1) the appointment of a 
voting majority- of an entity's governing 'authority and the agility of the primary government. to 
impose its will on the entity, (2) the potential for the entity to provide specific financial benefits to, or 
impose specific financial burdens on, the primary g o v e h e n t ,  and (3) the entity's fiscaI 

' . 

'. ' 

I .  

. 

. ,  

. L.?' dependency. on the . I  primary . .  government. , .. . . ._ 
_ .  ..,, * I. 

-. . ,. _ .  
. . .. Blended Component Unit - The- following legally. separate entity is a component unit, which is, in 

substance, a part .of .,@e' City's general operations. This compo&t ..... . unit . provides services entirely, or 
, 'almost entirely, to the pr&ary government or provides s,eGices which exclusively, or almost 

exclusively, benefit the primary government. Data from this unit is combined with data of the 

i 
. .  

- .  primary -government €or financial reporting purposes. . .  
. .  

The East Highway 60 CohrnunityImprovernent District (CD):- The CID, a political subdivision of 
the State of Missouri under Section 67.1401 to 67.1571 of the Revised Statutes of Missouri 2000, was 
created under Ordinance No. 7577 of the City adopted July 14,2006. The purpose of the District shall 
be those purposes stated in Section 67.1401 to 67.1571 RSMo. 2000. The CID was established to 
impose a sales tax ef one-half of one percent .of all retail sales within the district for a period of four 
years from the date on which the tax is first imposed for the purpose of providing revenues to support 
a revenue bond issue in the City of Monett, Missouri to correct the blight conditions within the 

. .  . district. . .  

. .ne.board of directors of the district consists of five persons appointed by the Mayor with the advice 
and consent of the City Council. Financial information for the CID has been included within the 
governmental .activities and .governmental funds. Although it is legally separate from the City, the 
CD. i s  reported as if:.it .were part of the primary government because its sole purpose is to finance 
the construction of various capital projects within the City. No separately issued financial statements 
are prepared for the CID. 

NO other entities met. the criteria for inclusion as component units ofthe City. 
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CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
NOTES TO H;INANCKL STATEMJ3NTS 
MARCH 31,2009 

(B) Government-wide and Fund Financial Stafements 

The basic financial sbtements include both the government-wide. (the Statement of Net Assets arid 
the Statement of Activities) and fund financial stater” 1 d l ~ ;  

.Government-wide Financial Statements: The government-wide statements display inhmation about . 

the -primary government and its component unit. For the most part, the interfund activity has Seen 
eliminated from these statements to minimize the duplication of inteinal activities. Governmental 
activities,. which. are supported by taxes and intergoveinmental revenues, are reported separately from 
business-type activities, which rely on fees and charges for services for support. 

‘In -the government-wide Statement of Net Assets, both the governmental md business-type activities 
are each .consolidated and presented on the full accrua!, eco!iomic resources basis of accounting. T h e  
consolidated presentation incorporates Iong-term assets and receivables as well as long-term debt 
and- obligations, and it provides valuable inforr,nation for greater analyiis and comparabiliry. 

The government-wide Statement .of Activities presents a cornpaison between direct expenses and 
p r o e a r n  revenues’ for each func.tion of the City’s governmental- activities and for the business-type 
activities. Direct expenses are those thst are specificz!ly associated with a program or a function. 

P i a g a m  revenues’ include (a) charges paid by recipients of goods cr service-s offered by, the- 
‘progisms and @) grants and contributions . t M  .are restiicted .to meet operational or capital 
requirements of a particular program. Revenues that are not. classified as program revenues, 
including all -taxes, are presented as general xwemes. Program revemes a% typidlly restricted to , a .  
specific func.tion or activity. 

Fund. Financial Statements: Separate flund. f r inclai  StiitCaeiXs rcport infarmation ofi the City’s 
governmental. and. proprietary funds. The emphasis of ’ h n d  financial statements is on major 
governmental and enterprise funds, each displayed In a sepsrate column. All remaining funds are 
aggregated and reported as nonmajor fun& in their respective cztegories. 

Govenmental  fund financial statements use the c‘urient financial resources measurement focus and the . 
modified accrual basis of zccounting. Consequently, the emphasis on near-term inflows and outflows 
of  resources do not present the long-term inipact of transactions. Revenues are. recognized as soon 
,3s they are both mcasurable and available. Revenues are considered to be available when they are 
collectible within the current period or soon enough therezfter to pay liabilities of the current 
period. Expenditures generally are recorded when a liability .is incurred, as under accrued 
accourlting: Hbw-ever, debt service expenditures, as well as expenditures relating Lo compensated 
absences are recorded only when payment is due. Conversely, the proprietary fund statements 
incorporate the accrual basis of accounting and focus on the change in total economic resources. This 
presentation records long-term assets and liabilities, and recognizes revenues and expenses when 
transactions occur, regardless of their impact on the flow of cash. Since the accounting differs 

govemnenkl ; fund data to arrive at the government-wide financial statements. Therefore, 
reconci-liations have been provided folIowing the governmental funds bzlance sheet and the 

I 
I 

- 

- 

. 

. 

significantly between-the governmental funds and rhe proprietary funds, it is necessary to convtrt the . _  
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statement of revenues, expenditures and changes in fund balance identifjhg categories that 
required conversion from the h n d  statements. 

Jn the governmental funds, sales taxes and interest associated with the current fiscal period are all 
considered to be susceptible to accrual and so have been recognized as revenues of the current fiscal 
period. Only the portion of taxes received within 30 days is considered to be susceptible to accrual as 
revenues of the current period. All other revenue items are considered to be measurable and available 
only when cash is received by the government. 

Operating activities of the proprietary fundsinclude all transactions and other events that are not defined 
as capital and related financing, non-capital financing, or investing activities. More specifically, 
operating revenues consist of sales and charges for services. Operating expenses of the proprietary funds 
inc  Jude personnel services, operating supplies, and services incurred in conducting daily business. 

The City reports the following major governmental funds: 

\ 
! ' .  

General Fund - This fund is the City's primary operating fund. It accounts for all financial 
resources of the general government, except those required to be accounted for in another fund. 

E-911 - The purpose of this fund accounts for revenues and expenditures relating to 911 
emergency dispatching services. Cash and investment for this fund are restricted by state statute: 

Tax Increment Finance - The purpose of this fund accounts for revenues and expenditures,. 
relating to tax increment financing projects: Cash and investments for this fund are restricted by2 
state statute. c 

! 

5 The City reports the following major proprietary funds: 

Water System - This fund accounts for the operations, maintenance and improvement activities 
of the existing water system and capital improvements pertaining to the City wells, facilities, 
equipment and infrastructure. 

Electric System - This fund accounts for the operations, maintenance and improvement 
activities of the existing electric system and capita1 improvements pertaining to the City 
substations, facilities, equipment and infrastructure. 

Sewer System - This fund accounts for the operations, maintenance and improvement activities 
of the existing sewer system and capital improvements pertaining to the treatment plant, lift 
stations, equipment, and infrastructure. 

Sanitation System - This fund accounts for the operations, maintenance and improvement 
activities of the existing sanitation collection system and capital improvements pertaining to the 
recycling center, sanitation equipment and facilities. 

Fiber Optic System - This fund accounts for the operations, maintenance and improvement 
activities of the existing fiber optics system and capital improvements pertaining to the 
equipment, and infrastructure. 

The City reports the following fund types: 
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CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
NOTES T O  FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31,2009 

Internal Service Funds - These f inds account for the costs of the Hazardous Material, Safety, 
and Mechanic Funds on a cost-reimbursement basis. 

(C) Assets, Liabilities, and Net Assets or Equiq 

a. Deposits and Investments 

City monies- are deposited in FDIC-insured banks. Funds in excess of FDIC insurable limits 
are secured with collateral pledged by the banks. Pemiissible investments include obligations 
.of the US.  Government, State of Missouri, bonds, bills or notes guaranteed by the US-', state or 
city governments, certificates of deposir, reprc .hae agreements, bankers acceptances, and 
commercial paper. The City purchases investments from SEC-registered broker-dealers and 
banks. Investments are carried at cost, less purchase premiums which are amortized over the 
life of the investment. Cost approximates fair market value at year end. 

- 

, .  

.. . . .. 

. .  . , . .  

. .  . , * .  .. . .  

, . . .._ . .  b. Receivables and Payables 

. .: .. -Activity between funds that are representative of borrowingAending arrangements outstanding at 
the end of the fiscal year are referred to as either "due to/due f&rn other funds," Any residual 

, . .  - . - . balances outstanding between the. governiiental activities and ' business-type activities are 
reported in the government-wide Enbcia l  statements as "interns: balances." . 

. -  
. .  

. 6. Inventories and Prepaid Items 

. . .  . .  . :. - ,  

. .  

- . Purchases of various operating suppliss are regarded as hventories at the time purchased and 
... -are recorded as 'assets at the close of the fiscal year. Supplies purchased are expe:ised at the - 8  

. . 

time they are put into use. . .  

Certaiii payments to vendors reflect costs applicable to 'future accounting periods and are 
recorded as prepaid items. Health insurance premiums ,and workman's compensation are 
accounted for using the consumption method. . .  

. .  . 
d, Restricted Assets 

. .  . .  , Certain proceeds of the City's bonds, as well as certziin reSowces set s i d e  for their repaplent, 
are classified as restricted assets on the applicable balance sheets and statement of net assets 
because they are maintained in separate bank accounts and their w e  is limited by applicable 
bond covenants. 

. ' 

e. Assessment ReceivabIe 

. 
'. .Tn 2004, the .City issued Neighborhood Improvement District Bonds for the BrandemilIlCountry 

CIub Gravity Sewer Project. Certain costs related to this project are reimbursed to the City,  by 
way 01 a sew-er assessment. At March 3 1 , 2009, the outstanding balance was $254,6 16. 

f. Capital Assets 
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Capital assets include land, construction in progress, buildings and improvements, equipment, 
and infrastructure assets (e.g., roads, bridges, storm sewers, and  similar items) and are included 
in the applicable governmental or business-type activities columns in the government-wide 
financial statements. Capital assets, excluding land, are defined by the City as assets with a cost o f  
$5,000 or greater and an estimated useful life of at least one year. All land purchases are 
capitalized regardless -of cost. All purchased fixed assets--are vaIued at cost where historical 
records are available and at an estimated historical cost where no historical records exist. 
Donated fixed assets are valued at their estimated fair rn&ket value on the date received. The  
costs of normal maintenance and repairs that do not add &'the value of the asset or materially 
extend asset lives are not capitalized. 

- Major outlays for capital improvements are capitalized 8s projects are constructed. Interest 
incurred during the ' construction phase of capital asse& of the business-type activities is 
included as part of thezapitalized value of the assets const&ted. 

Building and, improvements, equipment and inftastructure qre depreciated using the straight-line 
method over the follow&g estimated lives: . ' 

Years 
primary government: 

5 to 40 ", 9': : _. 

5 to 40 :. '., a. 

.Buildings 
lmprovexpents 
Machinery and equipment 3to40 . 

Miastructure 20 to40 

'?. -. . 

i 

g. Compensated Absences 
- .  
.. - 

AH vested or accumulated vacation, scheduled holiday leave and vested accumulated sick 
leave is accrued when incurred in the government-wide and proprietary fmancial statements. 
Compensated absences for the years ended March 3 1,2009 and 2008 are $594,643 k d  $575,005, 
respectively. 

h. Long-Term Obligations 

In the government-wide financial statements and proprietary fund financial statements, long- 
term debt and obligations are reported in the Statements of Net Assets as liabilities in the 
applicable governmental and business-type categories. Bond premiums and discounts, as well as 
issuance costs, are deferred and amortized over the life of the bonds using the straight-line 
method. Bonds payable are reported net of the applicable bond premium or discount. Bond 
issuance costs are reported as deferred charges and amortized over the term of the related debt. 

In the fund financial statements, governmental fund ,types recognize bond premiums and 
discounts, as we11 as issuance costs, during the current period. The face amount of debt issued is 
reported as other financing sources. Premiums received on debt issuances are reported as other 
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MARCH 31,2009 

financing sources while discounts on debt issuances are reported as other financing uses. Issuance 
c.osts,. whether or not withheld from the actual debt proceeds received, are reported as debt szrvice 
expenditures. 

i 

k. 

. .  
. .  . .  . . .  

1. 

Fuud Balances 

In the fund financial statements, govenimental finds report reservations of fund balance for 
amounts that are not available for apprdpriation or are legally restricted by outside partics for use 
far specific purposes. Designations of fund balances - represeni.-tentative plans for future use of 
financial resources that are subject to change. 

Cipitalization of Interest 

-.Net interest costs related to acquisition or constrcction is capitalized as part ofthe cost of the 
rekited m e :  for the business type and proprietary- activities of the Ciiy; and component unit.. 
Total iiiterest costs incurred by the C i q  were $1,412,381, of which none was capitalized. 

Interfund and Related Party Transactions 

Traiisacrions between the City's various fillids are accounted for as reveiiues and expendihirzs or 
expenses in the funds involved i f~bey  are similar to transactions with orgariizatiors c;temal to 
City government. Certain transactions betwecn City Etilities and the City ai-2 also treatsd in this 
marker. The operations of City Utilities for the year ended March 3 1,2009 reflect payments in 
lieu of axes (PILOTS) to tbe City of $2,!cJ7,56S. 

In .addition, City Utilities also provides services sGch as energy for street lighting and other 
electric, watet.and sewer services without charge tc? the City. The cost of providing such servic.es 
was,approximately $687,657 in 2009. 

Net Assets 

In rhe govenunent-wide and proprietary fund fiiancial statements, equity is displayed in three 
components as follows: 

hvested in Capital Assets, Net of Related Deb# - 'This consists of capinl assets, net of 
accunlulated ,depreciation, less the outstanding balances of any bonds, notes, or other 
bonowings that are attributable to the acquisition, construction, or imprc.vemtxit of th- sse assets. 

- . 
' .Restricted--This consjsts of net assets that are .legally restricted by cutside parties or by law 

' ' through cohstitutional provisions or enabling legislation. When an errpenditure is ir,curred for 
.'.-purposes. for which both restricted and unrestricted fund bdznce is availab!e, the City coilsideis 

. 

. 
_ .  . 

restricted hnds to have been spent frrst 

. .  . .:I .. .Unrestricted - This consists of net assets that do not meet the definitizr, of I'restTicted'! or 
"invested in capita1 assets, net of related debt." 
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CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 

MARCH 31,2009 
' NOTES TO FINANCI[AL STATEMENTS 

. . . .  . . . .  . .  , -  
. _  

. .  
, m. Use of Estimates:. . - 

. .  

. . The preparation of financial statements in confqrmity with accounting, principles. generally 
accepted in the United State of America (GAAP) requires ,management to make estirnaGs and 
assumptions that affect the reporting mounts of assets and-liabilities and disclosures of 
contingent assets and liabilities at the date ofthe financial etements, y d  the reported amounts , . 

of revenues? expenditures, and expenses during the repprtingperiod. Actual results could differ - 

fiom those estimates. - .  
, 

. .  . .  . .  
... 
: , *' 

. .  

_ .  . .  
(2) DETAILED NOTES ON ALL FUNDS 

. .  . . . . . . . . .  . .  . .  .- 
(A) Deposits 

. . .  . .  
I . .  

, .  The City pools idle cash fiom all funds ,for.the ph.r$ose of&&ng G o m e  through inves&ent 
activities. The cash and investment pool is available for use by dl funds and is comprised of deposits 

. and other investments. At March ,31, 2009, the bank .balance of the City's deposits was $1,661,032, 
which was covered by federal depository insurance or. by c;ollateral. held by ?he City's .agent in the 
City's name. A difference exists bebeen'bankapd . .  book . . . . . . . . .  bal&G of($58,864) due to deposits in transit . , ~ 

The City also maintains separate. cash acca@ts rest&&? :for. spe&c'purposes. At &ch 31,2009, the 
bank balance of the City's restricted deposits was $3?990,.565, which . . . . . .  was covered byfederal depository . -  

- . 

..-. 
i .  - and other reconcilbg items. . .  

- .. _L - .  . _ .  , -  

. 
-- 

. -  - 
' i n s k c e  or by collaieral held by the City's agent in the. . . . . .  City':~ name : . . 

Statutes authorize the City tb;' invest in investrrients, ivhich . &e: : . . . .  ' 

. .  . .  I 
@) Investments 

. i=i... . . .  . . . . . . . . . .  _.,_.. 

, - .  . .  . -  
. .  

a. Obligations of the United States govenimeni . . -  the $&te . . .  I- of Missouri, this city, or; .. . . .  

b. In bonds? bills, notes, debentures or other obligatio@, guaranteed as to payment of principal and 
interest by the government of the United S&s or.any:agency or instrumentality thereof, the, Sbte- 
of Missouri or this city, or; . .  . . . . .  L .  . . . . . .  - -  

. .  
. *  

I. . . , . .  _ .  . .  
. ,. . c. In-revenue bonds of the'city, or; . ' . ' 

d. In certificates of deposit, savings accounts as defined in Chapter 369, Revised Missouri 
Statutes.or in interest bearing time deposits when such finds are held in United States b&, state 
banks, savings arid loan associations operating under Chapter 369, Revised Missouri Statutes, 
or savings and loan associations authorized by the United States government so long a$ -such. ' 

deposits, savhgs accounts, and interest bearing deposits aie secured by one or more of the types of 
xicurifies describedin subpakgraphs (a), (b), or (c) of this section. 

. 

. . . .  
' - .  

. ,  . ., ~ 

. .  . .  
, .  . ,  . .  . .  

. . .  e .  . .  . .  . '  . * .. . _  . . _. 
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. .  

.. . .. . 

e. Sanker's acceptances issued by ,domestic.. cor'nmercial .banks 'possessing the highest rating 
issued by a nationally recognized hting agency; or Commercial paper issued by domestic 
corporations ..which has received. the .highest rating issued by a nationdly recognized rating 

?he City also maintains an investment pool that is available for use by all funds and separate 
investmentsaccounts which are restricted for specific purposes. At March 31, 2009, the City held the 
following investments, all of which have,rnaturities'af.more than 24,months: . 

agency. . .  . . '  

. . . . .  . 

. .. Investment Type 
.. . .  

. U.S. Agency: 
GAMA 
F M  
FHMA . .  

. .  . -. . 

. Certificates of deposit 

. Total . .  

Fair Value 
. .  . , . -  

$ 1,695,587 
, 243,933 

- . ,28,893 
629,025 

. .  

$ - 5,597,438 

The following is a k i n g  of cash and inv6stments heid.by the City,= of March 3 1,2009; 

$ 90,895 . .  
2,132,420. 

~ , * 2,537,438 . . -  

Money market funds 
Deposits 
Investments . .  

. Trustee accounts 3,369,418 
Total ,R .. 8,190,171 

For purposes of the financial statements, the-Ciy c6nsiders ill'highly liquid investments with a maturity 
of three months or less when purchased to be cash equivalents. Deposits and investments of the City at' 
year end are reflected as folIows: I .  

. .  " . . _  
Cash and cash equivalents $ 268,122 
Investments 1,738,498 

Restricted investments 714,917 
Total $ 8,190,171 

Restricted cash and cash equivalents 5,468,634 
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MAFtCII 31,2009- . .  : 

Custodial Credit Risk 

Custodial credit risk is the risk that, in the event ofthe failure of the counterparty, the City will not be 
able to recover the value of its investments or collateral securities that are in the possession of an outside 
party. All fured income securities shall be perfected in the name or for the account of the City. 

. -  Interest Rate Risk 

Interest rate ,risk is the risk that the fair value 'of the City's investments will decrease as a result of 
increase in interest rates,-The City minimizes the risk that.the markct value of fured income securities in 
the portfolio .will fall'due to changes in the general interest rates by structuring the investment portfolio 
so that fixed. income securities mature to meet cash requirements for ongoing operations. 

Credit Risk 

Credit risk is the risk that the City will not recover its investments due to the ability of the 
counterparty to fulfill their obligation. The City minimizes credit risk by prequalifying the financial 

diversifying the portfolio so that potential losses on individual .fixed :'income securities ,will be- .' 
minimized. As of March 31,2009, the City's investments were rated by'Moody's. hvestment Service or 

I .  

. .  , . .  . I.. 

, ' instituGons, brokeddealers, intermediaries, and advisors with which the Ciy will do business and by 
. i  '. 

. 

, .  . Standard & Poor's as follows: 

Investment Type Rating 
.~ . .  . .  . 

. . U.S.Agency Securities . ' ,AM ' . .  

. .  . .. .. . . .. . .  

- .  . . ,  , 

. . _ .  . .  . -  . . .  , .  
_ . _  

. .  
. .  , .. . . .  . .  . .  . 

. .  . .  . .  
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U R G B  31,2009 

. .  

.... 
, .  

Capital asset activity for the year ended.March 3 f ,2009, was as folIows: 
Balaoa Balracc 

March 31,ZM)II irddilioos Dcductinat Trantlers March 31,2?09 

5 939396 S . ' _ '  I ' .  a s  - $ .  939.346 

, .  

(1.344257) p 14,422) 64.732 (1,491 347) 
13.714,354! ( 3 6 9 4 )  217.625 p,663*41q 
(i,3:402&i ' (579.M-2) (7,891.rnSy 

(!7.,>?e,24l>,l . . (1,159,554) 284,357 (1 334,437) 

- .  . . .  . .  
. .  

. .  . 36.049 . 
33c205 
386,115 , 

249,773 
151,412 . .  . 

S 1,159,554 

.. . 
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1 NOTES TO PINANCIA_6, STATEMENTS '. . 

. _  . 
Business Type A&& 

Bdance L l a n n  . .  

Addihoas D C d U c t i o h s  Tt3nsfen March 31, m March 31,2008 
, .  . .  . .. 

. .  

- f  - $  - - s  - 56,932- 5 56932 S 
. -  

56.932 56$2 

, D c p m i a b l e ~ i t a l h  
Buildings and Buildinglmp. 
Machinay andEquipmeni 
lnfmmcwrr 

Total Lkpnciable Capitai Assets 

Lrss Accumulated Dcpnciation 
Buildings and Buildinglmp. . 
Machinay and Equipment , 

Total Accumulated Dcprrdablc 

Total Dcprsiable Capiral As- Nd 

lnframudure .. . 

Total Water Fund Business - Type Capital Asses 

908.946 
412.557 

6,685,Ol 7 
8,006,520 

908.946 
402400 

(536,172) 
(299371) . 16,049 

16,049 

4.724.641 (249.060) (2294) 

8 (2294) 

4,473,293 

s .4>30m ' ~ 

. .  . . .  
. .. 

Bal;lan . . 
March31,~,. - 

.. I 

S 4,781.579 S :(;49,Lmj. f 

r . .  .: . . . .  . - .  
Bolsw . _  . 

. Addkodj ' , Dedidionr-' 
. . .  

March 31,2008 Electric Fmd: 

' Non-Depreciable Capita, Asw& 
Land 
Constroction in Rows 
Total Nan-Dqmziable Capttal Assets 

Tnmfem 

t S 58,400 S 58,400, 

58,400 
- _  . .  

58,400 
. . .  . . -  

. .  : : . , . - . . .  . . .  - (. . ... . .  
. _  . .  

187.676 
25,995 
213.671 

Depreciable Capital Assetr 
Buildings and BuiMinglmp. 
Msdtinay and Equipmat . 
In6?lnructure 

Total Depreciable Capital Assets 

Las AccmulaLed Depre~iatlm 
Buddings and Buildinglmp. - 

Machinery and Equipment 
Inh-asructure 
Total Accumulated Deprcciablt 

isi,in 
791.518 

. 751,127 
585,499 

5218,869 
6,555,495 

11343 

18,343 
5,244,861 

. 6,787,509 

. .  
(551 J48) 
(465505). . 

(527.667) 
(410,714) 

(3.936.1 22) 
(4,874,503) 

(16,049) . .  - 
(4,04031 3 j' 
(5,057,466) 

. TotalDepreciableCapital~Nct . 

Total Electric Fund Business - Type Capilal As& 

. . 46.751 1,680,992 

S 1,739,392 5 46,157 S 

, .. 
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S 54.828 

94,829 

depreciable Cnpital ksds 
Buildings and Building Imp. 
Machinery and Equiprnd 
Inframyuurc 

Total Dcpraieble PLhpitel &xts 

33.705 
494.596 

24,870.fi9S 
2UE.799 25,398,898 

. .%,W. 
, . 181,815 

14,612,669 

S 14,707,497 - S 13,597,245 S (81@.2j2) 3. - s  
-. 

Balracc . 
Mar& 31, XHIS 

s 

w , m  
1,012,310 

. -  61.189 
(102,OCm) 1,158.446 

. .  
il4ow! . .  

. 24,878. 
1,174379 

51.189 
I,j20,446 

... ., (Z,C39: (10&68) 
(82,925) 162,oW 043,116) 
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CITY OF. MONETT, WSS,OURI: . 
NOTES T.O F][NANCLAXC - .  . ~TATEMENTS . -  
MARCH31,2009 I . .  . ._ . : .  ,: . , .  . .  

. .  Balance . . .  Balance 
+ . .  

Marcb'31,2008 Additions Dednctions . Transfers. March 31,2009 . .  . 
- .  . .. Fiber Fund: 

Non-DepreciableCapital Assets .' ' '- 

. .  
. .  . - I  

. -  
Land s - s  - $  - $  - $.. 

. cOnsbuctioninProcess ' 

Total Non-Depreciable Capital Assets 
. .  : . .  

Depreciable Capital Assets 
. .  Buildings and Building Imp. - 

Machinery and Equipment . .  

635,923 
635,923 

Infi.astructure ., 631,324 4,599 
Total Depreciable Capital Assets 631,324 ' 4399 ;:.. 

Less Accumulated Depreciation 
Buildings d Building Imp. - .  
Machinery and Equipment 
I&- (113,021) (3 1,566) (144,587) 

(113,021) , (31,566) , . (144,587) 

- 491,336 -1 

. -  - - .  

, . .  r . .  , .  
- .  . .  

Total Accumulated Depmiable 
! .  

Total Depreciable Capital Assets, Net 518,303 (26,967) ' 

Total Fiber Fund Business - Type Capital Assets $ . 518,303 $ (26,96967) $ - s  . -  $ 491,336 
- 

Deprecation expense wds charged to the functiom as follows: 

Water $ 257,246 . 
,166,914 

1,019,051 
Electric 
Sewer 
Sanitation . 82,925 
Fiber optics 31,566 
Total depreciation expewbusinas -type activites . $ 1,557,702 
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CITY O F  MONETT, MISSOETRI 
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 
MARCH 31,2009 

(D) Long- Term Obligaiions 

The following is a smrnary of changes in long-term debt and other obligations for the year ended March 3 1, 
2009: 

Beginnkg 

Amounts 

Ending Due Within 

Balance Additions  reduction^ . Balance One Year. 

GovernmentPl Activities 

General obligatian bonds 

Revenue bonds, 

Notes P b b l c  

Capital Lense.Obligations 

Developers' Agreements 

Total Bonds Payabk 

Total Govcmmmtai Activities Long-Tam Liabilities 

Business Type  Activities 

Sanitaxy Sewerabe System Fund . 

, R ~ m h e b o n d s  , 

General obligation bonds 
Water System Fund 

CerdScates ofparticipation ' .. 

Sanitation S y m  Fund 
Capitel h e  obligations 

TO'& B U ~ W  Type A ~ t i ~ l t i ~ ~  ~ S - T C I I I I  Liabilities 

Total Governmental Activities and Business 

Type Activitias L a g -  T m  Liabilities 

S 122,271 S $ 13,317 5 108,954 S 13,620 

14.510,OIW) 855.000 13:655,000 560,000 

14,632,271 ' 868,?17 33,763,954 573;620 

100,000 M,000 ' 50,000 150,000 

. 4,400,557. 86,024' 639,530 3,847,051 639,161 

556,139 6,984 . 549.155 

S I9,132,S28 S 642,163 S 1,564,831 I; 18,210,160 S 1,362,781 

$ 8,470,030. . 6 : - . S , 345,[H)o S 8.325,OOO S 355,000 ! 
. 15,om 335,000 I5,OW 350,000 , .  

5 15.134 66,073 449,061 68,440 

71,208 55,512 15:696 . lS,G% 

s 9,406342 s - S 481,585 E 8,924,757 P 454,136 

. .  

J 28,559,170 S rU12,16? L 2,016.416 S 27,134,917 S 1,916,917 

The following s u r n m e s  changes in the liability for accrued compensated absences: 

fuJditims' Keducrims h I 2 l l i 2  One Year .. . Balance 

S 352,640 $ 263,543 S 235,194 I 380.989 S 542,890 
1 . _  . .  . .  

Bud;icutypeacfivities . 

Sanitar). Snvaage S ) . s ~ n  Fund . .' 46.157 17,746 22.2PU 41,663 37,437 

Sanitation S m  Fund . .  10,204 11.559 lGj% 11,425 10,284 

Electric Fund J 18,793 i0.594 . 67.1 75 122.2 12 109,991 

Warn Systan Fund 47,210 19,554 ?8,411 35,353 34,517 

T@ busmess-type aclivitia 222.364 ! 19,4 53 12s.164 213,653 192,289 

lid Govanmental and Business9pe aCrivitics 
A-ed mpmsatm &mca ' s 575,004 s 3823% o 363.358 s w , ~ i  s 53s:iw . . .. 
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. .  . . . .  . . /  i .  , . . . .  
. .- . .. . . 3 .  

. .  , 

. .' 

- .  

Debt service requirehenk'on long-term debt at March 3 1 , 2009& as ~follows: . . . 
. I! . .  . . . ... . .  . , . . . .  . . :  . . .  

1 -  I .._ . .  
. . .  
. . .  . .  

. .  
.The annual Govekental Activities debt service requirements to maturity, including principal and 
interest, for long-tern debt as of Maph 3 1,2009, 'are as follows: -;- 

. _. -. - , 

. .  . ,  . .. ' ' . 
. .  . .  . . .  , . . - .  . .  . .  . .  , .- . 

1. . - . .  

. : . .  
, . .  

. .  
. Fiscalyear Governinintal ~ctivitiw., , . 

. Ended. - General Obligation Bonds RevenaeBonds . .. Notes Payable . .  
.March31 .' Principal , . Interest' Principal . Interest; . . Principal Interest 

$ 13,620 $ 5,506 $ 560,000, $ 575,746 ' $ 50,000 $ '!,SO0 
. .  - . .  . . 

. . .  
201 0 
2011 . .  14,297 4,829 1,465,000 .' 550,499 

2013 
2014 . 16,536 2,590 820,000 ' 307,276 .. ': - 

- 201 2 15,007 4,119 3,910,000 428,049 . .  . 
. -  

. .  
15,753 ' 3,373 780,000: 339,931. .. . .  

,... - . 
, .  . 972,NO .'. 

- . C  , .. -' . .  

2015-2019 - ,  33,742 2,674 4,455,000 
. ; . . . .  . I  . -  

, _ .  
- - .., i '  

2020-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2034 - 

. :  . . .  
. . . .  
, ? .: 'I , _.. 8 - 

$ 108,955 $ 23,091 $ 13,655,000 . $ 3,582299 $ . 50,000 $ 1,500 . 

. .  
, .:, . . .  

Fiscal Year 
. . Ended 
March 31 

2010.. 
2011 
2012 
2013 

: 2014 
'2015-2019 
2020-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2034 

Governmental Activities (Cont) .Total 
'Capital Lease Obligations Governmental ~ctivitia- 
F'rincipal Interest Principal ' Interest 

$ 639,161 - $  143,518 $ . .  1,262,781 . $ .  726,270 
675,421 640,168 120,093 2,119,465 

648,088 95,951 4,573,095 528,119 
455,807 72,940 1,251,560 416,244 
466,576 54,255 1,303,112 364,121 ' 

997,250 59,999 5,485,992 1,034,163 
1,OOO,OOO . 332,060 

- 665,000 76,648 

: . - ' 

, z . 
. .  . .. . . 

- . . .  . 

$ 3,847,050 $ 546,756 $ 17,661,005 $ 4,153,646 
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Fiscal Year 
Ended 

....- . 

March 31 
201 0 
201 1 
2012 
2013 
2014 

201 5-2019 
2026-2024 
2025-2029 
2030-2035 

Fiscal Year 
Ended 

March 31 
2010 
201 1 
2012 
201 3 
2014 

2015-2019 
2020-2024 

203 0-2 03 4 
2025-2029 

Bn,siness,Type Acti;rjfies , 

Genera1 Obligation Bonds - Sewer ' Revenue Bonds 1 Sewer . Capital Lease Obligation -Water 
- Principal Interest Principal Intercd- Principal Interest 

$ 15,000 $ 15,430 $ 355,OOb . $ 379,,678 $ 68,440 $ 15,345 
15,000 14,896 370,000 366,6i 1 70,891 12,894 
15,000 14,3 I5 385,000 . 3521141 73,430 ." 10,355 
15,000 13,700 40,000 336,673 76,060 7,725 
15,000 13,063 415,000 3 19,856 78,784 5,001 

100,000 52,240 2,410,000 1,2SS,900 81,458 2,179 
13 0,000 24,610 3,080,000 , 619,341 - 
jo,ooo 765 , 710,000 331370 - 

- .  - 
$ 335,000 $ 149,029 $ 7,765,000 $ 3,696,570 $ 449,063 S 53,499 

Business Type Activities (Cont'd) 
Capital Lease Obligation - Sanitation 

Principal Interest 
s , 15,696 $ 2,610. 

- 
. -  - .  

Total 
Business Type Activities 

' Principal . Interest 
S 454,136 $ , 413,073 

455,891 .'. . . 394,401 
473,430. 376,s 11 
491,060 358,097 

' 508,784 337,920 
2,591,458 I ,343,j 19 
3;2I0,000 . '643,951 .. 

740,000 j 34.135 

I 

$ 15,696 $ 2,610 $. 8,924,759 $ 3,901,707 
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. .  - . ( '  _ .  . .  4 ' .  

. . I. 

General Obligation Bonds payable at March 31,2009 are comprised of the following individual issues: 
.. .. . .  _ .  ~ 

- . .  
. .  I .. : . - .  

.. . . .  . - !  

. . 4.1 5% , General. Obligation Bonds, Neighborhood. bproveqent, ' $ .108,954 
. .  

' .' District Bonds 'Senes 2006,'due through September 6,2015 ' 

1 ' .  
2.00% to 5.10% General Obligation Bonds, Neighborhood 335,000 
Improvement District Bonds Series 2004 due through September 1, 
2024, callable. - on or '. after September 1, 2009, at premiums 
beginning at 102% of the principal amount decreasing to 100% on 
September 1 , 2014: Monies fiom this bond were'u!ilkd for gravity 
sewer projects in the city. 

. .  . . 

. -. . _  
. . . .  . . .. . -  

_ $  443,954 - , 
- .  . . .  . 

Total General Obligation Bonds 
. .  . .  . . . .- . . . . , 

_. 

. .  .:: . - . .  

. Revenue bonds payable at March 3 1 , 2009 are comprised . ._ of the following , . individual . .  . r  issues: . .  

Tax Increment Financing fhd :  
i 

. I .25% to 3.80% Tax Increment Financing Revenue Bonds 'Series $ '  
I 2004 (Hwy 60 Redevelopment Project TIF #1) interest due 

semiannually April 1 and October 1 with principal due annualIy . , 

October 1; bonds maturing .on October. 1, 2010, shall be subject 
-to redemption beginning with bonds maturing in October 1 :20lO 
are subject to optional redemption on October 1 , 2004 .at 100% of 
t h e  principal. Funding was used in combination with funds 
received from Missouri Department of Transportation to. improve. . . 

safety and usability of the city7s inffastmcture~particularly related 
to the areas adjoining Highway 60. 

3.625% to '3.85% Tax Increment Allocation Bonds, Subordihate 
Series 2007 (Hwy 60 Amended Redevelopment Project'TIF. #l) 
Snterest due semi-annually October 1 and Apnl..l; bonds mature 
October 1 , 20 10 through 20 14, optional 'redemption beginning 
October 1 , 201.2 at 100% of the principal: - Oii@nal. issgance. of : 
$6,100,000 in December of 2008 had a partial defeasance of 
S590,OOO with the issuance of the Series 2008 bonds. Monies 
generated from these bonds were used in combination with funds 
received fiom Missouri Department of Transportaiion for 
projects such as added lanes on Highway 60 and also combined 
with funds from the Burlington Northern Santa Fe Railroad to 
.build an overpass on Eisenhower Street. 

. 
I .  

. 

, .  . .  

.. 

4.00% to 4.5% Subordinate Tax Increment Allocation Bonds, 
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NOTES TQ Tc”INGNCLAL STATEmNTS 
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Junior Series 2008 (Hwy 60 Amended Redevelopment Project 
TIF # I )  interest due semi-annually April 1 and October +I  -with 
bonds maturing October 1, 2104 through 2018, optional 
redemption begins October 1, 2012 at 100% of the principal. 
Funding from this issuance was to fbrther expand and improve 
the infrastructure of and adjacent to Highway 60. 

5.00% Tax Increment Allocation Bonds Series 2005A (East Hwy 
60 lnfrastruct~,~re Project TIF #2) interest due semiannually January 
1, and July 1, with principal and bonds maturing January 1, 2028 
Optional redemption beginning January 1, 2010, at 100% of the 
principal. These monies were specifically generated to make 
improvements on and around Chapel Drive. 

5 2 5 %  Tax lncrement AIlocation Bonds Series 20033 @PA #1 
Infrastructure Improvements Project -ID #2) interest due 
semiannually January 1, and July I ,  with principal and bonds 
maturing January 1 , 2028 o p t i 0 ~ 1  redemption beginning January 1, 
2010, at 100% of the principal. Specific use of this hnding was to 
redevelop 385 acres in the southeast portion of the city adjaceilt to 
Hghway 60. 

Sewer system f h d :  

2.0096 to 4.70% Combined Waterworks and Sewerage System - 
Revenue Bonds, (State Revolving Funds Program) Series 2003..due 
through January 1,2025, callable on or after December 1 , 2012 at 
100% principal. Monies generated from this debt issuance were 
combined with funds h m  the State Environment hprovement and 
Energy Resources Authority to construct wastewater treatment and 
clean water facilities fix the city (Drinking Water Loan). 

5.20% to 6.55% Sewerage Revenues Refunding Bonds, (State 
Revolving Funds Program) Series 1992A, due through June 1, 
20 13. Monies generated from this debt issuance were combined 
with funds from the State Environment improvement and Energy 
Resources Authority to construct wastewater treatment and clean 
water facilities for the city (Clean Water Loan). 

. Total revenue bonds payable 

1,130,000 

I 

2,535,000 

7,8 15,000 

3 10,000 

$ 21.780.000 

Notes payable at March 3 1 , 2009 consisted of the following obligation: 
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MARCH 3 1,2009 
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General fund: 

3.00% Promissory Note (to purchase land for the poke station on 
Business highway 60) payable in four annual payments maturing 
September 6,2009. 

$ 50,000 

Total notes payable t , $  50,000 
. .  

. .. 
" 8 % .  

Certificates of participation 

In 2002, the City accepted the Commerce National Bank, N.A. bid to acquire leasehold certificates of 
participation, and subsequently entered into a Lease Pmchase Agreement for the purpose of airport 
improvements. Currently the agreement has a present value of lease payments 'of $120,000, with 
interest at 3.30%, and is payable in semiannual installments through October 201 1. . . 

In 2002, the City accepted the Commerce National Bank, N.Ai bid to acquik leasehold certificates of 
participation, and subsequently entered into a Lease .Wchase A'greernent for the pwpcise'of golf course 
improvements. Currently the agreement has. a present value of lease payments of $360,040, with 
interest at 3.3'0%; and is payable in semiannual installments &ugh October 20 1 1. 

In  2004, the C$y &&ed the Commerce National Bank, N.AL:bid:to acquire leasehold certificates of 
! . . . .  - participation,'&d subsequently entered into a Lease Purchase .Agreement in 2005, for the purpose of 

constructing awater tiwer. Currently the.agreement h e  a present value.of lease payments of $449,O40, 
Lvith interest at. 3.52%, and is payable in Semiannual iq~kallments through December 2014. 

, - . . .  

j 
- .  . . . . _.: . . . . - . . - 

. .  

. .  . . ... . - 
t _ I  

. .  
Capital Leases 

Governmental Activities: 

Wells Fargo Brokerage Services, LLC, Governmental Lease-Purchase Agreement: ,. dated Februaq.25, 
2009, the present value of lease payments is $392,532, with interest at 3.85%, and is payable in annual 
payments through January 15,ZO 18. Funds generated from this lease were used for the interior security 
system and communication tower and equipment at the newly constructed Monett Justice Center. 

Yamaha Commercial Customer Finance Lease. Agreement: In May of. 2008, the City entered.into a 
lease of 24 golf carts. The present vaIue of lease payments is $67,335 at year end, with interest at 
5.25% and ispayable in monthly payments through October 20 1 1. 

Citicapital Finance Lease Agreement: in May 2008, the City entered into a Lease of 2 golf utility carts. 
T h e  present value of lease payments at March 31, 2009 is $10,477, with interest at 5.25% and is 
payable monthly.through November 2012. 

I n  October 2007, the City entered into a Lease with Option to Purchase Agreement with United 
Missouri Bank. The present value of lease payments at March 31,2009 is $15,696, with 'kterest at ' 

. .: . 

. .  

. . -  . 

( 4  , - .  

. .. 
. .  . ... 
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4.50%, and is payable in annual installments through September 2009. These funds were used to 
purchase a street sweeper. 

' .  .. . . . .  . .  

' ' h January 2008, the City entered intg a Least: with Option to Purilhase Agreement with Welis Fargo 
Brokerage Services, LLC. The present value of lease pa>mem a? March 3 1 , 2909 is $2,540,000, 
.with interest at 4.10%, and is payable in annual instal1men:s through July 2010. Tliese funds were 
used to exp'and- the police station and municipal court facilities by building the new Monett Justice 
Center. 

. .  - .  ' . . . . _ .  , 
.. . .  

I . . .  
. '  .... '. . , 

. . .  . . . -  

. .  
- 

- - .In- October 2008, the City entered irito a Lease y i t h  Option to Puxhases Agreement with De Lage 
Landen Public Financing LLC. The presalt value of lease payments at March 31, 2009 is $56,707, 

These funds 
were used to lease purchase three poIice cars. 

. .  

. _  ' ' ' ' - . - Witk interest at 3.47%, and is payzbie in atmual installments through January 201 1. 

DeveIopers' Agreements . .  

.Certain developers within the -Monett TIF #1 District applied for reimbursement o f  the cost of 
- iriiastmctwe h r i 7  'the district. The related infi.astructure was given to the c i q  and is included in the 
' Ci~is~capital:assets. The payment of reimhursenient is based solely on sales taxes c~liectcd and as such . 

-there is no definitive payout schedute. .4dditiondiyy shdiiid the reqiieskd reimbursement not be 
. .  . .  . ' 

. ... . : . ... 

. . ' 
. 

..- wmpletely paid off before the TIF District expires in 2019, the City's obligition eds- At March 31, 
2009, the amiiunt outstanding on this cbigation is $549,155. . ,  

Legal Debt margin - General Obligation Bonds 

- Article VI, Section 26 (b), (c), (d) and (e}, Constjtution of Missouii, limits the outsbnding amount of 
- - .  authoriied general obligation bonds of a political. subdivision to tu.enty-percennt of the assessed 
. valuation of' the-political subdivision (excluding state-assessed railroad and utilities). The leg1 debt 
. margin, computed excluding state-assessed railroad and utilities, of the City at March 3 I ,  2009 was: 

I .  

. .  
. -  

- 

. 
a . . 

$ 87,284,307 
43.769.359 

. .  Total Assessed Valuation $13~.053.666 

Assessed Valuation 
Rea1 Estate 
Personal Property . .  

The legal debt margin at March 31,2009, was compu2ed as follows: 
Gen era1 Ob1 i gati on . .  

Debt Limit $ 26,210,733 
GenerdI Obligation 

Legal Debt Margin 
Bonds Payable 443,954 

S 25,766.779 ... . . . .  . .  
. .  

As of March 3 1 , 2009: the City of Monett had $443,954 outstanding general obligation bonds. 
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. .  

(E) Construction Commitments City of Monett 

A summary of the City's commitments on uncompleted . -  construction I - - . .  contracts: - . . . .  - 
. .  . .  

. _ .  . - . . . ,  . . . -  
. .  . . .  . . _  

Fund ContractAmount - 

- Tax Increment Financing - Hwy 60 $ . 99,432 
General Fund - EisenhowerKlear Creek Project $ 239,303 

(e Intwund Receivables, Payables, and Trangers 

The composition of intehnd balances as of March 31,2009 is as follows: 

Receivable fund Payable Fund Amount 

Electric Fiber $ 360,000 

Interfund payables and receivables are made for specific purposes for each fund, and for overdraws of 
cash, both of which are made in the ordinary course of business. Interfund phyables: and 
receivables are intended to be repaid in future years. At its kception, the Fiber Fund. borrowed startup 
money fiom the Electric Fund which is repaid \Frith mbnies generated&-om Fiber operations. 

. -  Interfund Transfers ' 

General fund Electricfund . ' Total 

!! 300,000 $ (300,oooj . $ -0- 

Transfers 

General fund TIF -District 1 fund Total 

$ 254,273 $ (254,273) $ -0- 

All interfixid transfers provided funding for general operations of each fund. These transfers are 
permanent in nature, and are not intended to be repaid in fbture years. 

(3) OTHER LNFORMATION 

(A) Employee Retirement Systems and Plans 
The City participates in the Missouri Local Government Employees Retirement System (LAGERS), 
a statewide local government retirement system. 
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t . .  '. hlhouri Loa1 Government. Employees Retirement Systek (LAGERS) Plan Description 
.:... . . .  

' . '  The City, of Manett participates in. the- MiSs.our?'~oc& Government Eqployees Retirement System 
,(LAGERS),. an agent multiple-employer public employee retireme$ .system that acts as a common 
investment and administrative agent.for local government entities in Missouri. 

, 

LAGERS is a -defined benefit pension plan which provides retirement, disability, and dzath benefits 
to plan members and beneficiaries. 

LAGERS was created and is governed by statute, Section RSMo'70.600-70.755. As such, i t  is the 
system's responsibility to  administer the law in accordance. with the expressed intent. of the- General 
Assembly. The plan is qualified under the Internal Revenue Code Section 401(a) and it is tax 
exempt. 

The I'vlissouri Local Government Employees Retirement System issues i? publicly available financial 
report that includes financial statements and required supplementary information. That repoft may 
be obtained by writing'to LAGERS, P.0. Box 16651~ Jeffersoon City, MO 65192 or by calling 1-890- 
4474334. ' 8  

. 

. .  

Funding & t u s  . .  

(general), 10.7% (police), and 13.1% (ft.e) of &ha1 covered pyroli. 

. .  - 
- 

' .. 

. '. 

. . . .  . , . .. ' _  

. The City of Monett's. full-time' empbyees do not contribute to the pension plan. The political . 
subdivision is required to conmbuk at an actuar$ly determined rate; the current rate is 10.9% 

The contribution 
i requirements of plan members are determined by t h ~  governing body of the Iplitical subdivision. 

' The contribution provisions of the political subdivision &e esmblished by Pate statute. 

8 .  

. a _  

. 

Annual Pension Cost . .  

For 2008, the political subdivision's adual Pension cost of $513,558 was equal to the required and 
actual contributions. The required contribution was determined as part of the February 28, 2006 
and/or.February 28, 2007 annual actuarial vaIuation using the entry age actuarial cost method. The 
actuarial assumptions as of Februsry 28, 2008 included (a) a rate of return on the investment of 
prcsent and future assets of 7.5% per year, compounded ainually, (b) projected salary increases of 
4.0% per year, compounded annually, attributable to inflation, (c) additional projected salary 
increases ranging fiotn 0.0% to 6.0% per year, depcnding on age, attributable to seniority/merit, and 

. (d) pre- and post-retirement mortality based on the RP-2000 Combined Healthy table set back 0 

. . . years for.men and 0 years for women and (e) post retirement mortality based on the 1971 Group 
. - AnTiuity Mortality table projected to 2000 set back 1 year for men and 7 years for women. 

' .  . .  

. 

.Tie  actuarial value of assets was determined using techniques that smooth the eRects of short-term 
volatility in the'rnarket value of investments over a five-year period. The unfounded actuarial - .  
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. .. . .  ,. . . ’  

accrued liability is .being amortized as a level of percentage ..of projected payroll on a closed basis.. 
-.: The .mortiza&on,.~$~d Bt February 28,2006 was 15 years. 

. .- . .  . .  .. .. 
. .  , ._ I. . Three-Year Trend Information 1. . - - 

. .  
3,. 

-. . 
h U a l  Percentage pf . 

Fiscal Year Pension APC Net Pension 
Ending cost APC Contributed Obligation 

6/3 0/2006 5 14,468 100% $ -0- 
6/3 0/200 7 523,460 . . 100% -0- 
6/30/2008 513.588 100% -0- 

Contribution Information 

All Monett City full-time employees participate in LAGERS The payroll for employees covered by 
LAGERS for the year .ended March 31, 2009, .was $4,633,876; the City’s total payroll was 
$4,923,336. AI1 City full-time employees are eligible to participate in the LAGERS Program. 
Employees who retire at or after age 60 (55 for police aridafire employees) with 5 years of credited 
service &e entitled to a retirement benefit, payable monthly for..life, equal to 1.60 percent of their 
final-average salary €or each year. of credited service. Final-averpge salary is the employee’s 
monthly average of goss salary paid an employee during the period of sixty months or, if an 
election has been made in accordance with the plan, thirty-six consecutive months or credited - 
service producing the highest monthly average within the last 120 months of credited service. 
Benefits fully vest on reaching 5 years of service. Vested employees may r&e at or after age 55 

. 

. 

- 
. -  

, .  

. , ,  - . .  

. .. . .  

! 

_. . (age-50 for police and fire employees) and receive reduced retirement benefits. ... , .  

@) Litigation and Contingent Liabilities . 

Amounts received or receivable from grant agencies are subject to audit and adjustment by grantor 
agencies, principally the federal government. Any disallowed claims, including amounts already 
collected, may constitute a liability of the applicable funds. The amount, if any, of expenditures that 
may be disallowed by the grantor as a result of these audits is not believed to be material. 

In the normal course of business, the City is invoIved in various legal proceedings. Although the 
outcome of these proceedings is not presently determinable, it is the opinion of the City legal counsel 
that the resolution of these matters will not have a material adverse effect on the financial position of 
the City. 

.. - . .  : . . . .  . - 
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CXTY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 

MARCH 31,2009 
. NOTES TO FIl\’kWCEGL STATEMENTS 

. .  

(g Risk Munagenterit 

The ‘City is exposed to various risks, such as property exposures, autoniobi!e liability, workxs’ 
compensation claims, equipment losses, general liability claims, and the costs associated with an 
employee health.plan. For property exposures, the City purchases an all-risk insurance policy. This 
property insurance presently carries a primary deductible of $5,000. While coverage is purchased for 
City-owned equipment, the comprehensive or coIIision exposure a City-owned vehicles is self- 
insured. Neither liability claims nor pmperty losses have exceeded the limits of coverage. 

The workers’ compensation plan covers all City employees, while the health plan covers all full time 
City employees. 

The City is,exposed to various risks of loss reIated to tor‘fi: theft or, damage to, and destruction of 

.. . . commercial insurance coverage for property damage and various Missouri Official’s bonds. 
assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters. The City maintains - 

.Management believes coverage is sufficient to preclude any signscant uninsured losses to the City. , 

’ In the current year, the City changed its method of accounting for “bus~~ss-type” activity supplies. In 
order to .maintain service to the industries .growing and developing ia the municipaiity, it hac become 

. necessary to. increase the amount of supplies kept on hmd. In prior year, all supplies were expensed 
when purchased. With the change, supplies are considered inventory until put into service. Had this 
method been .adopted in prior years, supplies expense wwld have been reduced in the “business-tpe” 
net assets as follows: 

. ,.. .. 

Waterworks 
Electric 
Sewer 
Fiber 

Total 

$ . 153,513 
504,320 
21,136 
23,964 

$ 702,933 

- s2 - 
: - .  
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. .  _:j ' , .. . .  . CITY OF. MONETT,.MISSOURI 

. .  . .  . .  
NOTES TO BUDGETARY COMPARISON SC)DEDULES 

I. . _ .  , . . _  ! ' MARCH3i-200$ . . .  . , . 
. .  

. .  . . .  Budgets and Budgetary Accounting . _  

The City utilizes the following procedures in establishing the budgetary data reflected in the financial 
statements: ' 

i 

. : . i  

1. , -  

2. 

3. 

- 

4. 

- 
5.  

' .6. 

- 

7. 

. .  . 
. .  

Ali dep&-tmen& of the City of Monett, Missoiui, are required to submit. reguests for appropriation to the 
City's Director of Finance in January each year. The Director of Finance uses these requests as the 
starting point for developing a proposed budget. 

The Diiector of Finance presents a proposed budget to the City Council for revjew prior to March 1 0 ~ .  

The City Council is required to hold public hearings on the proposed budget and to adopt a final budget 

. 
.. . . 

.I . . .. . 

. .  . .  by no Iater than March 3 I, the close of the City of Monett, Misso:$'s fiscal year. 
. .  

Prior to April 1; ordinances are passed by City Council which prdvide for-legally adopted budgets ,in the 
City's General and Special Revenue Funds. Plans-approved for Capital Projects, Debt Service and ' 
Proprietary Fund types provide operating guidance subject to'actud activity during the fiscal year. 

The City operates on a program perfo&ance budget system, with legally adopted budgets prepared by 
fund, program, and department. The legal level of budgetary control is a? the department level. The 
City's department heads may make transfers of appropriations. within a department. Transfers of 
appropriations between departments require the approval of City CounciL . 

Formal budgetary integration is employed as a management coritrol.device in the General and Special 
Revenue Funds. 

Budgets for the General and Special Revenue Funds are adopted'on a basis consistent with GAAP. 

. 
. .  , 

, 

. .  . 

. .  

. . -  . . .  . -  . .  

. .  

. .  

. . _ .  
, .  . .  ' I  . .  . .  : . _  

. .  . .  . . .  , .. .. 
. . .  . . .  . - .  . .  

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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' CITY OB MOXTT,  MSSOLRG 
STATEMENT OF REVEKTJE, EXPENUITURES Aha) CWNGES IN BALANCE. , , 

BUDGE'C .4ND AClWAL 
GENERAL FUND 
FOR THE FISCA3 4 YEAR ENDED 3fARCB 31,ZLW 

. .  Budgeted Ambint 
- -  Functions/Programs . . ._ . Original : . ; Fins1 

Revenues 
Business license and permits 
Federal- and state grants .- 
Fines and forfeitures 
Franc h i x  fees 
S a l s  tax 
Jnterest income 
Intergovemm ental 
Other revenue 
Other taxes and messments . 
Rental revenue 

. .  

. .  

Total +venues 

Fxarndituret 
SdEUkS 
PuyroIl taxes 

Computer 
Educetio~ and traxel 
Elecficn 
Health +d life insurance 

Merchdise  
Miscelimeous 
Professional and onsidting service 
Repairs and maintenance 
REtiremeIit 
Supplie% , 

Telephone ' 
Workman's compsnsatisn 
Capital outlay 
Deht service - p k i F 1  

' Conmunity~development block grant 

h w & m  

Debt s&iCl. - inwd 
Total ei$xnditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditwts 

.Other finnncins sourccs fuse:) 

Due &om (to) 0th funds 
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets 
Settlcmcnt 
Proceeds from Financing 
Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTS) 
Transfers 

Total other finqcing sources (us&) 
Revenues and other sources over (under) 

w n d i t u r e s  and other uses 

5 ' 46:!00 
1,960,935 

215,200 
353,500 

jii.O(Y3 
2737,250 

- .  

*/13,175 , 

348,000 
142,200 

6,586,340 

3,031,105 
224,825 

34,000 
35,500 
4:w 

423,800 
74.625 

' 1.zc,090 
23JW 

156,500 

320,950 
-320,lbb 

. . -  

si2,020 

35,700 
- 74,130 

3,402,325 
659,075 

- 170,200 
9,977,355 

(3,390,995) 

9; 21,ido 
1,679,635 

17011#) 
397,500 

2,737,250 
35,000 

. . 932,475 
348,000 
142,200 

6,463,360 

3,046,305 
224.825 

51,500 
35300 

423,eoo 

. . - .  

4,009 

95,425 
52,000 
.a,m 

5'47,820. 
320,350 

1 CI 

3 u ~ a o  

. 357,900 
35,700 

107380 
3,49935 

659,075 
183,700 

10,550,705 
(4,087,345) 

. .  -. . 
- .  . _  

85,00@ 
2:133,040 2,133,040 

2,783.040 . . 2,773,040 

s (607,9551 $ (1,314,305) 

650,000 555,000 

- 

March 31,2009 
Actcal 

Amounts 

s 22334 

194,660 
1,303,457 

423,246 
2,605,667 

31,717 

741,303 
32 I ,465 
151,319 

5,798,668 

3,G22,187 
220.660 

52,602 
35:918 
2,889 

xi,m 
94,3hi 
57,113 

. 157.855 
27i1,m 
805,539 
353,951 
335334 
4 4 3 5  
73,679 

3,545.617 
702,848 
171,896 

10,310295 
(43  I 1,627) 

51,68 
196,374 
86.024 

2,107,567 
591,393 

3.033.043 

$ (1,47S1584) 

Varisnce With 
Final Budget 

PosYi*e 
(Neptive) . 

.s 1.734 
(376,1731 

24,460 
25,746 

(125,583) 
(3283) 

!i?l.172) 
(26,535) 

(24,llS) 
(4.i65) 

1,102 

(a,iilj 
(6323) 
(1,064) 

(i4,887) 
6,855 

- -  (63,750) 
(142,181) ' 

418 

33,OcJ 1 
(22366) 

8589 
(28,701) 
46,322 
43,773 

(11,804) 
(240,410) 
(424,282) 

5i.685 
195,374 

1,024 
(3 .5~73 j 
36,393 
260.003 

5 (164,2791 

. .  

see accompanying A e s  to the fmanciat statements. 
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CITY OF MONETI’, &ilSSOurU 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL ’ 

- 
. -  I 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE;E%PENDITURES , .  AND; CFMNGES . .  IN FUND B . ~ C E  . ,  

FOR l”HE.FISCh YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 
E-911FUNI) :. 

. .  ,. - _  

Variance With 
March 31, 2009 Final Budget 

Budgeted Amount Actual Positive 
FunctionsPrograms Ori6nal Final Amounts (ff egativt) 

Revenues 
Business license and permits 
Federal and state grants 

Franchise fees 
sales tax 
Interest income 
Intergovernmental 
Other revenue 
other taxes and  assessments 
Rental revenue 

. Fines and forfeitures 

Total revf5lus . 

Expenditures 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Community development block grant 

1 Computer . 
Education and travel 
Election 
Health and life insurance 

Merchandise 
Miscellaneous 

I professional and consultirigservice 
Repairs and rnaintcnan& 
Retirement 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Workman‘s compensation 
Capital outlay 
Debt service - principal 
Debt service - interest . 

TotalexpendmYes . 

. . .  
I . Insurance 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 
Other financine sources loses1 

Due from (to) other funds 
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets 
Settlement 
Proceeds from Financing 
Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTS) 
Transfers 

Total other financing sources (USCS) 
Revenues and other sources over (under) 

expenditures and other uses 

. -  

10,800 10.800 . 10,800 
~,ooo 65,000 83,703 18,703 

1 .  50,800 75,800 94,503 18,703 

39,275 . , 39375 
’. 2950 ‘2,950 

6,200 6,200 
’ 4,400 4,406 

E .  . .  - .  
6,500 
400 

. .  . 6200 

- .  
400 . .  

.loo , 

. .  . .  . .  

. . 100 . . .  
.. 2,500 . 

I .  

u,w 
4,400 4,400 

. 1,500 . 1,500 
25,000 25,000 . 

100 100 - 

39,181 
1997 

9,74 1 
3,587 

4,495 
337 

122 

4,271 
966 

26,49 1 

. -  
93,325 93,325 92,188 (1,137) 

(42,525) (1 7,525) 2315 19,840 

.$ (42,525) $ (17,525) $ 2,315 .$ 19.840 

Six accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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CITY OF MONETT, MESOURI 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL ’ 

FOR THE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 

STATEMENT OF REVENUE, EXPENDITURES AND C’klANGES IN’FUND-EcALANCX 

TAX INCREMENT FINANClNC - DIS7’RICT 1 

Variance With 
Final Budgel 

Positive 
(Negative) 

- i ! , .  

. .  . .  . .: . 
I -  

. ,  . 
Functionskrograms . . 

Revenues 
Business license and permits 
Federal and state grants 
Fines and forfeitures 
Franchise fees 
Sales tax - .  
Interest income 
Intergovcmmcntal 
Othcr revenue 
Othwtaxes‘and assessments 
Rental revenue 
Toial revenues 

March 3,2009 
Aciual 

AmrJUEtS 

. .  
Budgeted Amount 

Origiw+l-__ . Final;. 

s -_ 
- .  

589,250 
i 37,000 

$ ’  

589.250 
61.@!R 

211;oOo 
. -  

$ 

567,263 
63,300 

259,476 

s 

. -  

(21.987j 
1,300 

. -  

18,476 241,000 

690.029 

hmIdituiws 
SalaneS 
Payroll taxes 
Comrntmity development block grant 

Education and travel 
Election 

Insurance 
Merchandise 
Miscellaneom 
Professional and, consu;kiq servicc 
R e p k s  and maintenance 
-Xetiremcnt 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Workman’s cornpa t ion  
capital outlay 
Debt Senice‘- principal 
Debt seivice - intern1 

. Cornper 

’ Health and life insurance. 

Tom1 expendmires . , ,  

E x k s  (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 
Othcr financing sources fuses) 

h e  from (to) other f inds  
Gain (LOSS) On Sale of-ts 
Settlement 
Proceeds from Financing 
Payments m Lieu ofTiixes (PILOTS) 
l ’de , r s  

Total o t h a  financing sources (uses) 
Revenues and other sources o w  (under) 

, expenditures and ohm uses 

2,000 
5,oCo 

113 
654 

7,313 
5,654 

8,035,000 
355.000 

791 331 1 
361,985 

77.9 1 I 

.(205,813) 
6,985 

505:OOO 
8,902,000 

(7,934,750) 

299.137 

(7,698,011) 
8,588,050 

5051000 
8,708,200 

(7,815,950) 
(120,lSG) 
117.939 

519.155 

(291,303) 
257,762 

(36,393) 
(37238) 

(414,000) 
(4 14,000) 

S (7,520.950)- s 80,701 s (7,443249) fi (8,348,750) 

, See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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CITY OF MONET'T', MISSOURI 

BUDGET AND ACTUAL 

FOR TKE FISCAL YEAR ENDED MAR- 31,2009 

STATEMENT OF REVENUEEXPENDITURES AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCE 

TAX MCFtEMWT FINANCING -DISTRICT 2 

. 

Variance With 
Final Budget 

Positive 
mega tive) 

March 31.2009 
Actual 

Amounts 
Budgeted Amount 

Functiond'rograms Original . Final 

Revenues - .  
Business license and permits 
Federal and state mts 
Fines and forfeitures 
Franchise fees 
sales tax 
Interest income 
Intergovanmental 
Other revenue 
Other taxes and assessments 
Rental revenue 
Total revenw 

. _  
s s s 

284,200 
35,000 

- .  
87,200 

278,608 
9.46 1 

96.686 

28430 
10,OOO 

87,200 
~ 

384,755 406,400 ' 3,355 381.400 

ExDenditurcs 
Salaries 
Payroil taxes 
Community development block grant 
Computer . 
Education and travel 
EleaiOn 
Health and life insurance 
Insurance 
Machandise 
Miscellaneous 
Professional and consulting service 
Repairs and maintenance 
Retirement 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Workman's compensation 
Capital outlay 
Debt service - principal 
Debt service - interest 

Total expenditures 

1,461 

. -  

5,Ooo 6,46 1 

S00,OOO soo,ooo 
(4 13) 
1,048 
2307 

214,587 
72 1,048 
(336,293) 

215,000 
220,000 . 
186,400 Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 

Other financinv sources ( u r d  
Due from (to) other funds 
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets 
Settlement 
Proceeds from Financing 
Payments in Lieu of Taxes (PILOTS) 
Transfers 

Total othg financing sources (uses) 
Revenues and o h r  sources over (under) 

expenditures and other uses fi 2,307 %. (338,600) $ 186,400 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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CITY OF MQNETT, MISSOURI 
SCHEDZmE OF FUNDING PROCESS 

MARCH 31,2009 
WXIRE~I’JT SYSTEM 

0) Entry 
(a) . Age 

Actuarial Actuarial Actuarial 
Valuation Value of Accrued 

. . .Date Assets Liability 

2/28/2006 8,100,173 8,265,211 
212 8/20 07 9,287, I07 9,113,567 
2/28/20 08 10,370,464 9,987,480 

@a) 
Unfunded 
Accrued ( a m  
Liability Funded 
WAIL) Ratio 

165,038 98% 
(173,540) 102 
(382,984) 1 G4 

[(RaPl 
(c) UAL as a 

Annual Percentage 
Covered of Covered 
Payroll Payroll 

4,127,969 4% 
4,3 14,237 
4,700,760 

Note: The above assets and actuarial accrued liability do not include t l e  assets and present value of 
:benefits associated with the Benefit Reserve Fund and the Casua1;y Reserve Fund. The actuarial 
assumptions were changed in conjunction with the February 28,2006, annual actuarial valuations. For a 
complete description of the actuarial assumptions used in the annu21 valuations, please contact the 
LAGERS ofice in Jefferson City. . 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. , 
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ClTY OF MONETT, MISSOURI . 
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES,.EXPIINSES, AND CHANGW 

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 
Ih' PUND BALANCE (ORIGINAL BUDGET AND ACTUAL) - GENERAL FUND 

Revenues 
Business license and permits 
Federal and state grants 
Fines and forfeitures . .  
Franchise fees' 
Sales tax 
Interest income . .  
Lntergovernnr ental 
Other revenue 
Other taxes and assessments 
Rental revenue 

Total revenues 

~xr~cnd l tu reg  
Salaries 
Payroll tam 
Conmiunity developnient block grant 
Computer 
Education and travel 
Election 
Health and life insurance 
Insurance 
Merchandise 
Miscellaneous 
Professional and consulting service 

Retirynent 
Supplies , 

Telephone 
Uti1 i ties 

Capitel outlay 
Debt service - principl . 

. Repairsandmaintenance . . ,  . ' 

. .  

,. Workman's cornpensafton 

' Debt service - interest 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendihires 
Qther fi-sorirces (uses1 
Due from (to) olher funds 
Gnin (lass) on sale of w e t s  
Settlement 
Proceeds from financing 
Payments in lieu of taxes (PILOTS) 
Transfers - ,  

. Total other financing sources (uses) 
Revenuer aud otlier soiirces over (under) 

expendilures and other uses 

Public Snfety Totnl Policy Development and Admlnistrntion 

Prior Y e w  Current Yenr Budget 
Municipnl Court . . ' ROCA Building Enforcement : . 

Prior Yerr Current Yenr Budge( Prior Yerr Current Yenr Budaet 
3/31/2008 

s 
3/31/2008 3/3inoo9 3/3inoog 3/31/2008 3/31/2009 3ni/ioo9 

J 13,718 S 12,374 S 11,100 .$ 31.313 .$ 10,460 S 10,000 

, .  

96.139, 
213,434 
295,305 

2,018,812 
38.789 

389,097 
36,820 

188,993 
423,246 

2,179,966 
31,717 

83,297. 
37,320 

. .  

165,200 
397,500 

.2,275,500 
- .!5,!00 

273,500 
33,000 

"_  ". . 

. .. . . 

" ) .  375 I .  

3/31/3009 
0 . .  

, .  

3/3 l/hO9 
S 

. .  

- .  
3,112.114 2,956,913 3,194,800 31,688 10,665 10,500 . , . .  

98,976 149.8 14 150.300 82, I66 99,755 100.1 70 51,259 55.376 . 52.665 
7.689 10,957 11,250 11,045 6.91 1 7,500 3.942 * 4,216 ' . 3.700 

10,246 9.989 8,000 I08 16 1,500 2,119 1,070 , 1,200 
9,467 3,506 2.000 239 247 1 ,ooo 1,335 . 589 1,600 
6,744 2,889 4,000 

21,825 27,089 ' 29,300 7,819 9,433 10,700 3.605 4,276 4,600 
28,657 23,375 19,100 1,GSI 1,838 2,000 317 . 297 IO0 

341,700 140,801 138,700 10,580 374 1,500 478 660 500 
756 ' 744 1.500 

27 . 2.500 
124.038 , 114,301 100,OOo . 22,353 ' 43,350 45,000 

4,500 10,830 . 51,150 ' '16,750 ' 6,517 9,268 . 9,500 
19.287 . ,.! 27,479 , 24.800 3.289 2.914 , 5,000 2.384 ' , 5,760 5.000 

' 2,218 5,359 2,000 2,392 1,511 2,500 1,390 , , 915 1,400 

. -  2.367 . -  

. _  

5,537 . 13,919 13,500 4,598 5.865 6.000. 
4,193 ' I 4,336 

. .  . -  
' . loo . . .  8,945 7.337 7.450 3.222 'I 84 450 197 . . 349 

. .  

696,159 ' 590.332 527, I50 155,979 181,966 - 192.820. 71,915 78,615 79,365 
2,415.955 2,366,1181 2,667.650 (124.291) (171,301) (I 82,320) (71.915) . (78,615) (79,365) 

_ .  
i .  

- .  
5 1,685 

2,110,984 . 2,107,567 2,133,040. : 

196,374 

. -  
-._ ~ . . - - .. 

. ,  _ .  
- .  

c. ... - .  . .  533,551 ' 300,000 ' . .. 300,000 . _  
2,644,535 . 2,655,626 .. 2,433,040 

$ 5,060,490 S 5;022,207 $ 5,100,690 a a 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 

, -59- 



. .  

.. .. 
CITY OF MONBTT, MlSSOURI 
COMBINED SCAEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
XN FUND BALANCE (OXICINAL BUDGET AND ACTUAL) - GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED MARC% 31,2009 

I- Public Snlely - -- Emergency Mnnsgeemeiif Commuiiicrrtions E-91 I 
Prior Yenr Current Year Budget Prior Yenr Current Yenr Budget Prior Yenr Curreiit Year B u d p r  

3/31 nU09 3/31/2008 3/3111009 3/31/2009 3/31 /ZOO8 3/31/2009 3!3 1/2009 
0 '  - s  - ,  s -- $ ' - $  - s  - f  

Revenuq 
Business license and permits 
Federal and slate grants 
Fines and forfcihtres ' ' 

Frmhise fees 
Soles tax 
Interest income 
Intergovernniental 
Other revenue 
Other taxes nnd assessments 
Renlnl revenue 
Total revenues 

3/31 ROO8 3/31/2009 
I - $  

. -  

13,826 10.800 
R9.310 83,703 

103,136 94,503 

10,800 
65,000 

75,800 

Exoenditurq 
Snlaries 
Payroll taxes 
Conmonity devzlopnient block grant 
Computer 
Fiducatian and travel 

. Eleclioti 
. Health and life insllrance 

Insurance 
Merchandise 
Miscellaneous 
Professional and consulting service 
Repairs and mnintennnce 
Retirement 
Supplies 
Telephoiit 
Utilities 
Workman's compensation 
Capital outlay 
Debt service - principal 
Debt service - interest 
Total expenditures 

. . .  

Excess (deficiency) of reveniies over expenditures 
~ i n n n c i t i n  socirca l03& 
Due from (to) other funds 
Gain (loss) on snle of assets 
Settlement 
Proceeds from financing 
Payments in lieu of taxes (PILOTS) 
Transfers 

Totd other financing sources (uses) 
Revenues and other sources over (under) 

expenditures and otlier iises 

37,044 
2,930 

4,310 

7,223 
303 

._  

39.161 
2,997 

9,741 
3,587 

4,495 
337 

122 

4.27 1 
966 

26.491 

39,275 
2,950 

6,200 
4,400 

6,500 
400 

100 
. 2.500 

4,400 
1.500 

25,000 

100 

1,393 1,248 1.500 222,216 241,509 231.050 
I03 95 125 16.834 17,95Y 17,3pO 

2,433 8,526 7,200 
R72 328'. WO 1,583 , 471 1 ;OM, 

23 

I27 

2.650 

416 

4 

i 26 
25 

542 ' 
136 
30 

. loo 

100 
- .  

2.2DO. ' 

400 

25 

31,199 
1;286 

I92 
163 

5.435 
23.963 

398 

7. - 
. 31.607 

. .  '. 1,432 

. ' (  192 . .  

38,500 
1 ,Go0 

300 
500 

6,500 
25,000 

200 

455 

1,500 

111 
375 

4,440 
689 

24.977 

104 

226 

455 

~- . . _  -_-. 
5,656 ?:530 , 5,350 309,303 334,915 . 333;105 

(5,656) (2.530) (4,350) (309,303) (334,915) . (333,105) 
32,188 93,325 
2.3 15 (17,525) 

82,506 
20,630 

. -  

---I_ 

$ 2,315 -7,5225) , s, (333,105), Ig (2,530) 0 (5,3501 ,! ,-., (309,303h - 
See accompanying notes to the financial statements. , 
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CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI . .. . 
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CEANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE (ORIGINAL BUDGET A N D  ACTUAL) - GENERAL FUND 

YEAR'ENDED MARCH 31,2009 

Pevenuq 
' Business license end pennits 
Federal and state grants 
Fines and forfeihlres 
Franchise fees 
Sales tax 
lnlerestinconle ' . ' 

Intergovernmental . . 
Other revenue 
Other taxes and assessments 
Rental revenue 
Total revenues 

ExDenditureg 
Salaries 

. Payroll tmes 
Coniniunity developnient block grant 
Computer 
Education nnd travel 
Election 
Health and life insur'mce 
Insurance 
Merchandise 
Miscell m e o w  
Professional and consulting service 
Repairs and maintenance 

, Retireiiient 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Utilities 
Workman's compensation 
Capital outlay 
Debt servico -principal 
Deb1 service - interest 
Total expenditures 
'. Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expendihires 

Other flnanclna soerce~ luscsl 
Due from (to) other funds 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 
Settlement 
Proceeds from financing 
Payments in lieu of bxes (PILOTS) 
Transfers , 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
Revenues and other sources over (under) 

expenditures and other uses 

Public Snfety Totnl Public Safety 

FlreDepnrhept . , ' . , PoliceDepnrtmeiit , 
Prlor Yenr Current Yenr Budget Prlor Yew Current Year Budget Prior Y e w  Current Yenr Budget 
3/31/2008 3/31/2009 3/31/2009 3/31/2008 3/31/2009 3/31/2009 3/31/2008 3/31/2009 3/31/2009 

$ - s  - t  - s  - 5  " S  - S 31.313 $ 10.460 $ . 1OMH) . - ~ . - - -  
3,924 3, I35 8,896 3,265 8,896 , 7.189 . j,135 

7,898 5,667 5,000 7.898 5.667 5,000 

- .  
15.849 9.600 43,562 35.532 20,900 

89.3 10 83,703 . 65.00 

6.555 12,602 3,135 546,764 453,482 476,350 688,143 . 571,252 ' 565,785 

8.678 . - . . , .  .. 22,806 . . .  , ,  6,555, 

, , ., . , , , . I . . .. I .... - ~.. I. , ~..l 407.164 ob,trbb 42'8,701 ,, , 46 1,750 407.1 64 428,701 ' 461,750 
-_ .. . , l00.000 

691,486 702.3 IO 
49.907 50,240 

920 407 
4.887 7,121 

6 1,657 70.384 
I l , O l O  12,259 

726 

71,686 
83,271 
16,172 
4.244 
L ,750 

32.604 
7.670 

126.190 
7.142 

' 1,171,322 
(1,164,767) 

717,900 
50,000 

600 
7.000 

82,500 
13.600 

574 I .ow 
64,506 74,220 
88,284 83,000 
11.936 12;ooo 
4,266 3,000 

24,937 35,iou 
82,250 
, .  . . .  .- 

1,037,244 1,162,77Q 
(1,024,642) (1,159,635) 

806.679 849.794 
60.232 62,768 

18,863 3 1,259 
12,144 18.787 

ao,o I a 91,337 
14,304 15,927 

917 
. 17,273 

120,374 

25.122 
88,390 

9.3 1 a 

23,909 
3.0 12.492 

140.000 
I i4lssa 

4,544,893 
(3,998,129) 

842.550 
62.000 

30,500 
I5.0oO 

I10,Ooo 
17.700 

. .  
1,073 . _  - 

2 1,332 ' 20,000 
,150,452 ' -"'464,650 

87,618 . 93,000 
52,939, , 48.000 
18.899 13,000 

, 19,830 27,500 
1,1 so2 IO 1,229,000 

486.100 

. - _  

759.000 86,024 

. -  
759,000 86,024 

$ (1,164,767) S (1,024,642) 5 (1,159,635) S (3,239,1292 S (2,693,020) 

1,892.243 i.ga9.173 

. 27.443 51,019 

191,52 1 2 I 1,658 

144,998 145,185 

25.373 31.130 

28.894 32,115 

13,131 2,995 
40,920 65,426 

204.143 ' 227,948 
210,774 ' 2 19.896 

. 48,530 '. 74.79 1 

60.581 45.75s 
3,020,162 1.150,210 

42.321 52.382 
1.750 

266.190 515.785 

1,985.110 
14 3.5 7 5 

47,200 
30,900 

252.800 
35,500 

3,500 
69,500 

258,070 

73.400 
45,100 

64.330 

2 19,400 

1.3 486,100 1 1.250 

144,250 

(4,604,200) 
s,i69,9as 

86,024 . . . 85,000 
c . -  

85.ooO 759,000 

759,000 86,024 . 85,000 
_.  

85,000 

See accompmying notes to the fiiiancial statements. 
. .  
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, .  CiTY OF MOh'ETT, WSSOURI . I. . .  

COMBINED SCHEDULE OF RLVENUES,'ZXPENSES, ANI1 CHANGES 

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 
M WD'BALANCE (ORICMAL BUDGET AND ACTUAL) - GENERAL FUND 

. .  . 

Public Works ' 

Cern etery 'rnx Ittcr~meiit Finnnce - District 1 
Prior Yew Current Yenr Budget Prlor year Current Yerr Budp;et Prior Yenr Current Yerr Budget 

Tnx Increment Flnnnce - District 2 

3/31/2009 3/31/2008 3/31/2009 
$ " - .  s . * .  s 

3/31/zb09 
s , .  ' 4; 

3/51/2008 3/31/2009 
f . . . - .  $ . , . . . -  

Revenuq " 

Business license and permits 
Federal md state ginits .'. 
Fines and forfeitures ' ' 

Franchise fees . 
Sales tw 
lilterest income 
lntergovernniental 
ather revenue 
Other tmes and assessinenls 
Rental revenue 
Total revenuss 

&oendlturep 
Snlaries 
Payroll taxes 
Conimunity development block grant 
Computer 
Education and trove1 
Election 
Herlth and life insurance 
InsuranCe 
Merchandise 
Miscellaneous 
Professional ond consulting service 
Rcpnirs and innintenance 
Retirement 
Sup$& 
Telephone 
Utilities . 
Workman's compcnsntion 
Capital outloy 
Debt service - principal 
Debt semice - interest 

Totel expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of revenucs over expcndjturm 

Pther  nnflncinn solirce~luseg) 
Due from (to) other fiiiids 
Gain (loss) on snle of assets 
Settlement 
Proceeds froin financing 
Payments in lieu of taxes (FILOTS) 
Trnnslers 

Total other financing sourccs (uscS) 
Reveniics nnd other soiirces over (under) 

expenditnres and other uses 

, .  
3/31/2008 

f 
3/31 no09 3/3 112009 

s - $ . . . -  

14,300 

614,092 

G14,WI 567,263 
76,717 63.300 

264,785 259,476 
17,01 I 14,860 

-. . 

. -  , . .. , 
337,741 
46.766 

87,48 I 

! '. , , .  
i .  - .  

278.608 284.200 
9,461 10,000 

589,250 
62.000 

- .  
24 1,000 96.686 87.200 

354.755 381,400 17.041 14,860 14,300 1,570,585 890,039 892.250 47 1,988 

91,253 
6,603 

102,690 
7,147 

78 

14,964 
1,403 

131 

34.4 1 1 
9.999 

700 
1.275 

3.121 

103,785 
7 . m  

20,oilo 
1,600 

. 500 
36.000 
9,700 
t.000 
?.OOo 

5.625 

. .  

4 20 
I78,33Y 

. .. 

7,200. 
. 5.000 

. -  

7,836,000 
'355.000 

. -  

94,943 .. 

16,152 
1,260 

167 
175 

25,712 
10.050 

734 
1.550 

'591 
4,491 

11.495 

. 6,461 5,000 

1,522,493 
940,000 

7,913.91 t 
3Gl,!%S 

1.584.449 
500,000 500,000 

88,247 
2,729,499 

(I.l58,914) 

. 271,889 . 214,587 21s,ooo 
- 1.951.281 721,04X 720,000 

( 1.47Y,293) (336,293) (338.600) 

299,187 505,030 
8,588,050 8,708.200 

(7,698.01 1) (7.815.950) 
175,928 188,010 

( 173.71 0) (I  6 1.068) 
- 179,253 

( 162.2 12) 

549,155 9.100,ooo sso.ono 

(442.305) 
(542.30% - SS,754 

9,158,754 
(231,393) 
257,762 

- 
~ 

$ (162,212) S (336,293). u3 $ (7,440249) 6 7 , 5 2 0 , 9 5 0 )  $ 7,939,840 $ (161,0681 

See accoinpanying notes to the finaiicinl statements. 
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CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 
IN FUND BALANCE (ORIGINAL BUDGET AND ACTUAL) - GENERAL FUND 

Revenues 
Business license and permits 
Federal and state grants 
Fines and forfeitures 
Franchise fees 
Sales tax 
Interest income 
lntergovemnienhl 
Other revenue 
Other taxes and assessments ' 
Rental revenue 

Torel reveniies 

gmend i tu ra  
Selaries 
Payroll taxes 
Community development block grant 
Computer 
Education and travel 
Election 
Health and life insurance 
Insurance 
Merchandise 
Miscellaneous 
Professional and consulting service 
Repairs and mainlenance 
Retirenient 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Utilities 
Workman's compensation 
Capital outlay 
Debt servica - principal 
Debt service - interest 

Total expenditures 
Excess (deficiency) of reveiiues over expenditures 

P the r  finnncinesources (iisesl 
Due from (to) other funds 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 
Settlement 
Proceeds from financing 
Payments in lieu of taxes (PILOTS) 
Transfen 

Total other financing sources (uses) 
Revenues and other sources over (under) 

expenditures and other uses 

. .  
Public Works 

Community Development Block Grnnt Project Street Depnrtmcnt Total Public Works 
Prior Yew Current Yew Budget Prior Year Current Year Budget Prior Yenr Current Yenr Budget 
3/31/2008 3/31/2009 3/31nm 3/31/2008 3/31/2009 3/51/2009 3/31/2008 3/31/2009 3/31/2009 

s - $  - $  - s  130 $ - %  - %  130 $ - s  

, .  

762,952 

_. 
-300,'892 
i ( .  
1 1,785 

933,854 

178.588 
284,!45 

1,293,200 

.. ~ . 

1,075.759 1.396.5 87 1,791,475 3,135,373 2.686.24 1 3,085.425 

13 
. -  

i .  ,. .. 

425,626 
32.118 

2,536 
1,366 

51.151 
15,139 

1,287 
4.95 I 

398,594 
45.240 
13,290 
3,515 

' 3,205 
'' ' 50;889 

400,038 
29,3 18 

312 
2.248 

54.225 
16.856 

1.449 
2.154 

307,009 
43,610 

1 17.061 
3.262 

189.275 
315,000 

404,410 
30,300 

2,000 
4,000 

62,000 
18,700 

1.000 
20,000 
351,550 
43,000 
I10.000 

4,000 

1,377.044 

1,253,624 
-. 123.4a3 

28.826 
352,266 

933.834 

845.871 
72.761. . 

193,448 
640,307 

1,293,200 

. -  
873,450 
72,000 

203.575 
643.200 

522,879 
38.721 

13 
2.536 
1.366 

67,303 
16.399 

1,874 

424.306 
55.290 
14.044 

. '3.796 

278,408 

5,065 ' 

'-2j,j80 

502,728 
36,465 

312 
2,326 

69, I89 
18.259 

8,893 
14,269 
341.420 
53,609 

1 17.770 
4.537 .. 

r  is,^ 

508,igs 
38,100 

2,000 
4.000 

82,000 
20JW 

8,200 
30,500 
387,350 
52,700 

1 1 1,000 
6,000 

"27325 
. .  

567,372 1,895. I78 1,822,350 3,688.ao9 . 9,809,089 9.6~8,  ISO 
12.780 13.317 . 12.975 952.780 875,302 867,975 
5.603 5,066 ' 6,150 365,739 518,840 726,150 

12,529,945 
(13) . .  (528,903) (1,509,748) (1,116,260) (3,329.335) (9,705,120) (9,444,520) 
13 1,604,662 2,906,335 2,913,735 6,464,708 12,391,361 

9,100.000 549.155 sso,ooo 

29 1,393 255,000 (383.551) 
291,393 255.ooO 8,716,449 549,155 550.000 

t (13) $ - s  - 2, . (528gO3) $ (1,218.355L S (861,260k $ 5,387,114 S (9,155,965) $ (8,8- 
L 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
CORIJ3MED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 
fl  PUND BALANCE (ORIGINAL BUDGET AND ACTUAL) - GENERAL FUND 
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 

Pwks nnd Reerention 
Golf Course 

Prior Yew Current Yenr Budnet 
Cnsino 

Prior Yenr Current Year ' Budnet 
Recrenlion 

Prior Yenr Current Ymr , Budgct 
3/3li009 

s 
k v e n u g  

Busipess license and permits 
Federal and stalc grants 
Fines a i d  forfeitures 
Franchise fees 
.Sales tau 
Interest income 
Intergovernmenral , 

Other revenue 
Other taxes and assessments 
Rental revenue 
Total revenues 

3/31/2009 
a 

3/31/2008 
f , . .  - 3/31/2009 

$ 
3/31/2008 

$ 
3/31/2009 

$ 
3/31/2009 

f 

. .  

500 

3/31/2009 
$ .  

, ,.. . . .  : . . .  , .  

232.9 IO 245.458 . 314 259.500 2.226 

12,500 
14,726 

_ .  
27,381 
27,381 

24,299 
24,299 

24,500 
. 24,501) 

12,000 
12.314 

12,000 
12,500 

53,128 
286,038 

59,812 
305,270 

57.200 
316,700 

Exoenditures 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Coniniiinity development block grant 
Computer 
Education nnd travel 
Election 
Hedth and life insurance 
Insurance 
Merchandise 
Miscclluneoia 
Professional nnd consulting service 
Repairs ond mainfenence 
Retirenient 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Utilities 
Workman's compensntion 
Capital outlay 
Debt service - principal 
Debt service - interest 
Toid expenditure5 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues over expenditures 
Qther finnncine sources ( w e &  

Due from (to) other funds 
Gain (lossj on snle of assets 
Settlement 
Proceods from f inwing 
Payments in liea of taxes (PILOTS) 
Transfers 

Totnl other financing sources (uses) 
Revenues ond other sources over (.under) 

expenditures and ollier uses 

13.524 
1.03 5 

I77 

24 

3.608 

8,742 
936 

. 569 
433 

16,050 
1,228 

197 

24 

7.337 

7.R32 
637 

35 

- .  

13,250 
950 

225 

4,700 

6,200 
I .ooo 

325 

176.143 
13,259 

181 
1.141 

16.U91 
2.498 

17,508 
3,546 
2,453 
6 1.600 
11,250 

125.231 
'2.334 

884 
2,948 

122,319 
123.405 

I 78,584 
13,285 

1,023 
927 

18.492 
2.781 

10,162 
2,676 
62,2 74 
12,214 
91,983 
2.814 

926 
49,015 

133.746 

21.528 

181,350 
16,500 

500 
1 .ooi) 

22.000 
3,100 

22.600 
5.800 
2.000 

74.200 
12,500 

123.500 
I.500 

1,975 
2 I .suo 

1?0,000 

435 

- ,  

600 

55,100 

484 

1,651 

537 

4.588 

I I .ON1 

73 

53.420 

21,361 
704.1 86 

(41 8.1 drs) 

17,307 25.35@ 
619,737 637,775 

( 3  14,467') (12 1.075) 

- '  

7.71 1 
5,103 

, .  
33,390 26,650 
(9.09 1 (2.1 50) 

65.057 58,700 
. (50,331) (4lG,2ooj 

98,977 

98.977 

$ ( 4 6 m  $ (319,171~ S (314,167) $ (321,075) $ r9,0311 

See accompanying notes to tlie financial statenients. 
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CITY OF MONE'M', MISSOURI 
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 

. .. IN rmND M L 4 N C E  (ORIGINAL BUDGET AND ACTUAL) - GENERAL FUND .. . 
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 

Revenues 
Business license and permits 
Federal and stale grants 
Fines and forfeitures 
Franchise fees 
Sales tax 
Interest income 
Intergovernmental 
Other revenue 
Other l u e s  and assessmenls 
Rental revenue 

Total revenues 

m e n d l t u r q  . 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Community developiiient block grant 
Computer 
Education and travel 
Election 
Health and life insurance 
Insurance 
Mer,chandise 

, Miscellaneous 
Professional and consulting service 
Repairs and maintenonce 
Rctiienient 
Supplics 
Telephone ' 

Utilities 
,Workman's compensation 
Capital outlay 
Debt service -principal . 
Debt service - interest 
Total expenditures 

Excess (deficiency) of revenues. over expenditures 
Ofher flnnocirw soitrc es (trsesl 

Due from (to) other funds 
Gain (loss) on sale of ussets 
Settlement . 
Proceeds from financing _. 
Payments in lieu of taxes (PILOTS) 
Trnnsfers 

Total other finnncing sources (uses) 
Revenues and other sources over (under) 

expendilures and ollier iises 
, .  , , .  

Parka and Recreation 

Prior Year Current Year Budget Prior Ymr Curreill Year Budget Prlpr Year Current Year Burlget 
3/31/2008 3/31/2009 I3/31/22009 3/31/2008 3/3 1 /2009 3/31/2009 3/31/2009 ' 3/31/2008 3/31/2009 

North Park Soutlr Pnrk Pool 

. I  S .. _ .  - . $  . - S  - s . - o  - f . -  s , -  $ - $  
l7,6G7 ' 17,700 ' 

. .  

2.320 879 32,034 15.961 12.300 4.853 4,722 5,000 

2,320 879 32,034 33,628 30,000 4.853 4,722 5,000 

45,779 
3,451 

214 

5.405 
917 

' , 4 8  

4 1,504 
4,201 
2.192 

654 

1.502 

105.867- 
(103.547) 

. . . - _ .  

.$ (103,547), 

47,278 46,525 94.170 84,133 99.675 1.863 
3,384 3.500 697 I 6,217 6,200 139 

.. 

400 

8.891 
1,021 

48 

32;740 
5,153 
1.633 

81 7 

%I80 
14.692 

500 

6,000 
1,150 

. 500 

32,550 
5,000 
2,000 

700 

-3 :i 50 
I7.000 

238 

,l7,857 
2.1 I2  

96 

55,070 
9,313 
3.544 
1,419 

3.332 
I 8,939 

75 

13.320 
2.351 

.269 

50,321 
7.361 
2.355 
1,166 

2,329 
25.488 

500 

15.700 
2,600 

- .  
64,550 
9,000 
5.000 
1.500 

2.350 
25,500 

. 60 
580 

35,000 

209 
4,891 

2,005 

-. 

'. '40 

, -  . -  

646 750 
..- 

. .  . -  
35.000 35,000 
6,077 4,000 

4,845 5,000 

. .  ._ 
I .. 

.-. 

I 18,237 I 16.515 2 13,OG I 195,385 232.575 .44.7a7 46.568 44,750 
(117,358) (I 1.6.575) (1 8 1.027) (161,757) (202,575) (39,934) (4 1.846) (39,750) 

~ $ . (117,358), $ (116,575). S (181,027) $ (161,757) $ ( 2 0 2 , 5 3  S (39,9341 $ (41,846) S (39,750A 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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, . .  
ClTY OF B'IONlClT, BIISSOUN 
C0MBnUE.D SCEEDULE OF REVENUES, EXYBNSLS, AND CFIANGES 

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 
IN FUND BALANCE (ORIGINAL BUDGET AND ACTUAL) - GENERAL FUND 

.. , 
. .  

pevenuq 
BusinCss license end permits 
Federal and $late & W s '  .' 

Fines and forfeitures 
FiMChiSC'feeS 
Sales tw 
Interest iilcoiiic 
Intergovernmental 
Other revenue 
Other taxes nnd assessments 
Rental revenue 
Total revenues 

Snlaries 
Payioll tnxes 
Conimunity development block grant 
Computer 
Education and travel 
Election 
Health nnd life iflsiirance 
Insurance 
Merehaildire 
Miscellaneous 
Professkrml End consultirtg service 
RepRin and maintenance 
Retiremait 
Supplies 
Telephone 
Utilities 
Workman's compeiisation 
Capitnl outlay 
Dcbl service - principal 
Debt service - interest 
Totnl exwnditures 

Parks mi l  Recrenlioii Totnl Aleicipnl Airport 
Prior Yerr Current Year Budact Prior Y e w  Current Ycnr Budect 

17,667 17,700 io,wn 344.747 365.500 

: .  . -  
- ,  

, -  

272,431 269,246 277.300 209,730 170.580 164,000 

92.509 96,6l I 33,700 47,530 54,708 0 ,500  
3 64,940 353,524 388,700 267,760 570.035 578,100 

33 1,380 
24,sss 

181 
1.5Y3 

39.4 13 
6,719 

17.508 
3,714 

37.453 
165.438 
24,973 

115. I40 
5,313 
6.04 I 
8,255 

I 4  1.258 
123.405 

, -  

326.045 
24,114 

1,023 . 
1.402 

40,703 
7.480 

2 1.528 
10.503 
37,676 

169,879 

108.721 
5.434 

5,470 
142.615 
133.7$6 

24,728 

340,800 
27.150 

500 
2,mJ 

8.??5 
43,700 

22,OOij 
6.300 

37,000 
238,100 

26,500 
I4  I ;703 

4,700 

5.800 
64,000 

1:0.Ooo 

. -  

93, I05 
G.880 

816 

15,725 
I 3,627 
85.008 

1,475 
10,243 
21,325 

7,371 
8.545 , 
2747 

17,804 
2,164 

12.648 
40.000 

93.608 
6,936 

1.141 

13,333 
13.469 
35.585 
2.098 

51.IY3 
52,173 

6,839 
1.739 
3,068 

1.7$4 ' 

35SJL77 
40.KW 

I I) I ,  17.5 
7.700 

1,noo 

22.500 
12,500 
50,000 

1.600 
110,oorJ 

SO,6(M 
10,000 
8500 
2,900 . 

2.775 
30 1,925 
40.000 

Excess (deficieiicy) of revenues over expendi!ures 
Other fiiinnclne sources (uses1 

Due from (10) other funds 
Gain (loss) on sale of assets 
Settlement 
Proceeds from financing 
Payments in lieu of taxes (PILO'FS) 
Transfers 

t Total olher finascing 301,irces (usec] 
Revcnues and other sources uver (under) 

cspenditures and other uses 

- 21,361 17,307 28,350 6,327 5,007 4;950 
I ,104,160 1,078,374 I , I  1 :,0?5 345 ,m 691,530 728,125 
(739.220) (694,850) (728.325) (78,146) (121,395) (150,025) 

98.377 

- 98,917 
~ 

f (010,243) $ (694,850) S (728,325) S (78,346) $ (121,495) $ (150,025) 
r -  . 

See accoinpanying iioles to the financial statements: 
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CITY OF MONETT, WSSOURl 
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CtIANGES 
IN FUND BALANCE (ORIGINAL BUDGET AND ACTUAL) - GENERAL FUND 

Y E A R E N D E D ~ ~ C I I J I . ~ ~ ~ ~  

, ! I  

.. . 
w+l.u€a- . 

Btrsiness license nnd pcrniils 
Federal nnd stnte grnnts 
Fino3 nnd forfeihires 
Franchise few 
Salos mx 
Interest income . 
Inter~overnmenlal 
Other revenue 
Other a . c s  and assessments 
Rental revenue 
Totnl revennes 

-tures 
Snlsries, , 

Pnyrall tnxes 
Communily dcvclopmcnt block grant 

Computer 
Education and travel 
Election 
Health and life inrurnnce 
Insurance 
Merchnndise 
Miaccllaneailr 
Profasionnl and conrnlting service 
Repairs and maintennncc 
Rctirenient 
Sllpplies 
Telephone 
Utilitiu . , . . .  
Worbqnn'a compcnrnlion 
Cnpltal outlay 
Debt service - principnl 
Debt service -interest 
Told expcndifnres 

Excess (dcficicncy) of rcvcnues over cxpendihmr 
Pther finand- 

Due from (lo) other funds 
Gain (Loss) on Sale of Assets 

Proce,eda Gom Finanang.  " ' 

Pnymeiils in Lieu of TcLws'(PILOTS) 

T ~ M I  otlrer financing siumes (user) 

_. .Settlenient 
' 

. Transfers . . 
' ' 

Revenues and ather soimes over (tinder) 
expendinires and other uses 

' Totnl Cenernl Fund 
Prior Yenr Current Yenr Budget ' 

3/33/2008 3ntiz009 3/31/l009 
f 45,161 $ 22,834 $ 21,100 

1,492,579 1,303.4S7 1,679,635 
22 1,332 194,660 170,200 
295,305 423.246 397.500 

3,619,600 3;454.538 3.6 10.700 
262.272 104,478 107,000 

953,646 752,103 943,275 
478,396 761.330 74 1,200 
140,039 I5 1,3 I9 142.200 

7,568.330 7,167,965 7,812,810 

2,938,683 
223,173 

13 

40,406 
38,615 
6,744 

335.787 
94.296 

102.516 
361.894 
49 1,062 
~821.3b9 
309,244 

3,061.368 
223.657 

62,343 
39,505 

361,972 
94,698 
57.113 

165.290 
282.865 
80Se.19 

358,222 

2.889 

3,085.580 
227,775 

57,700 
39,900 

430.300 
95,825 
n o w ,  

4,000 , 

158.300 
34?.000 
947.820 
325,350 

235,546 336,500 359,400 
57.634 70.780 60.700 
29,481 

105.325 78,679 107,480 
6,862,877 11,459,558 11,335,325 
1.382375 i.m.8a3 1.514.075 

515.427 685,670 903,700 - .  
14,352,507 19.7 11,581 20.072.230 
(7,384,177) (12,543,616) (1'2,259,420) 

51.685 
196,374 

9.957.977 635.179 635.000 , 

2.1 16,984 2.107.567 2,133.040 
150,000 300,000 300.wO 

12,218.96 I 3,290,805 3,068,040 

$ 4,834,784 $ (9,2S2,8lll S (9,193,3802 

See accompanying notes to the f i i i m i c i a l  statements. 
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. , _ _ .  ClTY OF MONKIT, MISSOURI , I  

. L  

COMBINED SCEEDULE OF IIEVENUBS, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 
IN &,TAJNED EARf"GS (ORIGINAL BUDGET AND ACTUAL) -PROPRIETARY FUND TYPE3 

goerr t ine revenues 
Revenues 
Federal m d  state grants 
Tap - in charges 
Penalties 
Miscellaneous charges 
Rental 

Total operating rcvenues 

Ouerntine expenses 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Depreciation 
Computer 
EdiicHtion 
Electric purchases 
Health and life insumnce 
lnsurnnce 
Lluidfill and recycling 
Miscellaneous 
Professional and consulting service 
Repairs atid niaintenaiice . 
Ketirernerlt. ' 

Supplies ' 

Telephone, 
Utilities 
Workmnn's cotnpansntion 

Total operating expenses 

E(on-ouerntine revelma fexnenaed 
Investment income . 
Gain (loss) on asset disposal 
Specie1 assessment income 
Interest expense and fees 

Net income before transfers 

Net non-operuling revenues (expenses) 

Transfers 
Transfers - payments in lieu of taxes (PILOT) 
Trunsfers 
Total transfers 

Net income (loss) 

. .. . . , . , 

Wnterworlcs --- Electric ' , Wnslewattr .Serve~ 
Prior Yenr Current Yenr Budget . Prior Yew Current Year Iludget : Prior Ymr Currciit Ycnr Autlget 
3/31/2008 3/3 1 n0.W 3/31/2009 ,3/31!2008 . 3/31/2001) 3/31/2009 3 3/31/2008 3/31/2009 j n m o o 9  

$ l,tl4.004 I; 1,719,805 S . 1,780,000 S 17.134.539 S 17,071.100 S 17.60l.SM) Cfi l.R07,385 $ 1.804.493 t l.901.00U 

510' 210 600 17,172 ' 

17,073 108,565 109,5w1 36,390 74,841 81.000 3.433 1.022 5.300 

. ,  1.147 . . . .- . 101,341 100,000 552585 , 

2,000 78.b78 149,677 123.000 2,000 

1,752.569 l,934,03 1 1,995,000 17,302.192 17.296.765 I7.805,500 1,811,323 1 .(r IC.725 1 .~U9,(100 
--- ---- -~ I,ooa 4,320 1,320 . 3,500 -- - 

437.490 
33.124 

257.427 
6,555 
3.612 

42,589 
15,685 

1,216 
30,51.1 

220,499 
48,698 

177,630 
3,419 

258.043 

439,429 
32.436 

257,246 
7,082 
3.736 

52,205 
17.686 

740 
252,869 
504,971 
4 I .355 

141.602 
3,949 

. '  

501,700 
37,100 

10,M)o 
15.ooo 

65,500 
19,6110 

2,soo 
26o.000 
556,450 
53,000 

240.00C 
4.000 

- -  

' 726,484 
52,727 

156,394 
6,238 
4.237 

13.3 12.839 
53,976 
64,6 12 

887 
I7942 

193,289 
80,21 I 

4 19.325 

. .  

5.940 
s 437. 

761,147 
. 55.081 

I 66,914 
10.413 
10,869 

13:114,942 
71,009 
71,943 

1.789 
23,253, 

139,814 
. 82.593 

199.813 
7,653 

75 I ,200 
56.400 

10,000 
10.000 

13,46U.(~W 
80,OOO 
R O , N i l  

2.500 
70,DW 

2 I 1,450 
83.600 ' 

305,000 
5.200 

4 15.393 
3 1,550 

I .o 12.905 
4.613 
6.346 

38,908 
19.458 

754 
73,2@4 

236,322 
48,01, I 

104.683 
2.735 

2 s w a 6  

416.689 
32,650 

1 .O.I 9.0.51 
7.398 
1,!05 

2 1,666 
44,632 

618 
139,520 
507,712 
47,575 
58,654 

3,756 

,198,900 
36,000 

10,000 
I0,WO 

62.000 
24.WO 

1.500 

5 I.000 

I .  

130,000 
50 1,450 

90,000 
3.500 

11,838 Il.d84 - 13,150 - 21,4.12 18,838 25.800 Y1734 - 7.244 ' 10,225 
1,545,535 1267,190 1,778,000- 15,116,988 - 14,739,071 I5,2 10,550 2,263,505 2,333,270 1,428,575 

14,200 349 38,789 1,280 1,500 346.887 12 1,283 125.000 

- .  30,950 
1 9.324) (17,6771 ( 17 , 800) - - - A -_.I.- w9m. __.__ (407.300) 
(5,724) (17,328) (17,800) 36,789 1,2!!? 1.500 ( 69 , 82.7 L (.53.474) (25 1,3501 

- .  - .  

~ 

195;310 149,513 199,200 2,123,993 2,558,974 2,596.4.50 (5?'?.004) (58 I ,O 19) 229.975 

(177.207) (194,159) (1 82.700) (1,691902) (1,668.2 12) ( I  ,7l R.650) (222.644) (226,799) (198,890) - clso,ooo~ (300,OOOJ p00.000) 
(177,207) (194,159) (152,700) (1,841,902) (1,956,212) (2,018,650) (222.644) (226,799) (198.8W) 

$ 21.103 S (44,6462 S 16,500 0 RSZ.031 S (744,618) $ (807,818) 5 31,085 = 

See accoinpanyiiig notes to the financial statements. 
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CITY OF MONETT, MiSSOURI 
COMBINED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND. CHANGES . 
IN RETAWED EARNINGS (ORIGINAL BUDGET AND ACTUAL) - PROPRIETARY FUND TYPES 
YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 

Qneratine revenurn 
Revenues 
Federal and slate grants 
Tap - in charges 
Penalties 
Miscellaneous charges 
Rental 
Total operating revenues 

Oueratinn exuenseg 
Snlwies 
Payroll laxes 
Depreciation 
Computer 
Education 
Electric purchmes 
Health and life insurance 
Insurance 
Landfill and recycling 
Miscellaneous 
Professiqnal and consulting service 
Repairs and maintenance 
Retirement 
Supplies ' 

Telephone 
Utiliries 
Workman's compensation 

Total operating expenses 

PonLooerntine revenues lexoeniies) 
Investment income 
Gain (loss) on asset disposal 
Special' assessment income 
Interest expense and fees 

Net nowoperating revenues (expenses) 

Net income before transfers 

Translers 
Transfers L payments in lieu of taxes (PILOT) 
Transfers 
Total transfers .. 

Net income (loss) 

. .  

Fiber Sanitntlon Totnl Proyrietory Funds 
Prior Year Current Yerr Budget Prior Year Current Yew Budget Prior Year Current Yenr Budget 
3/31/2008 3/31/2009 3/31/2009 3/31/2008 3/31/2009 3/31/2009 3/31/2008 3/31/2009 3/31/2009 

S 161.724 $ 165,322 . $ 175,000 s 556,484 $ 562,293 $ 553,000 $ 21,374,136 $ 21,328,013 $ 22,010,500 

I 7,682 210 600 
78,678 149.677 127.000 ' 

4.320 4,320 4.500 
22.439.400 

. 10,721 563.306 102.488 100,000 

. 3.329 3,538 1,000 90,815 206,614 i%,aoo 

. -  . -  

30,590 18,648 

21,791,322 1 92.3 14 183,970 175,000 570.534 565,831 554,000 22,128,937 

29,536 
2,009 

30,590 

10,373 . 
7,004 

20,016 
176 

3 1,566 

14 

18,648 
16,924 
4.670 

2 1,943 
930 

1 
I _  

1,000 

12,000 
10,Ooo 

25,000 
500 

124.062 
8.770 

75,727 

23,978 
4,297 

171,696 
517 

82.966 
. 14,717. 

6,596 

215 

123,122 
2,569 

82.925 

20,132 
4,785 

152.957 
5,253 

108 

11,941 

314 

70.890 

7.83 I 

135.100 
10.200 

500 

33.000 
5,500 

167,000 
1,000 

64.900 
15,SW 
8,000 

1,703,429 
126,171 

1.53 1,992 
19,415' 
44,785 

13,312.839 
159,451 
104.251 
I7 1.696 
' 3,374 
132,030 
740,080 
191.637 
728,250 

12.278 
51 8.581 

1,770.387 
122,736 

1.557.702 
24.893 
15.724 

13,1l4.942 
190.978 
I16.080 
152.957 
27.048 

432.674 
I ,228,057 

183,464 
429,843 

16,602 

i.aa6,goo 
139.700 

31,000 
35,500 

13.460,OOO 
240.5OQ 
129.100 
167.000 

7,500 
472.000, 

1,344,250 
202.500 . 
728,000 

13,200 

12,543 15,932 9,350 5 4 3 7  53.898 58,525 
18.91 $675 19,437,gas 99,704 94,695 48,500 526,084 498,759 450,050 19,554.ai6 

. .  
5,000 

. .  
- .  399.876 422.917 126,500. 

5,000 - .  _ -  30.950 .- - - . .  (430,2002: , (5,109) [S,lOD) (436,638) , (497,5481 . .  
5.000 (5,109) (5,100) (3 1.762) (74,631) (272.750) 

92.6 10 89,275 126,500 49,450 61,963. 98.850 2,5422 59 2,278,706 3,250,975 

(2.1 10.984) (2,107,567) (2.1 17.740) 
( I  50.000) (300,000) (300.000) 

(19.231) . (I 8.397) (17.500) 

(19,23 1) ( 18,397) (1  7,500) (2,260,984) (2,407,567) (2,4 17,7402 

See accompanying notes to the fiiiancial statements. 
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CITY OF MONE'lT, bll.SSOI~XK 
COMBWED SCHEDULE OF REVENUES, EXPENSF,S, AND CUAKGES 

YEAH ENDED MARCH 31,2009 
IN RETAOYED EARNINGS [ORIGINAL BUDGET AND ACrUi\l.) -.TNJXRNAL SERVICE FUND TITES 

a e r n t l n g  revenues 
Revenues 
Federal aiid shte grants 
Tap - in charges 
Pennliies 
 miscellaneous chtugey 
Rental 

Total operating revenues 

merntine eroenseg 
Salaries 
Payroll (axes 
Depreciation 
Compoter 
Eiducnrion 
Electric pvchases 
Health md life insurance , 

Lmdfill and recycling 
Miscellnneous 
Professionnl and coiisiilting sarvice 
Repairs and inaiiitenance ' 

Retircinunt 
Supplia? , 
Telephone 
Utilities 
Workman's compensation 

. Insurance 

'I'otal operating cxpeiises 

pIoii-Duerntine r evenw lenocnses) 

Oain (loss) on ussei disposal 
Interest exprise and fees 

Invcstmcnt income 

Net non-dpernting reveiiiirs (expenses) 

. Net inconie before tnmskrs 
Trmnsfers 

Net incoine (loss) 

I / .  Y .  ..,.. 1.. t . . . ,  .. .., . .  

-' 
hltchanlc ' ---_I--- Bnanrrlous Mntnterlrl Snl'cty Program 

Prlor Yenr Current Year Budget Prior Year Current Year Budget Prior Yeflr Current Ycrr Budget 
3/31/2008 3/31/2009 3f31/2009 3/31/2008 3/31/2009 3/31/3009 3/3J/2008 3/31/200Y ' 3/31/2009 

6 7,723 S 3,359 $ 7,850 $ 20,325 S 19,138 S 21,200 $ '  138,386 .R 145,806 S 156,250 

20 
. -I-- . -- - 1,723 3,359 7,STO 20,325 19.138 21.200 -. 138,406 145.XOfl I%,250 

3,638 2,058 2.000 10.115 ' 10.111 IG,700 68.637 70,072 7 I PO0 
270 157 600 773 773 800 4,589 , 4,655 5,400 

925 759 1,600 
2,998 3,93 1 2,000 

I 02 107 230 
62 60 100 

315 
500 

44 I 2?.4 900 
2.155 - I  3.500 

902 326 

102 

61 B 
1,211 :I 
2,153 
I .a82 

I07 

ssa 
1,259 

154 
1,0:3 

200 

100 
200 
500 

1,300 
2,500 
I.200 

9,720 
82 5 

48 

2.597 
8,168 

38,062 
1,109 
2,393 

I2.00? 
1,000 

!OO 

,.OF0 
8.200 

48,000 
1,200 

- 92 - I 2 2  1 do 2.233 , .2,924 . 1,450 
20,325 19.133 __ 2 1,200 138.406 145.806 156,250 

. I  

10,17c 
P I 8  

4t; . 

5.494 
7,538 

42.516 , 

B?G 

, .  . 

See accompanyiiig tiotes to the financial statements. 
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CRY OF M O N E P ,  MISSOURI 
COMBWED SCHEDULF, OF REVENUES, EXPENSES, AND CHANGES 

YEAR ENDED MARCH 31,2009 
IN RETAINED EARNINGS (ORIGINAL BUDGET AND ACTUAL) - INTERNAL SERVICE FUND TYPES 

. . . . . .  . Totrl Inferiinl Service Funds . .  
I .  

, . . .  . Prior Year Current Year Budget 
Oneratine revenue% 

Revenues 
Federal and state grants 

Penalties 
Miscellaneous charges 
Rentnl, , 

. Tap - in charges 

T O ~ ~ I  operating revenues 

. -  
. 20 

166,454 168.303 . 185,300 

Ooerntinn exie= 
Salaries 
Payroll taxes 
Depreciadon 
Computer 
Educotion 
Electric purchases 
Health and life insurance 
lnsiirance 
Landfill and recycling 
Miscellaneous 
Professional and consulting service 
Repairs and maintenance .. . 
Retirement 
Supplies , 
Telephone 
Utilities. .. : 
Workman's compensation 
, ,Totel operating expenses ' 

%n-ouernwreven- 
Investment income , 

Gain (loss) on asset disposal 
Interest expense and fees 
. , Net non-operatiiig revenues (expenses) 

Net inconie before tronsfars 
Transfers 

Net inconie (loss) 
. .  .. , . I ,  I .  : , :- .  

. .  

82,390 
5,540 

928 
2,998 

9,924 
887 

48 

3,245 
9,853 

42,380 
3,293 
2.393 

82,24 I 
5,585 

759 
4,136 

10,384 
987 

48 
325 

9,142 
43,000 

2,175 

6,382 

84,600 
6.800 

1,600 
2,000 

€2,400 
1.100 

200 
,200 

8,000 
10.400 
53,900. 
2,400 

2,415 3,139 . . 1,700. , .  

166,454 168.303 , 185;300 
. . .  

: -  
. .  
. -  

I - , .  
- .  

. .  

See nccompanyitig notes to.tIie financial statements. 
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A Professional Corporation 
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WWW.CPA2WEB.COM 

MONEIT, Mrssouru 65708 
PHONE: (417)235-3650 PHONE: (417) 671-9550 
FAX: (417) 235-0334 FAX: (800)242-7634 

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE 
AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FluyANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN 

ACCORDANCE WITH GOK?ZIWMENTAUDIlXVG S T M A R D S  

To the Honorable Mayor James Orr, 

Councilman Jerry Dierker and Councilman Michael Brownsberger 
City of Monett, Missouri 

W e  have audited the fmancial statements of the governmental activities, the business-type activities, and each 
major fund of the City of Monett, Missouri, as of and for the year ended March 31, 2009, which collectively 
comprise the City of Monett, Missouri’s basic financial statements and have issued our report thereon dated 
September 21, 2009 We conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the 
United States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing 
Stanhds, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. 

_. 

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting 

In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Monett’s internal control over financial 
reporting as a basis for designing our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the 
financial statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Monett, 
Missouri’s internaI control over financial reporting. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the 
effectiveness of the City’s internal control over financial reporting. 

A control deficiency exists when the design or operation of a control does not aIlow management or employees, 
in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent or detect misstatements on a timely basis. 
A significant deficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely affects the 
City of Monett, Missouri’s ability to initiate, authorize, record, process, or report financial data reliably in 
accordance with generally accepted accounting principles such that there is more than a remote Iikelihood that a 
misstatement of the City of Monett’s fmancial‘statements that is more than inconsequential wiil not be 
prevented or detected by the City of Monett’s internal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more 
than a remote likelihood that a material misstatement of the financial statements will not be prevented or 
detected by the City of Monett’s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over financial reporting was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this sectjon and would not necessarily identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control over 
financial reporting that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 
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Compliance and Other Matters 

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City of Monett's financial statements are'fiee of 
material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, 
contracts, and gant  agreements, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the 
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those 
provisions was not an objective of our audit, and.accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The resuIts of 
our tests disclosed no instances of noniornpliance or other'matters that are required to be reporte'd under 
Governmefit Auditing Standarb. 

We noted certain matters that we reported to management of City of Monett, in a separate ,letter dated 
September 21,2009. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity, 
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through'entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these.specified parties. 

Monett, Missouri 
September 21,2009 
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HOME OFFICE BRANCH OFFJCE 
217 FOURTH STREET 
P.O.Box68 . -  CASSVTLLS Mrssom 65625 
Mom~, MISSOURI 65708 

83 SOUTH MAIN STREET 

PHONE: (417) 235-3650 
FAX: (417) 235-0334 ‘FAX: (800)242-7634 

PHONE: (417) 671-9550 

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE WITH REQUIREMENTS 
APPLICABLE TO EACH MAJOR PROGRAM AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL 

OVER COMPLIANCE IN ACCORDANCE WITH OMJ3 CIRCULAR A-133 

To the Honorable Mayor James Orr, 
Councilman Jerry Dierker and Councilman Michael Brownsberger 
City of Monett, Missouri 

Comdiance 

We have audited the compliance of City of Monett, Missouri, with the types of compliance requirements 
described in the U. S. Office of Management and Budget (Om) Circular A-133 Compliance Supplement that 
are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended March 31, 2009. The City of Monett, 
Missouri’s major federal programs are identified in the summary of auditor’s results section of the 
accompanying scheduie of findings and questioned costs. Compliance with the requirements of laws, 
regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to each of its major federal programs is the responsibility of the 
City of Monett, Missouri’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the City of Monett, 
Missouri’s compliance based on our audit. 

We conducted our audit of compliance in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United 
States of America; the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, 
issued by the Comptroller General of the United States; and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States, Local 
Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations. Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require that we plan 
and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether noncompliance with the types of 
compliance requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program occurred. An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about City of Monett, Missouri's 
compliance with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered necessary in the 
circumstances. We believe that our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion. Our audit does not provide 
a Iegal determination of the City of Monett’s compliance with those requirements. 

In our opinion, the City of Monett, Missouri, compIied, in a11 material respects, with the requirements referred 
to above that are applicable to each of its major federal programs for the year ended March 3 1 2009. 

Internal Control Over Compliance 

The management of the City of Monett, Missouri, is responsible for establishing and maintaining effective 
internal control over compliance with the requirements of laws, regulations, contracts, and grants applicable to 
federal programs. In planning and performing our audit, we considered the City of Monett, Missouri’s internal 
control over compliance with the requirements that could have a direct and material effect on a major federal 
program in order to determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing our opinion on compliance, 
but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on .the effectiveness of internal control over compliance. 



Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the City of Monett’s internal control over 
compliance. 

A control deficiency in an entity’s internal control over compliance exists when the design or operation of a 
control docs not allow management or employees, in the norma1 course of pkrf‘orming their assigned functions, 
to prevent or detect noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal program on a timely 
basis. A significant decficiency is a control deficiency, or combination of control deficiencies, that adversely 
affects the entity’s ability to administer a federal program such that there is more than a remote likelihood that 
noncompliance with a type of comdiance requirement of a federal program that is more than inconsequential 
will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. 

A material weakness is a significant deficiency, or combination of significant deficiencies, that results in more 
than a remote likelihood that material noncompliance with a type of compliance requirement of a federal 
program will not be prevented or detected by the entity’s internal control. 

Our consideration of internal control over compliance was for the limited purpose described in the first 
paragraph of this section and would not necessarily identify a11 deficiencies in internal control that might be 
significant deficiencies or material weaknesses. We did not identify any deficiencies in internal control-over 
compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses, as defined above. 

This report is intended solely for the information and use of management, City Council, others within the entity, 
and federal awarding agencies and pass-through entities and is not intended to be and should not be used by 
anyone other than these specified parties. 

I 

Monett, Missouri 
September 21,2009 . .  



CITY OF MONETT, MISSOURI 
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS AND QUESTIONED COST 
MARCH 31,2009 

Section I - Summary of Auditors’ Results 

I .  Unqualified . 
Financial Statements 
Type of auditors’ report issued: 
-Internal w‘ntrol over financial reporting: 

Material weakness(es) identified? - - Yes X No 
Reportable condition(s) identified 

not considered to be material weaknesses? - Yes X No 

’ 

Noncompliance material to financial statements noted? - Yes X No 

Federal Awards . 

Internal Control over major programs: 

Reportable condition(s) identified 
Yes X No 

Yes X- No 

Material weakness(es) identified? CI 

- not considered to be material weaknesses? - 
Type of auditors’ report issued on compliance 

a ~ for majorprogram: Unqualified 
I -_ 

Any audit findings disclosed that are required 
to be reported in accordance with 
Circular A-133, Section .510(a)? - Yes X No 

’ 

1 

I. 

Identikcation of maior promami 
I 

CFDA Numbeds) Name of Federal Promam or Cluster 
20.205 . Department of Transportation 

Dollar threshold used to distinguish between 
Type A and Type B programs: $ 300.000.00 

. X Yes - NO Auditee qualified as low-risk auditee? 
__L 

Section II - Financial Findings 
No matters were noted. J 

Section Dl - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs 
No matters were noted. 

See accompanying notes to the financial statements. 
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Transportation Enhancement Funds passed 
Through the Missouri Eighway md 
Transportation Commission 20.205 . J7P0786 $ 1,768,527 , ,  

Federal Aviation Agency passed 
Through the Missouri Highway and 
?'msijo&un Commission 20.106. AER 015iO45-BE13 3 5 5 p  

, .  

Law. Enforcement Assistance Funds passed 
Through the Missouri &&way and 
Transporktion Commission 20.600 LKJCD47 and 033 

. Law Enforcement Equipment Funds passed 
. Thro~gh the hfissouri Hi&way and 

Tmspo~.t&On Comu?issjon OMB-1121-0 5,009 

.. .. . . 
Tot&~ep?.rtment of Transpoitation $ 2,131,506' : 

!3 310,CcIS 
7,815,00r3 

f 8,125,OOO 

S 10.256.508 

NOTES TO SCREDULE OF EXPENDITURES-OF FEDERAL AW-43izDS . .  , . _  . .. . .  

- N O T E  A - SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIF,S 
Thc ~cccmpanying schedule of cxpenditures of feded awards is a summiary o€&e ztctivity of 
the City's federal award propuns presented oa the modified accmd basis cf acci7untktg in accorckit~e 
with generally accepted accounting principles. 

. '  : . . I . , .  

. .  
- 2  . - 

See accompanying notes to the fi~ancial statements. 
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UNAUDITED SIX MONTH REVIEW FOR THE PERIOD APRIL 1,2009 
THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30,2009 



CITY OF MONETT 

APRIL I,  2009 THROUGH SEPTEMBER 30,2009 
ALL FUYDS- REVENUE AND EXPENDITURESlEXPENSE SUMMARY 

Revenues 
Expenditures/Expenses 

Revenues Over (Under) Expenditures 

GENERAL 
FUND 

$ 5,525,386.57 
5,952,710.28 

$ (427,323.71) 

Other Financing Sources Uses: 
Financing 
Transfers 

Revenues and Other Sources Over (Under) Expenditures 
And Other Uses $ 427,323.71 

Indebtedness of City as of Sentember 30,2009 
Airport - 2004A 
Golf Course - 2004A 
Golf Carts (24) 
Golf Carts (2) 
Police Cars (3) 
Police Station Equipment 
Country Club Project ( Sewer) 
Valley View Project ( Street) 
Police Station 
Sewer - 1992A 
Sewer - 2003B 
TIF 1 - Series 2007 
TIF 1 - Series 2008 
TIF 2 1 Series 2005A & 2005B 
Water Tower 

100,000.00 
300,000.00 

55,907.90 
9,152.8s 

56,708.29 
659,973.51 
320,000.00 

95,090.58 
2,355,000.00 

255,000.00 
7,s 15,000.00 

3,000,000.00 
3,665,000.00 

24,6 12,000.18 

5 3  10,000.00 

415,i67.02 

ENTERPRISE TOTAL 
FUND (MEMO ONLY) 

$ 11,469,061.17 $ 16,994,447.74 
10,636,273.44 16,588,983.72 

$ 832,787.73 $ 405,464.02 

$ 832,787.73 $ (405,464.02) 



APPENDIX C 

BOOK-ENTRY ONLY SYSTEM 

The following information concerning DTC and DTC’s Book-Entry Only System has been obtained 
f r o m  sources that the City believes to be reliable, but is not guaranteed as to accuracy or completeness by 
and is not to be construed as a representation by the City, the Trustee or  the Underwriter. The City, the 
Trustee and the Underwriter make no assurances that DTC, Direct Participants, Indirect Participants or 
o ther  nominees of the Beneficial Owners will act in accordance with the procedures described above or in a 
timely manner. 

General. Ownership interests in the Certificates will be available to  purchasers only through a book- 
en t ry  only system (the “Book-Entry Only System”) maintained by The Depository Trust Company (“DTC”), 
N e w  York, New York. DTC will act as securities depository for the Certificates. Initially, the Certificates will 
be i ssued  as fully-registered securities, registered in the name of  Cede & Co. (DTC’S partnership nominee) or 
s u c h  other name as may be requested by an authorized representative of DTC. One fully-registered Bond 
certificate will be issued for each maturity of the Certificates, each in the aggregate principal amount of such 
maturity, and will be deposited with DTC. The following discussion will not apply to any Certificates issued 
in certificate form due to the discontinuance of the DTC Book-Entry Only System, as described below. 

DTC and its Participants. DTC is a limited-purpose trust company organized under the New York 
Banking Law, a “banking organization” within the meaning of the New York Banking Law, a member of the 
Federal  Reserve System, a “clearing corporation” within the meaning of the New York Uniform Commercial 
Code ,  and a “clearing agency” registered pursuant to the provisions of Section 17A of the Securities Exchange 
Act of 1934. DTC holds and provides asset servicing for over 2.2 million issues of U.S. and non-U.S. equity, 
corporate and municipal debt issues, and money market instruments from over 100 countries that DTC’s 
participants (“Direct Participants”) deposit with DTC. DTC also facilitates the post-trade settlement among 
Direct Participants of sales and other securities transactions in deposited securities through electronic 
computerized book-entry transfers and pledges between Direct Participants’ accounts. This eliminates the 
n e e d  for physical movement of securities certificates. Direct Participants include both U.S. and non-U.S. 
securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, clearing corporations, and certain other organizations. 
D T C  is a wholly-owned subsidiary of The Depository Trust & Clearing Corporation (“DTCC”). DTCC, in 
turn, is owned by a number of Direct Participants of DTC and Members of the National SecGrities Clearing 
Corporation, Fixed Income Clearing Corporation, and Emerging Markets Clearing Corporation (NSCC, FICC, 
and  EMCC, also subsidiaries of DTCC), as well as by the New York Stock Exchange, Inc., the American 
S tock  Exchange LLC, and the National Association of Securities Dealers, Inc. Access to the DTC system is 
a lso  available to others such as both U.S. and non-U.S. securities brokers and dealers, banks, trust companies, 
and  clearing corporations that clear through or maintain a custodial relationship with a Direct Participant, 
e i ther  directly or indirectly (“Indirect Participants”). DTC has Standard & Poor’s highest rating: AAA. The 
D T C  Rules applicable to its Participants are on file with the Securities and Exchange Commission. More 
information about DTC can be found at www.dtcc.com and wuw.dtc.org. 

Purchase of Ownership Interests. Purchases of the Certificates under the DTC system must be made 
by or through Direct Participants, which will receive a credit for the Certificates on DTC’s records. The 
ownership interest of each actual purchaser of each Bond (the “Beneficial Owner”) is, in turn, to be recorded 
on the Direct and Indirect Participants’ records. Beneficial Owners will not receive written confirmation from 
D T C  of  their purchase. Beneficial Owners are, however, expected to receive written confirmations providing 
details  of the transaction, as well as periodic statements of  their holdings, from the Direct or Indirect 
Participant through which the Beneficial Owner entered into the transaction. Transfers of ownership interests 
in the Certificates are to be accomplished by entries made on the books of Direct and Indirect Participants 
ac t ing  on behalf of Beneficial Owners. Beneficial Owners will not receive certificates representing their 
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ownership interest in the.Certificates, except in the event that use of the book-entry system for the Certificates 
is discontinued. 

Transfers. To facilitate subsequent transfers, all Certificates deposited by Participants with DTC are 
registered in the name of DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co., or such other name as may be requested by 
an authorized representative of DTC. The deposit of the Certificates with DTC and their registration in the 
name of Cede & Co. effect no change in beneficial ownership. DTC has no knowledge of the actual Beneficial 
Owners of the Certificates. DTC’s records reflect only the identity of the Direct Participants to whose 
accounts such Certificates gre credited, which may or may not be the Beneficial Owners. The Direct and 
Indirect Participants will remain responsible for keeping account of their holdings on behalf of their customers. 

- 

Notices. Conveyance of notices and other communications by DTC to Direct Participants, by Direct 
Participants to Indirect Participants, and by Direct Participants and Indirect Participants to Beneficial Owners 
will be governed by arrangements among them, subject to any statutory or regulatory requirements as may be 
in effect fiom time to time. Beneficial Owners of the Certificates may wish to take certain steps to augment 
the transmission to them of notices of significant events with respect to the Certificates, such as prepayments, 
tenders, defaults, and proposed amendments to the Lease or the Declaration of Trust. For example, Beneficial 
Owners of Certificates may wish to ascertain that the nominee holding the Certificates for their benefit has 
agreed to obtain and transmit notices to Beneficial Owners. In the alternative, Beneficial Owners may wish to 
provide their names and addresses to the Trustee and request that copies of notices be provided directly to 
them. 

Prepayment notices shall be sent to DTC. If less than all of the Certificates are being redeemed, 
DTC’s practice is to determine by lot the amount of the interest of each Direct Participant in such issue to be 
redeemed. 

Voting. Neither DTC nor Cede & Co. (nor any other DTC nominee) will consent or vote with respect 
to the Certificates unless authorized by a Direct Participant in accordance with DTC’s Procedures. Under its 
usual procedures, DTC mails an Omnibus Proxy to the issuer of bonds as soon as possible after the record 
date. The Omnibus Proxy assigns Cede & Co.’s consenting or voting rights to those Direct Participants to 
whose accounts the Certificates are credited on the record date (identified in a listing attached to the Omnibus 
Proxy). 

Payments of Principal and Interest. Payments of principal of or prepayment price and interest on the 
Certificates will be made to Cede & Co., or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC. DTC’s practice is to credit Direct Participants’ accounts upon DTC’s receipt of funds 
and corresponding detail, information from the City or the Trustee, on payable date in accordance with their 
respective holdings shown on DTC’s .records. Payments by Participants to Beneficial Owners will be 
governed by standing instructions and customary practices, as is the case with securities held for the accounts 
of customers in bearer form or registered in “street name,” and will be the responsibility of such Participant 
and not of DTC, its nominee, the Trustee or the City, subject to any statutory and regulatory requirements as 
may be in effect from time to time. Payment of principal of or prepayment price and interest on the 
Certificates to Cede & Co. (or such other nominee as may be requested by an authorized representative of 
DTC) is the responsibility of the City or the Trustee. Disbursement of such payments to Direct Participants is 
the responsibility of DTC, and disbursement of such payments to the Beneficial Owners is the responsibility of 
Direct and Indirect Participants. 

Discontinuation of Book-Entry Only System. DTC may discontinue providing its services as 
securities depository with respect to the Certificates at any time by giving reasonable notice to the City or the 
Trustee. Under such circumstances, in the event that a successor- securities depository is not obtained, Bond 
certificates are required to be printed and delivered as described in the Declaration of Trust. , 
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The City may decide to discontinue use of the system of book-entry-only transfers through DTC (or a 
successor securities depository). In that event, Bond certificates will be printed, registered in the name of 
DTC’s partnership nominee, Cede & Co. (or such other name as may be requested by an authorized 
representative of DTC), and delivered to DTC (or a successor securities depository), to be held by it as 
securities depository for Direct Participants. If, however, the system of book-entry-only transfers has been 
discontinued and a Direct Participant has elected to withdraw its Certificates from DTC (or such successor 
securities depository), certificates may be delivered to Beneficial Owners in the manner described in the 
Declaration of Trust. ’ 

None of the Underwriter, the Trustee nor the City will have any responsibility or obligations to any 
Direct Participants or Indirect Participants or thepersons for whom they act with respect to (i) the accuracy 
of any records maintained by DTC or any such Direct Participant or Indirect Participant; (ii) the payment 
by any Participant of any amount due to any Beneficial Owner in respect of the principal or prepayment 
price or interest on the Certificates; (iii) the delivery by any such Direct Participant or Indirect Participant 
of any notice to any Beneficial Owner that is required or permitted under the terms of the Declaration of 
Trust to be given to owners of the CertiJicates; (iv) the selection of the Beneficial Owners to receivepayment 
in the  event of any partial prepayment of the Certificates; or (v) any consent given or other action taken by 
DTC as Bondholder. 



APPENDIX D 

DEFINITIONS AND SUMMARIES OF CERTAIN PRINCIPAL DOCUMENTS 

The summaries of the Declaration of Trust and the Lease contained in this Appendix D do not purport to 
be comprehensive or definitive and are qualified in their entirety by  reference to such documents, copies of which 
may be viewed at the office of the Trustee, or will be provided by the Trustee to any prospective purchaser 
requesting the same, upon payment by such prospective purchaser of the cost of complying with such request. 

Definitions 

The definitions of certain words and terms used in this Official Statement are set forth below: 

“Acceptance Certificate” means the certificate of the City given in accordance with the Lease. 

“Acquisition Fund” means the fund by that name established pursuant to  the Declaration of Trust. 

“Authorized Representative” means the Mayor of the City, or any such other person at the time 
designated to act on behalf of the City as an Authorized Representative, such designation being approved by 
the governing body of the City. 

“Available Revenues” means, for any Fiscal Year, any balances of the City from previous Fiscal 
Years encumbered to pay Rent, amounts budgeted or appropriated by the City for such Fiscal Year plus any 
unencumbered balances of the City fiom previous Fiscal Years that are legally available to pay Rent during 
such Fiscal Year, plus all moneys and investments, including earnings thereon, held by the Trustee pursuant to 
the Declaration of Trust. 

“Basic Rent” means the Basic Rent Payments comprised of a Principal Portion and an Interest 
Portion as set forth in the Lease. 

“Basic Rent Payment” means a payment of Basic Rent. 

“Basic Rent Payment Date” means each January 1 and July 1 during the Lease Term, commencing 
on January 1,2011. 

“Certificate Payment” means the payments to be made to the Owners of the Certificates, whether 
representing Interest Portion only or Principal Portion and Interest Portion of Basic Rent under the Lease. 

“Code” means the Internal Revenue Code of 1986, as amended, and the regulations promulgated 
thereunder. 

“Completion Date” means the date of completion of the acquisition and installation of the Project as 
that date shall be certified as provided in the Lease. 

“Continuing Disclosure Undertaking” means the Continuing Disclosure Undertaking fiom the City, 
and dated as of the date of issuance and delivery of the Certificates, as it may be amended from time to time in 
accordance with the terms thereof. 

“Costs of Issuance” means all items of expense directly or indirectly payable by or reimbursable to 
the City and related to the authorization, execution, sale and delivery of the Certificates, including advertising 
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and printing costs, costs of preparation and reproduction of documents, filing fees, initial fees and charges of 
the Trustee, legal fees of parties to the transaction and all other initial fees and disbursements contemplated by 
the Lease and the Declaration of Trust. 

“Costs of the Project” means all reasonable or necessary expenses related or incidental to the 
acquisition and installation of the Project, including the expenses of studies, architectural and engineering 
services, legal and other special services and all other necessary and incidental expenses. Costs of the Project 
shall include Costs of Issuance. 

((Debt Service Reserve Fund” means the Debt Service Reserve Fund so designated and established 
pursuant to the Declaration of Trust. 

“Debt Service Reserve Requirement” means the amount of $220,000. 

“Directive” means an instrument in.writing executed in one or more counterparts by (a) the City, or 
(b) the Owners of Certificates, as determined from the records of the Trustee kept pursuant to the Declaration 
of Trust, or their lawful attorneys-in-fact, representing no less than a majority of the aggregate unpaid Principal 
Portion represented by the then Outstanding Certificates. 

“Event of Default” means an Event of Default as described in the Declaration of Trust. 

“Event of Lease Default” means an Event of Default as described in the Lease. 

“Event of Nonappropriation” means an Event of Nonappropriation a s  described in the Lease. 

“Fiscal Year” means the fiscal year of the City, currently the twelve-month period beginning April 1. 
and ending on March 3 1. 

“Funds” means, collectively, the Acquisition Fund, the Lease Revenue Fund, the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund and the Rebate Fund. 

“Government Obligations” means (a) direct noncallable obligations of the United States of America 
and obligations the timely payment of principal and interest on which is fully and unconditionally guaranteed 
by the United States of America, and (b) trust receipts or certificates evidencing participation or other direct 
ownership interests in principal or interest payments to be made upon obligations described in clause (a) above 
that are held in a custody or trust account free and clear of ali claims i f  persons other than the holders of such 
trust receipts or certificates, and (c) obligations which are noncallable or for which the call date has been 
irrevocably determined having an investment rating in the highest rating category of either Moody’s or S&P as 
a result of the advance refunding of such obligations by the deposit of direct noncallable obligations of the 
United States of America in a trust or escrow account segregated and exclusively set aside for the payment of 
such obligations and which mature as to principal and interest in such amounts and at such times as will insure 
the availability of sufficient moneys to timely pay such principal and interest. 

“Interest Portion” means the portion of each Basic Rent Payment that represents the payment of 
interest as set forth in the Lease. 

“Interest Subsidy Payments” means, with respect to any Certificates that constitute “qualified 
bonds” under Section 6431 of the Internal Revenue Code, the payments received by or on behalf of the City 
from the U.S. Treasury, equal to a portion of each interest payment on such Certificates in accordance with 
said Section 643 1. 
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“Investment Securities” means and includes any of the securities described in the Declaration of 
Trust, if and to the extent the same are permitted by law for the City. 

“Leased Property” means the personal property that has been leased from the Trustee to  the City 
pursuant to the Lease. 

“Lease Revenues” means the Basic Rent Payments, Supplemental Rent Payments and all other 
amounts due and owing pursuant to or with respect to the Lease, including prepayments, insurance proceeds, 
condemnation proceeds, and any and all interest, profits or other income derived from the investment thereof 
in any fund or account established pursuant to the Declaration of Trust. 

“Lease Revenue Fund” means the fund by that name established pursuant to the Declaration of Trust. 

“Net Proceeds” means the amount remaining from the gross proceeds of any insurance claim, 
condemnation award or sale under threat of condemnation after deducting all reasonable expenses, including 
attorneys’ fees, incurred in the collection thereof. 

“Notice by Mail” or “Notice” of any action or condition “by Mail” means a written notice meeting 
the requirements of the Declaration of Trust mailed by first-class mail to the Owners of specified Certificates, 
at the addresses shown on the registration books maintained by the Registrar. 

.“Ordinance” means the ordinance of the Board of Commissioners adopted on June 21, 2010, 
approving the delivery of the Certificates. 

“Original Term” means the period from the date of the initial delivery of the Certificates until the end 
of the Fiscal Year then in effect. 

“Outstanding” means, as of the date of determination, all Certificates theretofore executed and 
delivered pursuant to the Declaration of Trust except (i) Certificates theretofore cancelled by the Trustee or 
surrendered to the Trustee for cancellation, (ii) Certificates for the transfer or exchange of or in lieu of or in 
substitution for which other Certificates shall have been executed and delivered by the Trustee pursuant to the 
Declaration of Trust, (iii) Certificates whose payment or prepayment has been provided for in accordance with 
the Declaration of Trust, and (iv) Certificates paid or deemed to be paid pursuant to the Declaration of Trust. 

“Owner” or “Registered Owner” of a Certificate means the registered owner of such Certificate as 
shown on the register kept by the Registrar. 

“Prepayment Price” means, with respect to any Certificate (or portion thereof) the amount specified 
in the Declaration of Trust. 

“Principal Portion” means the principal portion of the Basic Rent Payments as set forth in the Lease. 

“Proceeds” means the aggregate moneys initially paid to the Trustee for the certificates. 

“Project” means the improvements to the water portion of the City’s combined waterworks and 
sewerage system, including primarily the installation of water lines paid for with the proceeds of the 
Certificates as described on Schedule 1 to the Lease. 

“Purchase Price” means the amount designated as such in the Lease that the City shall pay to the 
Trustee to purchase the Trustee’s interest in the Leased Property. 

“Rebate Fund” means the fund by that name established pursuant to Section 6.01 
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“Record Date” means the fifteenth day of  the month prior to the applicable Basic Rent Payment Date. 

“Registrar” means the Trustee when acting in that capacity, or its successor as  Regis& 

“Renewal Term” means each renewal term of the Lease, each having a duration of one year’and a 
term coextensive with the then current Fiscal Year as provided in the Lease, except that the last possible 
Renewal Term shall end on July 1,2035. 

“Rent” means, collectively, Basic Rent and Supplemental Rent. 

“Rent Payment” means a payment of Rent. 

“Special Counsel” means Gilmore & Bell, P.C., or any other attorney or fm of attorneys of 
nationally recognized standing in maiters pertaining to the federal tax exemption of interest on bonds or other 
obligations issued by states and political subdivisions. 

“State” means the State of Missouri. 

“Supplemental Declaration of Trust” means any amendment or supplement to the Declaration of 
Trust. 

“Supplemental Lease” means any amendment or supplement to the Lease entered pursuant to the 
Lease. 

“Supplemental Rent” means all amounts due under the Lease other than Basic Rent. 

“Supplemental Rent Payment” means a payment of Supplemental Rent. 

“Tax Compliance Agreement” means the Tax Compliance Agreement dated as of June 1, 2010, 
between the Trustee and the City, as amended- and supplemented from time to time in accordance with its 
terms. 

“Trust Estate” means the assets, property and interests held by the Trustee pursuant to the 
Declaration of Trust and the Lease. 

SUMMARY OF THE DECLARATION OF TRUST 

General Provisions 

The Declaration of Trust is entered by and between the Trustee and the City. The Declaration of Trust 
authorizes the Trustee to execute and deliver the Certificates, provides the terms of the Certificates and 
provides for various Funds related to the Leased Property and the Lease. 

Trust  Estate 

Under the Declaration of Trust, the Trustee holds all of the assets, property and interests received b y  it 
under the terms of the Declaration of Trust and the Lease and all agreements and instruments contemplated 
thereby (except for the Rebate Fund any compensation, indemnification or other amounts which may be due 
directly to the Trustee thereunder) (collectively, the ‘‘Trust Estate”), as trustee, upon the terms and trusts set 
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I .  

forth under the Declaration of Trust for the equal and proportionate benefit, security and protection of all 
present and future Owners of the Certificates. 

Establishment of Funds 

The following funds and accounts (altogether, referred to as the “Funds”) are established under the 
Declaration of Trust: 

(a) Acquisition Fund. 
(b) Lease Revenue Fund. 
(c) Debt Service Reserve Fund. 
(d) Rebate Fund. 

Application of Lease Revenues 

Lease Revenues shall be deposited, as received pursuant to the Lease, as follows: 

(a) The Basic Rent shall be deposited to the Lease Revenue Fund. 

(b) Optional and mandatory prepayments of the Principal Portion of Basic Rent (in 
amounts equal to the applicable Prepayment Price) shall be deposited to the Lease Revenue Fund. 

(c) Payments of Supplemental Rent pursuant to  the Lease shall be applied as provided in 
. 

the Lease. 

Undesignated payments of Rent which are insufficient to discharge the full amount then due shall be 
applied first to the Interest Portion of Basic Rent, next to the Principal Portion of Basic Rent and finally to 
Supplemental Rent. 

Disbursements from the Acquisition Fund 

Payment shall be made from moneys in the Acquisition Fund upon receipt by the Trustee of a 
requisition certificate therefor signed by an Authorized Representative of the City. The Completion Date of the 
Project and the payment of all Costs of the Project (other than Costs of the Project for which sufficient 
amounts are retained in the Acquisition Fund) shall be evidenced by the filing with the Trustee of the 
Acceptance Certificate pursuant to the Lease. As soon as practicable any balance remaining in the Acquisition 
Fund shall be transferred and deposited without further authorization as provided in the Lease, In the event of 
the acceleration of all of the Certificates pursuant to the Lease, any moneys then remaining in the Acquisition 
Fund shall be transferred and deposited to the credit of the Lease Revenue Fund and shall be used to pay the 
Interest Portion and Principal Portion of Basic Rent. 

Application of Moneys in the Lease Revenue Fund 

Except as otherwise provided in the Declaration of Trust, all amounts in the Lease Revenue Fund shall 
be used and withdrawn by the Trustee solely to pay Basic Rent represented by the Certificates when due and 
payable (including principal and accrued interest with respect to any Certificates paid prior to maturity 
pursuant to the Declaration of Trust). 
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Debt Service Debt Service Reserve Fund 

Except as otherwise provided in the Declaration of Trust, money in the Debt Service Reserve Fund 
will be used solely to make up any deficiencies in the Lease Revenue Fund. Moneys in the Debt Service 
Reserve Fund will also be used to pay the last Certificates becoming due unless such Certificates have been 
otherwise paid. If the money in the Lease Revenue Fund is insufficient to pay the Principal Portion and the 
Interest Portion of Basic Rent as the same become due, the Trustee will without further authorization transfer 
any .funds available to make Basic Rent Payments or deposits to the Lease Revenue Fund to make such 
payments. Money in the Debt Service Reserve Fund will be used to make all or part of the final Basic Rent 
Payment. 

The investments in the Debt Service Reserve Fund will be valued annually on March 1. If at any time 
the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Fund exceeds the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, such excess will 
be transferred to the Acquisition Fund until the Completion Date and to the Lease Revenue Fund thereafter. If 
at any time the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Fund is less than the Debt Service Reserve Requirement as a 
result of a withdrawal or a decrease in value, the City will replenish the Debt Service Reserve Fund at the time 
and in the manner set forth in the Lease. 

. RebateFund 

Moneys will be deposited in and disbursed ftom the Rebate Fund in accordance with written instructions 
from the City to the Trustee prepared in accordance with the provisions of the Tax Compliance Agreement. 

Investment of Moneys in Various Funds 

Moneys held in the Funds shall, subject to the requirements of the Tax Compliance Agreement and as 
provided in the Declaration of Trust, be invested and reinvested by the Trustee, pursuant to written direction of 
the City, signed by an Authorized Representative of the City, in Investment Securities that mature or are 
subject to redemption by the holder prior to the date such funds will be needed. In the absence of such 
instructions, the Trustee is authorized to invest moneys in Investment Securities described in subparagraph (9 
of the definition of Investment Securities 

The Trustee shall sell and reduce to cash a sufficient amount of such Investment Securities held by the 
Trustee in any Fund hereunder whenever the cash balance in such Fund is insufficient for the purpose of such 
Fund. Any such Investment Securities shall be held by or under the control of the Trustee and shall be deemed 
at all times a part of the Fund in which such moneys are originally held, and the interest accruing thereon and 
any profit realized from such Investment Securities shall be credited to such Fund, and any loss resulting from 
such Investment Securities shall be charged to such Fund; provided, that, if at any time the amount in the Debt 
Service Reserve Fund exceeds the Debt Service Reserve Requirement, such excess will be transferred as 
provided under the provisions of the Declaration of Trust to the Debt Service Reserve Fund. 

Amendments to the Declaration of Trust or the Lease 

The Declaration of Trust, the Lease and the rights and obligations of the City and of the Owners of the 
Certificates and of the Trustee may be modified or amended from time to time and at any  time by an 
amendment or supplement hereto or thereto which the parties hereto or thereto may enter into when the written 
consent of the Trustee and the City, if not a party hereto or thereto, and the Owners of a majority in aggregate 
Principal Portion of Basic Rent Payments represented by the Certificates then Outstanding shall have been 
fded with the Trustee. No such modification or amendment shall (i) extend the stated maturity of any 
Certificate, or  reduce the amount of principal represented thereby, or extend the time of payment or reduce the 
amount of any Prepayment Price provided in the Declaration of Trust for the payment of any Certificate, or 
reduce the rate of interest with respect thereto, or extend the time of payment of interest with respect thereto 
without the consent of the Owner of each Certificate so affected, (ii) reduce the aforesaid percentage of 
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Certificates the consent of the Owners of which is required to effect any such modification or amendment or 
permit the creation of any lien on the moneys in the Acquisition Fund, the Debt Service Reserve Fund and the 
Lease Revenue Fund or deprive the Owners of the trust created by the Declaration of Trust with respect to the 
moneys in the Acquisition Fund, the Debt Service Reserve or the Lease Revenue Fund or (iii) create a 
preference or priority of any Certificate or Certificates over any other Certificate or Certificates without the 
consent of the Owners of all of the Certificates then Outstanding. 

Notwithstanding the foregoing paragraph, the Declaration of Trust, the Lease and the rights and 
obligations of the City, of the Trustee and of the Owners of the Certificates may also be modified or amended 
from time to time and at any time by an agreement which the parties thereto may enter into without the consent 
of any Certificate Owners, only to the extent permitted by law and only for any one or more of the following 
purposes: (i) to add to the covenants and agreements of the Trustee in the Declaration of Trust, other covenants 
and agreements thereafter to be observed, to pledge or assign additional security for the Certificates (or any 
portion thereof), or to surrender any right or power reserved under the Declaration of Trust to or conferred 
upon the City; provided, however, that no such covenant, agreement, pledge, assignment or surrender shall, in 
the sole judgment of the Trustee, materially adversely affect the interests of the Trustee or the security of the 
Owners of the Certificates; (ii) to add to the covenants and agreements of the City in the Lease, other 
covenants and agreements thereafter to be observed or to surrender any right or power therein reserved to or 
conferred upon the Trustee or the City; provided, however, that no such covenant, agreement or surrender 
shall, in the sole judgment of the Trustee, materially adversely affect the security of the Owners of  the 
Certificates; (iii) to make such provisions for the purpose of curing any ambiguity, inconsistency or omission, 
or of curing or correcting any defective provision, contained in the Declaration of Trust, the Lease, or in regard 
to matters or questions arising under the Declaration of Trust, the Lease as the Trustee and the City may deem 
necessary or desirable and not inconsistent with said agreements, or  as may be requested by the City or the 
Trustee and which shall not, in any such case, in the sole judgment of the Trustee, materially adversely affect 
the security of the Owners of the Certificates; (iv) to modify, amend or supplement the Declaration of Trust in 
such manner as to permit the qualification thereof under the Trust Indenture Act of 1939, as amended, or any 
similar federal statute in effect, and to add such other terms, conditions and provisions as may be permitted by 
said act or similar federal statute, and which shall not, in the sole judgment of the Trustee, materially adversely 
affect the security of the Owners of the Certificates; (v) to provide for any additional procedures, covenants or 
agreements necessary to maintain the federal tax status of the Certificates Outstanding and the right, if any, of 
the City to receive Interest Subsidy Payments with respect thereto; (vi) to provide for any additional or revised 
procedures, covenants or agreements with respect to the procedure for collection of any Interest Subsidy 
Payments to which the City may be entitled in connection with any series of Certificates (including but not 
limited to modifications to the duties of the City and the Trustee set forth in the Declaration of Trust), or (vii) 
to make any other change that, in the sole judgment of the Trustee, does not have a materially adverse effect on 
the security of the Certificate Owners. 

Defaults 

’ The occurrence of any of the following events, subject to the provisions of the Declaration of Trust, is 
hereby defined as an “Event of Default”: 

(a) Default in the due and punctual payment of any Interest Portion of Basic Rent 
represented by a Certificate; or 

(b) Default in the due and punctual payment of the Principal Portion of Basic Rent 
represented by a Certificate, whether at the stated payment date thereof or the prepayment date set 
therefor in accordance with the terms o f  the Declaration of Trust; or 

(c) Any Event of Lease Default. 
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Acceleration 

Upon the occurrence of an Event of Default, the Trustee may, and upon receipt of a Directive shall, by 
notice in writing delivered to. the City, declare the Principal Portion and Interest Portion of Basic Rent 
represented by all Certificates Outstanding to the end of the then current Fiscal Year immediately due and 
payable. 

Other Remedies Upon an Event of Default. 

Upon the occurrence of & Event of Lease Default or an Event of Nonappropriation, the Trustee may 
exercise any remedies available under the Lease and, to the extent consistent therewith, may sell, lease or 
manage all or any portion of the Leased Property and apply the net proceeds thereof in accordance with the 
Declaration of Trust and, whether or not it has done so, may pursue any other remedy available to it under the 
Lease or at law or in equity. 

No remedy by the terms of the Declaration of Trust conferred upon or reserved to the Trustee or to the 
Certificate Owners is intended to be exclusive of any other remedy, but each and every such remedy shall be 
cumulative and shall be in addition to any other remedy given to the Trustee or to the Certificate Owners 
thereunder or now or hereafter existing at law or in equity or by statute. 

Rights of Certificate Owners 

If an Event of Default or an Event of Nonapproprigtion shall have occurred and be continuing and if 
instructed to do so by a Directive and if indemnified as provided in the Declaration of Trust, the Trustee shall 
be obligated to exercise such one or more of the rights and the remedies conferred thereunder as the Trustee, 
upon the advice of counsel, shall deem to be in the interests of the Certificate Owners. 

Any other provision in the Declaration of Trust to the contrary notwithstanding, the Owners of not less 
than a majority in aggregate principal amount of Certificates then Outstanding shall have the right, at any time, 
by an  instrument or instruments in writing executed and delivered to the Trustee, to direct the time, method and 
place of conducting all proceedings to be taken in connection with the enforcement of the Declaration of Trust, 
or for the appointment of a receiver or any other proceedings thereunder; provided that such direction shall not 
be otherwise than in accordance with the provisions of law and of the Declaration of Trust, and provided, 
further, that the Trustee shall have the right to decline to follow any such direction if the Trustee in good faith 
shall determine that the proceeding so directed would involve it in personal liability. 

Defeasance 

.When (i) the obligations of the City under the Lease shall have been satisfied in connection with the' 
exercise by the City of its option to purchase the Leased Property in accordance with the Lease by the 
irrevocable deposit in escrow of cash or Government Obligations (maturing as to principal and interest in such 
amounts .and at such times as are necessary to make any required payments without reinvestment of any 
earnings thereon) or both cash and such Government Obligations, and (ii) the City shall have delivered to the 
Trustee, (x) an opinion of counsel to the effect that the conditions for such discharge contained in the 
Declaration of.Trust have been satisfied or irrevocably provided for and (y) for an advance refunding, an 
accountant's certificate verifymg the sufficiency of cash or Government Obligations or both so deposited for 
the payment of the Principal Portion and Interest Portion of the Certificates and any applicable Prepayment 
Price to be paid with respect to the Certificates and (iii) the City shall have deposited sufficient moneys to pay 
the fees, charges and expenses of the Trustee (or has made provision satisfactory to the Trustee for their 
payment), thereupon the obligations created by the Declaration of Trust shall cease, determine and become 
void except for the right of the Certificate Owners and the obligation of the Trustee to apply such moneys and 
Government Obligations to the payment of the Certificates as set forth in the Declaration of Trust. 
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After all amounts owing to the Certificate Owners have been paid under the Declaration of Trust and 
the Lease and all fees, expenses and charges of the Trustee have been paid, the Trustee shall turn over to the 
City any surplus in the Lease Revenue Fund and all balances remaining in any other funds or accounts other 
than moneys and Government Obligations held for the payment of the Certificates at maturity or on 
prepayment, which moneys and Government Obligations shall continue to be held by the Trustee in trust for 
the benefit of the Certificate Owners and shall be applied by the Trustee to the payment, when due, of the 

, Principal Portions and any premium and Interest Portions of Basic Rent represented by the Certificates. 

The Trustee 

The Trustee shall, prior to an Event of Default or Event of Nonappropriation, and after the curing o f  
all Events of Default or Events of Nonappropriation which may have occurred, perform such duties and only 
such duties as are specifically set forth in the Declaration of Trust. The Trustee shall, during the existence o f  
any Event of Default or Event of Nonappropriation, exercise such of the rights and powers vested in it by the 
Declaration of Trust, and use the same degree of care and-skill in their exercise, as a prudent person would 
exercise or use under the circumstances in the conduct of his own affairs. 

The Tkstee may be removed at any time by a Directive or shall resign at any time the Trustee shall 
cease to be eligible in accordance with subsection (e) of this Section, or shall become incapable of acting, o r  
shall be adjudged as bankrupt or insolvent, or a receiver of the Trustee or its property shall be appointed, or  
any public officer shall take control or charge of the property or affairs for the purpose of rehabilitation, 
conservation or liquidation, and thereupon a successor Trustee shall be appointed by a Directive. Written 
notice of  any removal or resignation pursuant to this subsection (b) shall be given by the Trustee to the City. 

The Trustee may at any time resign by giving written notice of such resignation to the City and by  
giving the Certificate Owners Notice by Mail of such resignation at the addresses listed o n  the registration 
books.kept by the Trustee. Upon receiving such notice of resignation, a successor Trustee shall be appointed b y  
a Directive. 

SUMMARY OF THE LEASE 

General 

The Lease has been entered into between the Trustee and the City and contains the terms and 
conditions under which the Leased Property will be leased to and used by the City. 

Lease Term 

The Original Term of the Lease shall terminate the last day of the current Fiscal Year. The Lease Term 
may be continued, solely at the option of the City, at the end of the Original Term or any Renewal Term for an 
additional one year, provided that the final Renewal Term shall not extend beyond July 1,2035. At the end of 
the Original Term and at the end of each Renewal Term, unless the City has terminated the Lease and for no 
other reason, the City shall be deemed to have exercised its option to continue the Lease for the next Renewal 
Term. The terms and conditions during any Renewal Term shall be the same as the terms and conditions 
during the Original Term, except for any difference in the Rent as provided in the Lease. 

Continuation of Lease Term by the City 

The City reasonably believes that legally available funds in an amount sufficient to make all payments 
of Rent during the Original Term and each of the Renewal Terms can be'obtained. The decision to budget and 
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appropriate funds or to extend the Lease for any Renewal Term is to be made in accordance with the City’s 
normal procedures for such decisions by the then current governing body of the City. 

Nonappropriation 

The City is obligated only to pay periodic payments under the Lease as may lawfully be made from 
Available Revenues. If an Event of Nonappropriation occurs, the Lease shall be deemed terminated at the end 
of t h e n  current Original Term or Renewal Term. An Event of Nonappropriation shall be deemed to have 
occurred if the City fails to budget, appropriate or otherwise provide for sufficient funds to pay Basic Rent and 
any reasonably anticipated. Supplemental Rent to come due during the immediately following Renewal Term. 
The City agrees to deliver notice to the Trustee of such termination at least 90 days prior to the end of then 
current Original Term or Renewal Term, but failure to give such notice shall not extend the term beyond such 
Original Term or Renewal Term. If the Lease is terminated in accordance with this section, the City agrees 
peaceably to transfer and surrender possession of the Leased Property to the Trustee. 

Payment for the Project 

Costs and expenses of every nature incurred in the acquisition and installation of the Project that 
qualify as Costs of the Project shall be paid by the Trustee from the Acquisition Fund upon receipt by the 
Trustee of a completed request of the City signed by the Authorized Representative of  the City (as defined in 
the- Declaration of Trust) and containing the statements, representations and certifications set forth in the form 
of s u c h  request attached to the Declaration of Trust. 

Completion Date; Excess Funds 

The Completion Date shall be evidenced to Trustee upon receipt by the Trustee of a certificate signed 
by t h e  Authorized Representative of the City (the “Acceptance Certificate”) stating (a) the date on which 
acquisition and installation of the Project was substantially completed, (b) the Project has been acquired and 
installed in accordance with the plans and specifications and in conformance with all applicable zoning, 
planning, building, environmental and other similar governmental regulations, (c) that, except for Costs of  the 
Project described’in accordance with clause (d), all Costs of the Project have been paid and (d) the amounts, if 
any, to be retained in the Acquisition Fund for the payment of Costs of the Project, if any, not yet due or Costs 

I of t h e  Project whose liability the City is contesting, and amounts that otherwise should be retained and the 
reasons they should be retained. -The Acceptance Certificate may state that it is given without prejudice to any 
r ights  of the City that then exist or may subsequently come into being against third parties. Any amounts 
remaining in the Acquisition Fund that are not needed to pay any remaining Costs of the Project shall without 
further authorization be transferred to the Lease Revenue Fund. 

Basic Rent 

The City shall promptly pay all Basic Rent in lawful money of the United States of America on each 
Bas i c  Rent Payment Date in such amounts as are described in the Lease. A portion of each Basic Rent 
Payment is paid as, and represents payment of, interest. To provide for the timely payment of Basic Rent, the 
C i t y  shall pay to the Trustee for deposit in the Lease Revenue Fund not less than five business days before 
e a c h  Basic Rent Payment Date, the amount due on such Basic Rent Payment Date. 

The City will, in accordance with the requirements of law .and its normal budgeting procedures, hlly 
budget  ‘and appropriate sufficient funds for the current Fiscal Year to make the Rent Payments scheduled to 
c o m e  due during the Original Term, and to meet its other obligations for the Original Term, and such funds will 
not b e  expended for other purposes. 

D-10 



Supplemental Rent 

The City shall pay as Supplemental Rent (a) all taxes and assessments (the “Impositions”) which may 
be lawfully taxed, charged, levied, assessed or imposed upon or against or be payable for or in respect of the 
Project; (b) all amounts required under the Lease and all other payments of whatever nature which the City has 
agreed to pay or assume under the Lease; (c) all expenses, including attorneys’ fees and expenses to the extent 
permitted by law, incurred in connection with the enforcement of any rights under the Lease by the Trustee; (d) 
all fees, charges and expenses of the Trustee as further provided in the Lease; (e) in the event that the amount 
in the Debt Service Reserve Fund is less than the Debt Service Reserve Requirement as a result of the 
withdrawal of moneys therein in order to make Basic Rent Payments, the amount of such deficiency to the 
Trustee for deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund on or before the first anniversary of the date of such 
withdrawal; (f) in the event the amount in the Debt Service Reserve Fund is less than the Debt Service Reserve 
Requirement as a result of a decrease in value as shown by the valuation required by the Declaration of Trust, 
the amount of such deficiency to the Trustee for deposit in the Debt Service Reserve Fund within 90 days of 
such valuation; and (8) any payments required to be made pursuant to the Tax Compliance Agreement. 

Rent Payments to Constitute a Current Expense and Limited Obligation of the City 

The obligation of the City to pay rent under the Lease is limited to  payment from Available Revenues 
and shall constitute a current expense of the City and shall not in any way be construed to be a debt of the City 
in contravention of any applicable constitutional or statutory limitation or requirement concerning the creation 
of indebtedness by the City, nor shall anythmg contained in the Lease constitute a pledge ’of the general tax 
revenues, funds or moneys of the City. 

Deficiency of Acquisition Fund 

If the Acquisition Fund shall be insufficient to pay fully all Costs of the Project and to complete fully 
the acquisition and installation of the Project lien free, the City shall pay, in cash, the full amount of any such 
deficiency by making payments directly to the contractors and to the suppliers of materials and services as the 
same shall become due. The Trustee is not obligated to pay and shall not be responsible for any such 
deficiency, and the City shall save the Trustee whole and harmless from any obligation to pay such deficiency. 

Contest of Impositions 

The City shall have the right, in its own name or in the Trustee’s name, to contest the validity or 
amount of any Imposition which the City is required to bear, pay and discharge pursuant to the terms of this 
Article by appropriate legal .proceedings instituted at least ten days before the Imposition complained of 
becomes delinquent and may permit the Imposition so contested to remain unpaid during the period of such 
contest and any appeal therefrom unless the Trustee shall notify the City that, in the opinion of counsel, by 
nonpayment of any such items the interest of the Trustee in the Leased Property will be endangered or the 
Leased Property or any part thereof will be subject to loss or forfeiture, in which event the City shall promptly 
pay such taxes, assessments or charges or provide the Trustee with full security against any loss which may 
result from nonpayment in form satisfactory to the Trustee. 

Insurance 

The City shall, during the Lease Term, cause the Leased Property to be kept continuously insured 
against such risks customarily insured against for facilities such as the Leased Property and shall pay (except 
as otherwise provided in the Lease), as the same become due, all premiums in respect thereof, such insurance 
to include the following policies of insurance: 
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(a) Insurance insuring the Leased Property against 1.0s or .damage by fire, 
lightning and all other risks covered by the extended coverage insurance endorsement then in 
use in the State in an amount not less than the replacement value of the Leased,Property and 
issued by such insurance company or companies authorized to do business in the State as may 
be selected by the City. The replacement value of the Leased Property may be determined 
from time to time at the request of the Trustee or the City (but not less frequently than every 
five years) by one of the insurers, to be selected, subject to the insurer’s approval, and paid by 
the City. The policy or policies of such insurance with shall name the City and the Trustee as 
insureds, as their respective interests. may appear. All proceeds from such policies of 
insurance with respect to the Leased Property shall be applied as provided in the Lease. 

(b) Comprehensive general accident and public liability insurance (includmg 
coverage for all losses whatsoever arising from the ownership, maintenance, operation or use 
of any automobile, truck or other motor vehicle), under which the City and the Trustee are 
named as insureds, in an amount not less than $1,000,000 combined single limit for bodily 
injuries and property damage. 

(c) Workers’ compensation and unemployment coverages to the extent, if -any, 
required.by the laws of the State. 

The City may elect to be self-insured for all or any part of the foregoing requirements of the 
Declaration of Trust if (i) the City annually obtains a written evaluation with respect to such self insurance 
program from an individual or fm selected by the City and acceptable to the Trustee qualified to syvey risks 
and to recommend insurance coverage for entities engaged in operations similar to those of the City and having 
a favorable reputation for skill and experience in making such surveys and recommendations (an “Insurance 
Consultant”), (ii) the.evaluation is to the effect that the self insurance program is sound, (iii) unless the 
evaluation states that such reserves are not necessary, the City maintains adequate reserves for the self- 
insurance program, and (iv) in the case of workers’ compensation, adequate reserves created by the City for 
such self-insurance program are maintained in such amount and manner as are acceptable to the State. The 
City will pay any fees and expenses of such Insurance Consultant in connection therewith. 

Maintenance and Modification of Leased Property by the City 

The City will at its own expense (a) keep the Leased Property in a safe condition, (b) with respect to 
the Leased Property, comply with all applicable health and safety standards and all other industrial 
requirements or restrictions enacted or promulgated by the State, or any political subdivision or agency thereof, 
or by the government of the United States of America or any agency thereof, and (c) keep the Leased Property 
in good repair and in good operating condition and make from time to time all necessary repairs thereto and 
renewals and replacements thereof; provided, however, that the City will have no obligation to operate, 
mahtain,  preserve, repair, replace or renew any element or unit of the Leased Property, the maintenance, 
repair, replacement or renewal of which becomes uneconomical to the City because of damage, destruction or 
obsolescence, or change in economic or business conditions, or change in government standards and 
regulations. The City shall not permit or suffer others to commit a nuisance in or about the Leased Property or 
itself commit a nuisance in connection with its use of the Leased Property. The City will pay all costs and 
expenses of operation of the Leased Property. 

The City may, also at its own expense, make from time to time any additions, modifications or 
improvements to the Leased Property that it may deem desirable for its business purposes and that do not 
materially impair-the structural strength or effective use, or materially decrease the value, of the Leased 
Property. All additions, modifications or improvements made by the City pursuant to the authority of this 
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Section shall (a) be made in a workmanlike manner and in strict compliance with all laws and ordinances 
applicable thereto, (b) when commenced, be pursued to completion with due diligence and (c) when 
completed, be deemed a part of the Leased Property. 

During the Lease Term, the Leased Property will be used by the City only for the purpose of 
performing essential governmental or proprietary fimctions of the City consistent with the permissible scope of 
the City’s authority. 

Damage,. Destruction and Condemnation 

The City shall bear the risk of loss with respect to the Leased Property during the Lease Term. If (a) 
the Leased Property or any portion thereof is destroyed, in whole or in part, or is damaged by fire or other 
casualty or (b) title to, or the temporary use of, the Leased Property or any part thereof shall be nonexistent or 
deficient or taken under the exercise or threat of the power of eminent domain by any governmental body or by  
any person, firm or corporation acting pursuant to governmental authority, the City and the Trustee will cause 
the Net Proceeds of any insurance claim, condemnation award or sale under threat of condemnation to be 
applied to the prompt replacement, repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the Leased Property, 
unless the City shall have exercised its option to purchase the Trustee’s interest in the Leased Property by  
making payment of the Purchase Price as provided in the Lease. Any balance of the Net Proceeds remaining 
after such work has been completed shall be paid to the City and shall be held and appropriated by the City for 
the exclusive purpose of paying Rent under the Lease. 

If the City determines that the repair, restoration, modification or improvement of the Leased Property 
is not  economically feasible or in the best interest of the City, then, in lieu of making such repair, restoration, 
modification or improvement and if permitted by law, the City shall promptly purchase the Trustee’s interest 
in the Leased Property pursuant to Section 10.01(b) by paying the Purchase Price and such Net Proceeds shall 
be applied by the City to such payment to the extent required for such payment. Any balance of the Net 
Proceeds remaining after paying the Purchase Price shall belong to the City. 

Assignment and Subleasing by the City 

Except as expressly provided in the Lease, none of the City’s right, title and interest in, to and under 
the Lease and in the Leased Property may be assigned or encumbered- by the City for any reason; except that 
the City may sublease- any one or more parts of the Leased Property if the City obtains and causes to be 
delivered to the Trustee an opinion of Special Counsel that such subleasing will not adversely affect the tax 
status of the Interest Portion of the Basic Rent Payments. Any such sublease of all or part of the Leased 
Property shall be subject to the Lease and the rights of the Trustee in, to and under the Lease and the Leased 
Property. 

Events of Default 

Any of the following shall constitute an “Event of Default” under the Lease: 

(a) Failure by the City to make any deposits required under the Lease to pay Basic Rent 
in the Lease Revenue Fund at the time specified therein and the continuance of such failure for ten 
business days; 

(b) Failure by the City to make any Supplemental Rent Payment when due and the 
continuance of such failure for ten days after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that 
it be remedied is given to the City by the Trustee; 
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(c) Failure by the City to observe and perform any covenant, condition or agreement on 
its part to be observed or performed under the Lease, other than as referred to in subparagraph (a) or 
(b) above, for a period of 30 days after written notice specifying such failure and requesting that it be 
remedied is given to the City by the Trustee unless such party shall agree in writing to an extension of 
such time prior to its expiration; provided that, if the failure stated in the notice cannot be corrected 
within the applicable period, such party will not unreasonably withhold its consent to an extension of 
such time if corrective action is instituted by the City within the applicable period and diligently 
pursued until the default is corrected; 

(d) Any statement, representation or warranty made by the City in or pursuant to the 
Lease or the execution, delivery or performance of either o f  them shall prove to have been false, 
incorrect, misleading or breached in any material respect on the date when made; 

(e) Any provision of the Lease shall at any time for any reason cease to be valid and 
binding on the City, or shall be declared to be null and void, or the validity or enforceability thereof 
shall be contested by the City or any governmental agency or authority if the loss of such provision 
would materially adversely affect the rights or security of the Trustee; or 

(f) The City becomes insolvent or admits in writing its inability to pay its debts as they 
mature or applies for, consents to, or acquiesces in the appointment of a trustee, receiver or custodian 
for the City or a substantial part of its property; or in the absence o f  such application, consent or 
acquiescence, a trustee, receiver or custodian for the City or a substantial part of its property; or in the 
absence of such application, consent or acquiescence, a trustee, receiver or custodian is appointed by 
the City or a substantial part of its property and is not discharged within 60 days; or any bankruptcy, 
reorganization, debt arrangement, moratorium or any proceeding under bankruptcy or insolvency law, 
or any dissolution or liquidation proceeding, is instituted by or against the City and, if instituted 
against the City, is Consented to or acquiesced in by the City or is not dismissed within 60 days. 

Remedies on Default 

Whenever any Event of Default exists, the Trustee shall have the right, without any further demand or 
notice, to take one or any combination of the following remedial steps: 

(a) By written notice to the City, the Trustee may declare all Rent payable by the City 
hereunder to the end of the then current Original Term or Renewal Term to be due; 

(b) With or without terminating the Lease, the Trustee may enter the premises where the 
Leased Property is located and retake possession of the Leased Property or require the City at the 
City’s expense to promptly retuni any or all of the Leased Property to the possession of the Trustee at 
a place specified by the Trustee and sell the Leased Property or lease the Leased Property or, for the 
account of the City, sublease the Leased Property continuing to hold the City liable for the difference 
between (a) the Rent payable by the City hereunder for the then current Original Term or Renewal 
Term, as the case may be, and (b) the net proceeds of any such sale, leasing or subleasing (after 
deducting all expenses of the Trustee in exercising its remedies under the Lease, including without 
limitation all expenses of taking possession, removing, storing, reconditioning, and selling or leasing 
or subleasing the Leased Property and all brokerage, auctioneersad attorneys’ fees); 

(c) The Trustee may terminate any eghts the City may have in any funds held by the 
Trustee under the Declaration of Trust; and 
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(d) The Trustee may take whatever action at law or in equity necessary or desirable to 
enforce its rights in the Leased Property and under the Lease. 

Amendments, Changes and Modifications 

. The Lease may be amended by the Trustee 'and the City, provided that (a) no amendment that 
materially adversely affects the rights of the Owners of the Certificates shall be effective unless it shall have 
been consented to by the Owners of a majority, in principal amount, of the Certificates, if any, then 
outstanding, (b) no amendment that affects the amount. or due date of any Basic Rent Payment or  of the 
Purchase Price shall be effective unless consented to by the Owners of all of the Certificates, if any, then 
outstanding, and (c) any amendment shall comply with the applicable requirements of the Declaration of Trust. 
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APPENDIX E 

PROPOSED FORM OF OPINION OF SPECIAL COUNSEL 

City of Monett, Missouri 
Monett, Missouri 

UMB Bank, N.A. 
Kansas City, Missouri 

UMB Bank, N.A., 

Kansas City, Missouri 
as Trustee 

Re: $2,859,000 City of Monett, Missouri, Taxable Certificates of Participation (Recovery Zone 
Economic Development Bonds) Series 201 0 

Ladies and Gentlemen: 

We‘ have acted as Special Counsel in connection with the above-referenced Certificates of 
Participation (the “Certificates”), -evidencing interests of the Owners thereof in Basic Rent Payments to be 
made by the City of Monett, Missouri (the “City”) under a Lease Purchase Agreement dated as of June 1,2010 
(the “Lease”), between UMB Bank, N.A., as lessor (the “Trustee”), and the City, as lessee. Capitalized terms 
used herein and not otherwise defined herein shall have the meanings assigned to such terms in the Lease. 

We have examined (i) the Lease, (ii) the Declaration of Trust dated as of June 1, 2010 (the 
“Declaration of Trust”), executed by the Trustee, (iii) the Tax Compliance Agreement dated as  of June 1,2010 
(the “Tax Compliance Agreement”), between the City and the Trustee, and (iv) certificates of officers and 
officials of the City and the Trustee. In addition, we have reviewed and considered the Internal Revenue Code 
of 1986, as amended (the “Code”), and the applicable regulations thereunder promulgated by the United States 
Treasury Department. 

In rendering the opinions set forth herein, we have assumed without undertaking to verify the same by 
independent investigation, (a) as to questions of fact, the accuracy of all representations of the Trustee and the 
City set forth in the Lease, the Tax Compliance Agreement and the Declaration of Trust and all certificates of 
officials of the Trustee, the City and others examined by us, and (b) the conformity to original documents of all 
documents submitted to us as copies and the authenticity of such original documents and all documents 
submitted to us as originals. .- 

Based upon and subject to the foregoing, we are of the opinion, under existing law, as follows: 

1. The Lease, the Tax Compliance Agreement and the Declaration of Trust have been approved 
by the City, and the Lease and the Tax Compliance Agreement have been duly authorized, executed and 
delivered by the City and constitute legal, valid and binding agreements of the City, enforceable in accordance 
with their terms, except that the Lease is. enforceable only during each fiscal year for which sufficient funds 
have been appropriated. 

2. The Certificates have been duly authorized, executed and delivered in accordance with the 
Declaration of Trust, are entitled to the benefits and security of the Declaration-of Trust and evidence interests 
in the right to receive Basic Rent Payments under the Lease, which right to receive Basic Rent Payments is 
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enforceable against the City in accordance with the terms of the Certificates, the Declaration of Trust and the 
Lease. 

3. The Interest Portion of each Basic Rent Payment represented by the Certificates is exempt 
from income taxation by the State of Missouri. 

We express no opinion as to the title to or the description of the property subject to the Lease. 

We express no opinion regarding the accuracy, completeness or sufficiency of the Official Statement 
Further, we ‘express no opinion regarding tax or other offering material relating to the Certificates. 

consequences arising with respect to the Certificates other than as expressly set forth in h s  opinion. 

The rights of the owners of the Certificates and the enforceability of the Certificates, the Declaration 
of Trust and the Lease may be subject to bankruptcy, insolvency, reorganization, moratorium and other similar 
laws affecting creditors’ rights heretofore or hereafter enacted to the extent applicable and their enforcement 
may be subject to the exercise of judicial discretion in appropriate cases. 

This opinion is given as of its date, and we assume no obligation to revise or supplement this opinion 
to reflect any facts or circumstances that may come to our attention or any changes in law that may occur after 
the date of this opinion. 

Very truly yours, 
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